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Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng City Center ﬁ:;ryis
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A wholly-owned hotel development project with 243 guest rooms, located in the city center of Kaifeng.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We"), | have the
pleasure to present to you the annual report (the “Annual
Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (”Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a total turnover
of approximately HK$351.6 million (2019: approximately
HK$259.4 million). The net loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$35.3 million (2019: net profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$27.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$62.8 million
or 228%. Loss per share for the Reporting Period was HK3.61
cents.

The decrease was mainly due to the adverse impact of the recent
outbreak of 2019 coronavirus disease (the “COVID-19
Outbreak”) to the Group's properties revaluation as at 31 March
2020, which resulted in an aggregate fair value loss on the
Group's investment properties in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") amounting to HK$22,758,000.

The consolidated net assets value of the Group as at 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$1,516 million (2019: approximately
HK$1,647 million). The consolidated net assets value per share as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$1.55 per share based on
977,880,400 shares in issue, as compared to HK$1.68 per share
based on 977,880,400 shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

In 2019, the global economy has entered into a synchronised
slowdown with increasing uncertainties. In face of increasing
domestic and foreign risks and challenges, China has maintained
stable progress in economic development, with the gross
domestic product in 2019 amounting to nearly RMB100 trillion,
an increase of 6.1% as compared with 2018, representing one of
the top growth rates among the world’s main economies, and
continued to push the world economic growth as an important
engine. During 2019, the overall growth rate of China’s real
estate industry slowed down. The central government clearly
defined the goal of “Stabilising land prices, housing prices and
related expectations”, continued to adhere to the positioning of
“housing is for living, not for speculation” and implemented
long-term control mechanism of “one city, one policy”. Therefore,
the real estate market has generally maintained smooth
operation.
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The Group's financial performance primarily arose from the sales
of properties, rental income from investment properties, sales of
medical equipment and sales of home security and automation
products.

For the property development and investment segment, the
Group maintained a prudent land acquisition policy, focused on
quality and profitability of projects. No new land was acquired
during the Reporting Period, and the Group focused on the
development of projects in Kaifeng.

For others segment, there was a significant increase in the
trading of medical equipment and home security and automation
products business. The increase was primarily due to growth in
sales volume of medical devices as a result of proactively
expanding our distribution network to the hospitals and medical
device manufacture customers. Besides, the COVID-19 Outbreak
has impacted the health and wellness of many people in different
parts of the world. It also caused the increase of sales in this
segment.

DIVIDENDS
A special dividend of HKO0.5 cent per ordinary share was declared
on 11 June 2019.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2019: HKO.5 cent per ordinary share) in respect of the Reporting
Period.

OUTLOOK

Following the COVID-19 Outbreak, China has implemented and
will continue to implement various prevention and monitoring
measures across the nation. The Group will continue to monitor
the developments of the COVID-19 Outbreak closely, assess and
react actively to its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

2019 went down in history as an exceptionally difficult year for
Hong Kong and Mainland China due to both external and
internal factors. The COVID-19 Outbreak in 2020 has triggered a
new crisis that has not only dealt a blow to Mainland China but
is still unfolding around the world.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

Looking forward to 2020, it is expected that the Group's full-year
results of operations might be affected to a certain extent in light
of the fact that the COVID-19 Outbreak has not been completely
contained in the PRC and overseas countries at this stage.
However, with confidence in measures taken by the PRC
government to fight against the COVID-19 Outbreak, the Group
intends to minimise various adverse impacts by continuously
diversifying product pipeline and exploring opportunities for
strategic acquisition and cooperation, so as to increase our market
share of medical equipment trading.

The Group has been proactive in searching for business
opportunities in the property market both in and outside Hong
Kong to further sustain the development of the Group and
achieve stronger positive returns for the shareholders of the
Company in the long run amid the current challenging market
conditions. The Group remains positive about the long-term
economic prospect of China and will consider expanding its
property businesses by tapping into China’s property market
which is expected to be resilient with sustainable demand in the
long run.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the directors of the Company (“Directors”), | would
like to express my heartfelt thanks for the long term support and
trust of the Company’s shareholders, business partners and
customers. | would also like to thank my colleagues for their
dedication, hard work and continuous commitment over the past
few years in aiding the Group to achieve outstanding
performance. The Group will carry on dedicating its efforts
towards the Group’s long-term development and hence deliver
sustainable returns to the Company’s shareholders.

Tjia Boen Sien
Managing Director and Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s major business segments during the year ended 31
March 2020 comprise (i) property development and investment;
and (ii) trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products, including the provision of related
installation and maintenance services.

The Group’s turnover for the vyear ended 31 March 2020
recorded at approximately HK$351,614,000 (2019:
HK$259,417,000), representing an increase of 36% compared to
last year.

Property development and investment business

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2020
generated from this segment recorded at approximately
HK$302,170,000 (2019: HK$217,365,000), representing an
increase of 39% as compared with last year. The turnover
generated from this segment arise from the sales of properties in
the PRC and rental income earned from investment properties
located in the PRC.

(i) Sales of properties

Turnover increased from approximately HK$195,605,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$282,301,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020,
representing a significant increase of 44%. Sales recognised
last year were mainly generated from the sales of
residential blocks and shops at the street at World Expo
Plaza (“World Expo”), Kaifeng, the PRC. During the year,
the sales was mainly contributed by (i) the sales of the
entire Zhu Ji Lane (“EBR¥&%E") project in Kaifeng (total
saleable area of approximately 13,000 square metres
(“sq.m.”)) to a single customer at a consideration of
RMB160 million (equivalent to approximately HK$176
million); and (i) the sales of the remaining residential blocks
at World Expo.

(ii) Rental income from investment properties
Turnover decreased from approximately HK$21,760,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$19,869,000 for the vyear ended 31 March 2020,
representing a decrease of 9%. The decrease was because
of (i) one-month rental concession provided to the shopping
mall tenants in Kaifeng, the PRC due to the COVID-19
Outbreak; and (i) there was no rental income earned from
Zhu Ji Lane properties after the sales of these properties
during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Segment operating profit generated from this segment during the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$5,069,000
(2019: HK$104,084,000). The average gross profit for the sales of
the Group’s properties in Kaifeng, the PRC during the Reporting
Period was approximately 17% while the average gross profit for
the sales of the Group's properties in Kaifeng during the same
period last year was approximately 27%. The decrease in gross
profit margin was due to the drop of average selling price in the
PRC property market. On the other hand, the revaluation loss of
HK$22,758,000 on investment properties (2019: gain of
HK$66,456,000) due to the adverse impact caused by the
COVID-19 Outbreak also led to the drop in segment operating
profit. Due to the above reasons, a significant drop in the
segment operating profit of this segment was noted even though
there was an increase in turnover.

Trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products, including the provision of the
related installation and maintenance services,
business

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2020
generated from this segment recorded at approximately
HK$49,444,000 (2019: HK$42,052,000), representing a significant
increase of 18% as compared with last year. The significant
increase was mainly due to the increase in sales of medical
equipment for the Tseung Kwan O Hospital project. Besides, due
to the COVID-19 Outbreak, there were more sales of pandemic
prevention products including surgical masks and air cleaner
machines.

Segment operating profit generated from this segment during the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$723,000 (2019:
HK$8,289,000). The decrease was due to more sales of pandemic
prevention products during the Reporting Period which have a
lower gross profit margin than other products.

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$35,296,000 as compared with the net profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 of
approximately HK$27,486,000. The decrease was due to (i) the
adverse impact from the COVID-19 Outbreak to the Group's
properties revaluation as at 31 March 2020, which resulted in an
aggregate fair value loss on the Group's investment properties in
the PRC amounted to HK$22,758,000 (2019: fair value gain of
HK$66,456,000); and (ii) the decrease in gross profit by 16%
generated from the sales of properties during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2020 was

approximately HK3.61 cents.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's turnover
amounted to approximately HK$352 million, increased by 36% as
compared with last year. Such increase was mainly contributed by
the sales of the entire Zhu Ji Lane project (total saleable area of
approximately 13,000 sg.m.) to a single customer during the year
and the increase in sales of pandemic prevention products.

Turnover generated from property development and investment
business and trading of medical equipment and home security
and automation products amounted to approximately HK$302.2
million and HK$49.4 million respectively, representing an increase
of 39% and 18% respectively, as compared with the last
reporting period.

Gross profit margin

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s gross profit
margin was approximately 23.8%, decreased by 11.4 percentage
points as compared with last year's 35.2%. This was mainly
driven by the fact that the average gross profit for the sales of
the Group's properties in Kaifeng, the PRC during the Reporting
Period was about 17% while the average gross profit for the
sales of the Group's properties in Kaifeng during the same period
last year was about 27%. The decrease in gross profit margin
was due to the drop of average selling price in the PRC property
market.

Other operating expenses, net

The amount decreased from approximately HK$54.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$20.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020. Prior year's amount mainly
represented (i) the fair value loss on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$36.0 million; and (ii) the
impairment loss of the Group’s investment in Deson Construction
International Holdings Limited (“DCIHL") amounted to HK$27.2
million. This year’s amount mainly represented the aggregate fair
value loss on the equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss amounted to HK$14.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Share of profits and losses of associates

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s share of losses
of associates amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million,
decreased by 60% as compared with the share of losses of
associates amounted to approximately HK$4.5 million during the
last reporting period. It is because of the disposal of its loss-
making associate, DCIHL, in June 2019. No further loss of DCIHL
was shared by the Group after the disposal of the Group’s equity
interest in DCIHL.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$2,227,228,000, which were financed by total
liabilities, shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$711,552,000, approximately HK$1,520,705,000
and approximately HK$5,029,000 (debit balance), respectively. The
Group’s current ratio as at 31 March 2020 was 2.61 as
compared with 2.12 as at 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was 21%
(2019: 19%). It was calculated based on the non-current
liabilities of approximately HK$412,714,000 (2019:
HK$384,180,000) and long-term capital (equity and non-current
liabilities) of approximately HK$1,928,390,000 (2019:
HK$2,031,521,000).

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$1,356,000, which was mainly used in the
purchase of equipment for a new hotel in Kaifeng, the PRC.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

Commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, of approximately
HK$13,111,000.

Charges on group assets

Details of the charge of assets of the Group are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year ended 31 March
2020. The Group strives to reduce its exposures to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the
financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time
to time.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to balances denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which mainly arise from certain Group
entities” foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy to eliminate the currency exposures against changes in
exchange rates of RMB against HKD. However, management
monitors the related foreign currency exposures closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.

PROSPECTS

Property development and investment

On 9 June 2005, the Group was granted the land use rights of a
development site in the Long Ting District of the city of Kaifeng,
Henan Province, the PRC, which has been developed into a
residential and commercial complex with an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 221,000 sq.m.. The name of this project is
“Century Place, Kaifeng”. Up to the date of this Annual Report,
the construction of a gross floor area of approximately 190,000
sg.m. has been completed and achieved a total sales contract
sum of approximately RMB761 million. The remaining part of the
land (Section G) is under construction, and it is expected that the
construction will be completed by the last quarter of 2020 and
the pre-sale will start in the first quarter of 2021.
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The unsold area at the Century Place, Kaifeng consists of the
following:

CURRENT USE

MEELSERMAHERBERERATSA

GROSS FLOOR AREA

ERRAR BEEE
(approximately sg.m.)
(LAY T 75 oK)
Section A Investment properties — Shops (leased out) 53,600
AR REWX — E@H(EHA)
Section B Properties held for sale — Apartments 200
BI= TEME — 18
Car park 81
8%
Section C Properties held for sale — Villas 6,000
ClE FEWME — RE
Section D Properties held for sale — Offices 1,200
D& FEWE —PAE
Car park 10
8%
Section E Properties held for sale — Shops 1,200
El@ FTEWE —EH
Section F Properties held for sale — Shops 11,100
Fl= FEWE —EE
Car park 89
8%
Section G Properties held for sale under development — Apartments 31,000
and shops
G BERAGFEME — RBREH

The Group plans to sell Section C together with Section G. It is
because these two sections are adjacent to each other and we
believe the synergy effect can bring a higher return to the Group.
Up to the date of this Annual Report, the discussions regarding
any potential sale remained preliminary and no formal proposal
has been put forward by any third party to the Group and no
legally binding agreement or contract relating to any business
cooperation has been entered into by the Group. The outcome of
any discussion on such business cooperation is not known and in
the event that any agreement or contract regarding the possible
business cooperation with the aforementioned third party is
reached, the Group will comply with the relevant requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 16 February 2012, the Group successfully won a bid for the
acquisition of land use right of a residential and commercial site
in the city of Kaifeng, the PRC, which has been developed into a
residential and commercial complex with an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 95,000 sq.m.. The name of this project is
“World Expo, Kaifeng”. Up to the date of this Annual Report,
this project has been completed and achieved a total sales
contract sum of approximately RMB542 million.

MEEELTHHH& *ﬁ'

R-E——F [+ B "EERHFIE
SR BIAE T — iRt R e - b A -
I B FE A — B FT 2 mIE £995,000F ;5
KEERBELATER - ZEHBAHEAIH
HitEES | EEAFTHRAS  AEEE®
T - FTEHE A DB ARS542,000,000

JG ©

The unsold area at the World Expo, Kaifeng consists of the FHUBESHATEMBERLREUNTSE
following:
CURRENT USE GROSS FLOOR AREA
BRI AR BEEEE
(approximately sg.m.)
(LAY 75 oK)
Commercial A Property, plant and equipment — Hotel 14,000
B AA M BB RRE — BE
Commercial B Properties held for sale — Shops 2,600
% FAB FEME — B
Property, plant and equipment — Animation centre 5,000
M BB RRE — BREE
Residential 1-3 Properties held for sale — Apartments 8,900
F=E1-3 FEWE — 2B
Car park 159
(B2
The construction works of the hotel in Kaifeng, the PRC have MRFEMEMNEE HELTRENFR
been completed during the year. FERK ©

The animation centre was named “Qing-Ming Riverside Anime
Exhibition” and used to show the animation of J5R3_LJA[E which
was shown in 2010 Shanghai Expo. The Board decided to
terminate the animation centre business and has been seeking for
potential buyer for the animation centre together with the
remaining properties at World Expo, Kaifeng, the PRC.

@
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In September 2014, the Group was granted another land use
right in Kaifeng, the PRC. The name of the project is Zhu Ji Lane.
The Group has developed a commercial street project with a total
gross floor area of approximately 13,000 sq.m.. It was put in use
during the 27th World Hakka Conference which was held in
October 2014. As at the date of this Annual Report, the project
has been completed. The Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the sales of the
entire Zhu Ji Lane project for a consideration of RMB160 million
(equivalents to HK$176 million) and the transaction has been
completed during the year.

In Mainland China, the pace of economic growth is likely to be
slower than previous years due to factors including the US-China
trade conflict and the severe impact of the COVID-19 Outbreak.
However, it is expected that the China Government will provide
necessary fiscal stimulus and formulate accommodative monetary
policy to maintain a stable economic growth.

In Hong Kong, the local economy continues to be affected by
economic development in Mainland China, the US-China trade
conflict, and potential continuation of social and political events.
The COVID-19 Outbreak is expected to worsen the economic
outlook. Sectors such as retail, catering, tourism, and exports are
expected to be impacted the most. Further slide of local economy
and downward adjustments in the property market seem
inevitable for the rest of 2020.

The Board remains optimistic about the property market in
Mainland China. With its good experience in the property market
of the PRC, the Group may acquire additional land to enrich the
Group’s land reserve, specifically in Guangdong — Hong Kong —
Macao Greater Bay Area, which is adjacent to Hong Kong.
However, the Group has no specific investment plan in relation to
any particular project as at the date of this Annual Report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Formation of an investment company for the property
investment and/or redevelopment in Hong Kong

On 15 October 2018, the Group has entered into a subscription
agreement (”Subscription Agreement”) with Excel Castle
International Limited (“Excel Castle”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”), pursuant to which the Group
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the subscription shares,
representing 6% of the enlarged issued share capital of Excel
Castle at a consideration of US$900,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.0 million) (“Subscription”). On the same
date, the Group, Excel Castle and Southern Victory Investments
Limited (“SVIL"), a company incorporated in the BVI, have
entered into a shareholders’ agreement (“Shareholders’
Agreement”) governing the affairs of Excel Castle and the
provision of a shareholder's loan with an amount up to
HK$62,980,000 by the Group, which has taken effect on the
completion date of the Subscription.

Excel Castle is an investment holding company to hold directly a
company incorporated in Hong Kong that is engaged in the
business of investment holding, property investment and/or
redevelopment in Hong Kong and which in turn holds eight other
wholly-owned subsidiaries (together with Excel Castle, collectively
referred to as the “Excel Castle Group”).

Each of SVIL and the Group agreed to make available the
maximum contributions to Excel Castle of approximately HK$987
million and HK$63 million, respectively in various instalments in
such amounts in proportion of their shareholdings on such dates
as from time to time to be determined by the board of directors
of Excel Castle for the purpose of financing the business of the
Excel Castle Group and/or the redevelopment project of the Excel
Castle Group.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
considered that the Subscription Agreement and the
Shareholders’ Agreement were on normal commercial terms.
Taking into account the expected return to be generated from
the proposed property development project through the
investment in Excel Castle, the Directors considered that the
terms of the Subscription Agreement and the Shareholders’
Agreement were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Group and the Company's shareholders as a whole. The
transaction was completed on 9 November 2018.
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On 4 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with SVIL to acquire a further 2% of the issued share
capital of Excel Castle from SVIL and the corresponding
shareholder’s loan at a cash consideration of HK$4,194,000.
Since then, the Group holds 8% issued share capital of Excel
Castle. The Directors considered that this acquisition provided the
Group an opportunity to increase its investment in Excel Castle
with a view to being benefited from the long-term returns from
future revenue from the property development. On the same
date, the Group also entered into a supplemental shareholders’
agreement with SVIL that the maximum contribution amounts by
both shareholders by means of the provision of shareholders’
loans were revised to HK$67 million by the Group and HK$769
million by SVIL.

As the Group does not have significant influence over Excel
Castle, the investment is classified as an equity investment at fair
value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2020, total investment made by the Group was
approximately HK$74 million. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, Excel Castle Group had one property project only, that is
to acquire an old commercial building in Tsim Sha Tsui (“TST
Property”) for redevelopment. Since over 80% of the titles has
been acquired from the existing owners of the TST Property, the
remaining portion has been under compulsory auction and the
ownership of the remaining property has been obtained. Excel
Castle Group expected to develop the TST Property into a
modern commercial building with more saleable area. The whole
redevelopment project is expected to be completed in 2024.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Excel Castle Group was approximately HK$50,407,000.

Formation of companies for the property investment
and/or redevelopment in Shanghai

In 2019, the Group has invested in two property projects in
Shanghai, being the property redevelopment of residential
apartments at Wuyi Road, Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC
("Project Embassy”) and the property redevelopment of offices
and carparks at West Huaihai Road, Changning District, Shanghai,
the PRC (“Project Stone”). The total investments on these two
projects as at 31 March 2020 were approximately HK$21 million.

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of these
two projects was approximately HK$16,493,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Project Embassy is a low-rise building in Shanghai located next to
the Embassy of Belgium. The building comprises eight apartments
with a total gross floor area of approximately 867 sq.m.. It is co-
invested with an independent third party through a company
registered in BVI in which the Group has 10% equity interest.

Project Stone is an office building, named as Shanghai City Point.
It is located in a grade A mixed-use building in Changning
District, the PRC. Project Stone acquired four floors of that
building with a total gross floor area of approximately 6,668
sg.m.. This project is co-invested with the same independent third
party as Project Embassy in a company registered in BVI in which
the Group has 5% equity interest.

Project Embassy and Project Stone have been refurbished and
seeking for potential buyers. As the Group does not have
significant influence over Project Stone and Project Embassy, the
investments are classified as equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

Regarding the Starway Parkview South Station Hotel project
("Project Parkview"”), it is located in Xuhui West Bund area,
adjacent to Shanghai Botanical Garden. The hotel was built in
2003 with a total gross floor area of approximately 7,319 sq.m.
and 56 rooms. It is co-invested with an independent third party
and the Group has 30% equity interest, which is accounted for
as an associate. The hotel has been converted into 66-rooms
rental apartments with plenty of shared common area combined
with mixed retail and modern gym, swimming pool and tennis
court. The renovation works of Project Parkview have been
completed and it was renamed as “Cohost West Bund”, a co-
living apartment in Shanghai and the Group will focus on its
asset management and leasing business of Project Parkview.

In anticipation of the uncertain and challenging economic
environment and volatility in the market ahead, the Group will
continue to adopt a cautious and proactive approach in
managing its core investments and to look for sound and stable
investment opportunities to produce sustainable returns for the
Company'’s shareholders.
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Participation in a real estate investment fund

On 23 April 2019, the Group has entered into a general-partner
shareholders’ agreement with Gusto Brave Limited, a representing
entity of Pamfleet Group (“Pamfleet”), and Pamfleet China GP Il
Limited (“Pamfleet China”) to act as a general partner of a fund
manager for property investment.

The Group owns 30% equity interest in Pamfleet China. Pamfleet
is an independent and privately-owned real estate investment
advisor with offices in Hong Kong, Singapore and Shanghai.
Pamfleet's experienced team seeks to create long-term value
through knowledgeable deal sourcing, disciplined acquisitions,
active asset management, rebranding and refurbishment with an
emphasis on design, anticipating tenant and community
requirements and delivering good value for money. Members of
the management team of Pamfleet have been involved in the
selection and management of real estate investments throughout
Asia for over 20 years.

Pamfleet and the Group operate with a flat organisational
structure, which allows and encourages collaboration.

Up to the end of the Reporting Period, the fund managed by
Pamfleet China is Pamfleet Shanghai Real Estate Fund Il
(“PSREFII"). The Group has also acted as a limited partner (holds
1.5%) of PSREFIl. PSREFII seeks to capitalise on Pamfleet's track
record of its successful investments in under-performing, under-
priced and distressed real estate with repositioning and value-add
potential in Shanghai and other tier-one cities in Mainland China.
The investment strategy of PSREFIl is to identify, structure and
execute successful asset repositioning investments in Shanghai
and other tier-one cities in Mainland China. Up to the end of the
Reporting Period, the total investment made by the Group was
approximately HK$6 million.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of this investment in
the real estate investment fund was approximately
HK$3,992,000.

Up to the end of the Reporting Period, there was only one

project operated by PSREFI. The name of the project is Project
Hub.
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The property is located at the junction of Daning Road and
Gonghexin Road within Daning Commercial Area of Jing An
District. It has a total gross floor area of around 250,000 sg.m.,
with around 200,000 sg.m. above ground and 50,000 sqg.m.
under ground. PSREFII targets to build shops and offices with a
saleable area of 37,547 sq.m.. The retail part within the
development is a popular regional lifestyle hub and shopping
destination. Major tenants are expected to be operators from the
food and beverage, entertainment and education industries.

Trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products

The increasing standard of living around the globe, especially in
Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC, and increasing health
awareness, in particular from high-income consumers living in
urban areas, together create additional demand for medical
equipment. Consequently, this segment is expected to continue to
be a worthwhile investment. In the coming reporting period, we
will expand our distribution channels and introduce a broader
range of products to boost sales growth.

Also, with the increasing safety awareness in Hong Kong and
major cities in the PRC, we expect a higher demand for wired
and wireless security devices and systems, which are relevant to
the management of residential estates, commercial offices, shops,
hotels, hospitals, museums and prisons.

The Group will continue to adopt efficacious cost management
strategies and maintain tight credit control measures to cope with
challenges and to improve competitiveness within the volatile
operating environment. The Directors will continue to make every
effort to maximise the interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

Hotel operation

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Prospects — Property
development and investment”, the construction works of the
hotel in Kaifeng, the PRC have been completed during the year.
The Group has signed an agreement with 7B EEIE (L/8)
BMRAF] to operate the hotel under the name of “Holiday Inn
Express Kaifeng City Center” (“Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng”).
Holiday Inn Express is one of the world’s famous selected service
hotel brands. Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng was opened in January
2020. Due to the COVID-19 Outbreak, Holiday Inn Express
Kaifeng was closed in February 2020 and has resumed its
business in March 2020. The Group will monitor the
developments of the COVID-19 Outbreak situation closely, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the operation of Holiday Inn
Express Kaifeng.
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Holiday Inn Express Kaifeng is located in the city center of
Kaifeng with a total gross floor area of approximately 14,000
sg.m.. It consists of 243 guest rooms, including 100 king bed
standard rooms, 106 single bed standard rooms, 18 king bed
superior rooms, 18 single bed superior rooms and 1 suite. There
are also 3 meeting rooms with a total gross floor area of
approximately 460 sqg.m..

Disposal of Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries

Reference is made to the joint announcement of the Company,
DCIHL and Energy Luck Limited (“Energy Luck”) dated 12 April
2019 (the “Joint Announcement”). Unless otherwise defined,
terms used herein have the same meanings as those defined in
the Joint Announcement.

On 12 April 2019, Deson Development Holdings Limited
(“DDHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Sparta
Assets Limited (“Sparta Assets”) and Mr. Tjia Boen Sien (“Mr.
Tjia"”) as sellers, Energy Luck as purchaser entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement whereby each of DDHL, Sparta Assets
and Mr. Tjia had conditionally agreed to sell, and Energy Luck
had conditionally agreed to purchase from each of DDHL, Sparta
Assets and Mr. Tjia, the Sale Shares, being in aggregate of
361,302,082 DCIHL Shares, representing approximately 36.13%
of the issued share capital of DCIHL at the Consideration of
approximately HK$79,486,000 (representing a purchase price of
HK$0.22 per Sale Share) ("DCIHL Disposal”).

Upon completion of the DCIHL Disposal, each of the Company,
DDHL, Sparta Assets and Mr. Tjia ceased to have any
shareholding interest in DCIHL.

Up to the DCIHL Disposal, DCIHL was an investment holding
company and the principal activities of its subsidiaries consisted of
(a) the construction business, as a main contractor and fitting-out
works, as well as the provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services, mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau,
and other construction related business; (b) investment in
securities; and (c) investment in properties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board considered that the DCIHL Disposal provided an
attractive exit opportunity for the Group to realise its long-term
investment in DCIHL. The DCIHL Disposal enabled the Group to
recycle capital into the existing property development and
investment business. The Directors were of the view that the
DCIHL Disposal would benefit the Group by realising its
investment and also strengthening the liquidity and overall
financial position of the Group. Having regard to the prevalent
unstable economy and financial market conditions, the purpose of
the use of proceeds for development and expansion of the
existing businesses, for general working capital purpose and for
the return to the shareholders of the Company, the Board
(including the independent non-executive directors of DDIHL)
considered that the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
the Sale Price and the DCIHL Disposal, which were determined on
an arm’s length basis, were fair and reasonable and on normal
commercial terms and were in the interests of the Company and
its Shareholders as a whole.

For details, please refer to the Joint Announcement and the
Circular of the Company dated 24 May 2019.

The DCIHL Disposal was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the Special General Meeting of the Company held
on 11 June 2019. The DCIHL Disposal was completed on 18
June 2019. Upon completion, DCIHL ceased to be an associated
company of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 180 employees, 134 of
whom were based in the PRC and the remaining employees were
based in Hong Kong. The total employee benefits expenses
included directors’” emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$30.0 million as compared with
approximately HK$24.3 million last year. The increase was
because the Group has commenced the operation of Holiday Inn
Express Kaifeng during the year and thus more staff were
recruited. On the other hand, more bonuses were paid to
Directors in May 2019.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees
were reviewed and approved by the Directors. Apart from
pension funds, in order to attract and retain a high caliber of
capable and motivated workforce, the Group offers discretionary
bonus and share options to staff based on individual performance
and the achievements of the Group’s targets.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries consist of (a) property
development and investment; and (b) trading of medical
equipment and home security and automation products, including
the provision of related installation and maintenance services.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 84 to 87.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2019: Nil). A
special dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share was declared
on 11 June 2019. The Directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year (2019: HK0.5 cent per ordinary
share).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to provide a steady return to shareholders
and at the same time to maintain a strong financial position for
investment opportunities and sustainable development in the
future. Dividends proposed or declared, or not recommended, is
subject to financial performance, cash flows and future
investment opportunities of the Group.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as shareholders
of the Company to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM"), the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 12 August 2020 to 17 August 2020, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify as shareholders of the Company
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company are required to lodge all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on 11 August 2020.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page
41 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options
during the year, if any, are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the
financial statements, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no
equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 88 and 89 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
amounted to approximately HK$150,522,000. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption
reserve, in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$257,497,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions from its contributed surplus in
certain circumstances.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2020 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 21 of this Annual
Report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the
Directors”.
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This business review is made pursuant to paragraph 28(2)(d) of
Appendix 16 to the Main Board Listing Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which further analysis of
and discussion on the above principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) are made. In the opinion of the Directors, the
section headed “Chairman’s statement” and “Management
discussion and analysis” provide a comprehensive review of the
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
well as its future prospects.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following is a list of principal risks and uncertainties that are
considered to be of significance and have potential to affect the
Group's businesses, results of operations and financial position.
However, this list is non-exhaustive as there may be other risks
and uncertainties which may arise as a result of changes in
economic and other conditions over time. The Group employs a
risk management and internal control framework to identify
current and foreseeable risks at different levels of the
organisation so as to take preventive actions to avoid or mitigate
their adverse impacts.

Risks relating to property development and
investment segment

The property development and investment segment is one of the
major businesses of the Group, particularly in Mainland China.
Accordingly, this segment is subject to economic, political and
legal developments in Mainland China as well as in the
economies in the surrounding region. In recent vyears, the
properties market movements in Mainland China have been
concurrently affected by the economic trend and government
policies, including but not limited to, the adoption of
category-based regulatory measures and the bilateral regulatory
measures for the real estate market, policy changes in mortgage
levels and ownership, interest rate changes, supply and demand
conditions as well as the overall economic volatility in Mainland
China. The Group’s property development and investment
segment is expected to continue being exposed to these risks,
which may affect the Group’s investment strategy as well as its
performance. In this respect, the Group actively assesses the
overall economic, political and legal developments as well as the
property markets in other provinces in Mainland China in
deciding viable acquisitions and selling strategies. For each
potential project, detailed feasibility studies and stress tests in
regard to all aspects will be carried out before an acquisition to
minimise the risks.
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Risks relating to financial conditions and results of
operation

(i)

(ii)

The Group's finance costs fluctuate with changes in interest
rates. In the PRC, the Group’s borrowings also include
amounts denominated in RMB. The People’s Bank of China
adjusts its benchmark lending rates from time to time in
response to domestic and global economic changes. The
Group may be affected by changes in the prevailing interest
rate of the global credit market. Any increase in interest
rate in connection with the currencies the Group borrows
will increase the Group’s finance costs and customers’
mortgage interest rates and may adversely and materially
affect the Group's businesses, financial position, results of
operations and growth prospects.

The Group is required to reassess the fair value of its
investment properties at the end of every reporting period
to which financial statements are made up. Pursuant to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, investment
properties are stated at their fair value, and the changes in
their valuation should be taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the financial period in which
it is incurred. Based on the valuation conducted by
independent external valuers, the Group recognises the
investment properties at fair value and the related deferred
tax in the consolidated statement of financial position, while
the changes in fair value and the related deferred tax of
investment properties are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Therefore, the assumptions
made in the valuation of investment properties would
change under changing market conditions. Notwithstanding
any variations in profit, fair value gains and losses are non-
cash items and will not increase or decrease cash and cash
equivalents. The amount of revaluation adjustment has been
and will continuously be subject to changes in market
conditions. As such, there can be no assurance that
changes in market conditions will continue to generate
gains from fair value changes in investment properties at
similar level or at all, or there will be no decline in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties. If a property
market in the region where the Group operates slows
down, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
may decline.
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(iii)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Properties developed by the Group for sale in the PRC are
subject to Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"). LAT is calculated
based on proceeds received from the sale of properties less
deductible expenditures as provided in the relevant tax
laws. Pending settlement with the relevant tax authorities,
the Group makes provisions for the amount of LAT in
accordance with the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations
from time to time. Provisions for LAT are made on the
Group’s own estimates based on, among other things, its
own apportionment of deductible expenses which is subject
to final confirmation by the relevant tax authorities upon
settlement of the LAT. The Group only prepays a portion of
such provisions each year as required by the local tax
authorities. The Group cannot assure that the relevant tax
authorities will agree with its calculation of LAT, nor can it
assure that the LAT provisions will be sufficient to cover its
LAT obligations in respect of its past LAT liabilities in
relation to its combined property business. If the relevant
tax authorities determine that its LAT exceeds the LAT
prepayments and provisions, and seek to collect that excess
amount, the Group’s cash flows, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.
As there are uncertainties as to when the tax authorities
will enforce the LAT collection and whether it will apply the
LAT collection retrospectively to properties sold before the
enforcement, any payment as a result of the enforcement
of LAT collection may significantly restrict the Group’s cash
flow position, its ability to finance its land acquisitions and
to execute its business plans.

(iii)
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES, PERFORMANCE AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining sustainable working
practices and pays close attention to ensure that all resources are
efficiently utilised. The Group strives to become an
environmental-friendly corporation by saving electricity and
encouraging the recycling of office supplies and other materials.

The Group and its business activities are subject to requirements
under various laws. The laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group include, among others, Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Environmental Impact Assessment
Ordinance (Chapter 499 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and Immigration
Ordinance (Chapter 115 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
has put in place in-house rules containing measures and work
procedures to ensure that the Group’s operation is in compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations.
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The Group’s major business is property development in the PRC
which is a heavily regulated industry. Property developers must
abide by various laws and regulations, including rules stipulated
by the national and local governments. To engage in property
development, the Group must apply to relevant government
authorities to obtain and licenses, permits,
certificates and approvals, including but not limited to, land use
rights certificates, qualification certificates for property developers,
construction work commencement permits, construction work
planning permits, construction land planning permits and pre-sale
permits. Before the government authorities issue or renew any
certificate or permit, the Group must meet the relevant
requirements. Set out below is a summary of certain aspects of
PRC legal and regulatory provisions relating to our operations and
business. These include laws and regulations relating to:

renew various

Establishment of a real estate development enterprise

. Qualification of a real estate developer
o Land for property development
o Sale of commodity properties

. Transfer of real estate

o Mortgages of real estate
J Real estate management
o Measures on stabilising property prices

o PRC taxation

J Foreign currency exchange

o Labour protection

The Group is committed to complying with the above laws and

regulations and for the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no
reported case of material non-compliance.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a headcount of 180
employees (2019: 112). Salaries of employees are maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market as well as the minimum wages
guideline as prescribed by the local government from time to
time.

The Group awards discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based upon profit achievements of the Group and individual
performance. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme in order to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to align the interests of the employees with the Group’s
interests. Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are
reasonably remunerated and continues to improve and regularly
review and update its policies on remuneration and benefits,
training, and occupational health and safety.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers
and has ongoing communication with the customers and
suppliers through various channels such as telephone, electronic
mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and
suggestions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 61% (2019: 16%)
of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 49% (2019: 8%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 37% (2019: 42%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 14% (2019: 13%).
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any other shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the
year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Quanzhang (Chairman)

Mr. TJIA Boen Sien*@® (Managing Director and Deputy Chairman)
Mr. WANG Jing Ning*@

Mr. TJIA Wai Yip, William

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond*#e@

Ir SIU Man Po*#@
Mr. SIU Kam Chau**@

* audit committee members
# remuneration committee members
e nomination committee members

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond and Mr. Siu Kam
Chau will retire by rotation according to the Company’s Bye-
Laws and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Monday, 17 August 2020.

The Company considers that Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, Ir Siu
Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are independent pursuant to the
criteria set out in the Listing Rules and that it has received
annual confirmations of independence from each of them.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. For
further details of the Directors’ emoluments, please refer to note
8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in paragraph headed “Continuing connected
transactions” and note 34 to the financial statements, no
Director, a connected entity of a Director nor a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and share options of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including the interests and short positions which he
would be deemed or taken to have under Section 344 and 345
of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERROREBRONVESZRKXR

R-ZZF_ZFTF_A=1+—H FEZERAR
A EREEE (E& R ESF MG ([#
ZRABEMRE ) FEXVED) Z B A K g B 78
ABREARRAIRIEE S M RDIF3521FE
FZBREMA - HEEAMIERRIEE SR
HEROIEXVEET RE8D R HRE LT R

Ti%Lﬂaﬁ%x%E’ﬂ%‘i STRIZERE AR
32 P fE s ROR R (BRERBEE S LB

S5 1 344 B 5 345 S R AE R
ZHSRAA) T

REQRAZERNEFAE :

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERHEE -  FORESME

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

Name of Directors ESHE owned corporation Total capital

LR NN

HEEm EBAEH BRTRE

®AB = E ast Batk

Mr. Tjia (Note 1) A sE A (BaE) 73,926,600 349,935,000 423,861,600 43.34

Mr. Lu Quanzhang EEESLE 150,000 — 150,000 0.02

Mr. Wang Jing Ning TRELE 26,429,400 — 26,429,400 2.70

Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William & 4 % 5t 4 2,400,000 — 2,400,000 0.25

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, fAERE L

Raymond 727,500 — 727,500 0.07

Ir Siu Man Po 78 SO A2 AD 920,000 — 920,000 0.09
Note: 5T

1. Sparta Assets, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, is beneficially interested in 349,935,000
ordinary shares of the Company.
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Long positions in ordinary shares of Sparta Assets:
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R Sparta AssetsZER K IFA :

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SO RERMEE

Percentage

Directly Through of the Sparta

beneficially controlled Assets issued

Name of Director EEgE owned corporation Total share capital

{hSparta

EEER BEBAEH Assetst 81T

®E = E =k & = ae

Mr. Tjia* P 1,000 — 1,000 100.00
* Sparta Assets, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly-owned by — * CRBEXBESAMK LY AHMEEL2EHRAZ
Mr. Tjia, is beneficially interested in 349,935,000 ordinary shares of the Sparta Assets * &z #E 5 A< A 7]349,935,000/% &

Company. B °

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the section headed “Share
option scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above and note 29 to the financial statements,
none of the Directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES
The following is the change in the information of the Directors
since the interim report of the Company dated 25 November
2019, which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien

Resigned as the chairman and non-executive director of DCIHL
(stock code: 8268), a company with its shares listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange, on 29 July 2019.

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Fu Shek
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 2263), a company with its
shares listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, on
18 February 2020.

EENARBBEIE s -
BRAERT &I —AIEE -

ST X[ 8

B EX KRS ImRM 29 REEIN &
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FNBRETRIASTAEARRA MBI Z
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Resigned as the chairman and non-executive director of SCUD
Group Limited (stock code: 1399), a company with its shares
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, on 19 May
2020 and 16 June 2020, respectively.

Mr. Siu Kam Chau

Appointed as executive director of Power Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 397), a company with its shares listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, on 29 April 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and
“Share option scheme” below, and share option scheme
disclosures set out in note 29 to the financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, nor were any such rights exercised by them; nor was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

No share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the
year.

Further details of the Scheme are included in note 29 to the
financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors of the
Company, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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/‘—\H—I—/\E%%ﬂx%ﬂﬁ’%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁj(ﬁxf (AN
5% 01399 - EROMMNERZMER ™) WERFE
RIFRTES -

MmN EE
R-ZE-_ZFMA-_+NLARZERERS
MEEBRQE (BMHR 397 ERHOHRK
X PTER BT ORI TE S -

EEREROINESHER

R E X TEE R 6 & AR B KR 60 8 S K%
B8R RR R RT B8] & B A R B o
29fE R BIPT IR B SN MANF R B
B WEEME A EF KT BRI ARKRF
%iz&uﬂfiﬂ‘iﬁiﬁﬂﬁ)\&"’&ﬁ%fﬁi%#ﬁﬁ

BB BN RETETEETAZSE
ﬂ AR &) Sk E AR AT MY 8 & B IR AE I E
MZH FEEABACMEMEAEEZ
ZFHER o

iE R AE T &l
AATY —EERHEE (58] 5
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ARPEETIRARBIRES% LA £ 24

il

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Long positions: HE:
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest held capital
LR NN
ERITRE
218 A B RESMEE FEERREE Bak
Sparta Assets (Note 1) Beneficial owner 349,935,000 35.79
Sparta Assets (BffzE1) E=EEBA
Mr. Tjia Interests of controlled corporation 349,935,000 35.79
B REAB R
Directly beneficially owned 73,926,600 7.55
BEEEREAR
Granda Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner 173,698,740 17.76
("Granda”) (Note 2)
Granda Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. EzH#EAE A
(['Grandal) (Fff5£2)
Mr. Chen Huofa Interests of controlled corporation 173,698,740 17.76

BRAE S HE ZPEEE 2 R

Notes: B 5 -

1. Sparta Assets, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly-owned by 1. CRBEXBESAMK I AHEEL2EHAZ
Mr. Tjia, is beneficially interested in 349,935,000 ordinary shares of the Sparta Assets * &z #E 5 4N A ®]349,935,000/% &
Company. AR ©

2. Granda, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen 2. CRBEZHEFMA I BRI ELEEEE

Huofa, is beneficially interested in 173,698,740 ordinary shares of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, at 31 March 2020, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares of the Company that was

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Bk NG §0)

Bz Granda * BB AR R173,698,74008 %

Bt -
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALES OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There was no change of the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Administrative services agreement

On 1 April 2017, Grand On Enterprise Limited (“Grand On"), a
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Deson
Development Limited (“DDL"), an associate of the Company,
entered into an administrative services agreement
("Administrative Services Agreement”), pursuant to which DDL,
as a service provider, has agreed to provide Grand On certain
administrative services including provision of office facilities,
utilities and equipment support, cleaning services, administrative
support and information technology system and technical training
support, for a term of two years from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2019. In consideration of the provision of such administrative
services, Grand On shall pay DDL a service fee, based on DDL's
actual direct and indirect cost incurred in the supply and
procuring of the supply of such services, including overheads,
human and/or other resources. The annual service fee payable by
Grand On to DDL for each of the financial years ended 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2019 did not exceed HK$600,000.

On 7 March 2019, the Administrative Services Agreement was
renewed for a term of one year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020. The annual service fee payable by Grand On to DDL for
the year ended 31 March 2020 did not exceed HK$480,000.
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Leases of office premises in Hong Kong

(i)

On 15 April 2017, Grand On as landlord and DDL as tenant,
entered into a tenancy agreement, for the rental of certain
portions of the Nanyang Plaza property located at 11th
Floor of Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with an aggregate floor area of
approximately 9,500 square feet (“sq. ft.”) and the joint
rights to occupy and use a common area with an aggregate
floor area of approximately 3,200 sq. ft.. The term of
tenancy was from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019, with a
rental of HK$143,000 per month payable in advance. The
annual rental fee payable by DDL to Grand On for each of
the financial years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2019 did not exceed HK$1,716,000.

On 15 April 2019, the tenancy agreement was renewed for
a term of one year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020,
with a rental of HK$209,000 per month payable in
advance. The annual rental fee payable by DDL to Grand
On for the year ended 31 March 2020 did not exceed
HK$2,508,000.

On 15 April 2017, Grand On entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Fitness Concept
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Tjia, the
Managing Director and Deputy Chairman and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for the leasing of a property
of the Group in Hong Kong. The Tenancy Agreement was
for a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2017
to 31 March 2020 at monthly rent of HK$25,500. The
rental income earned during the year ended 31 March
2020 from this Tenancy Agreement was approximately
HK$306,000.

On 15 April 2020, the Tenancy Agreement was renewed
for a term of two years from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2022, with a rental of HK$25,500 per month payable in
advance. The annual rental fee payable by Fitness Concept
Limited to Grand On for the year ending 31 March 2021 is
not expected to exceed HK$306,000.
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Given that Mr. Tjia is the Managing Director and Deputy
Chairman of the Company and has an approximately
43.34% equity interest in the Company at the time
entering into the Tenancy Agreement, Mr. Tjia is a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules, the transaction therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios of the transaction
was less than 5% and the total considerations involved were less
than HK$3,000,000, pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions were exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements of the Listing Rules.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
The properties held for sale under development of the Group are
as follows:

ERHTETIARR 2 ERBICIEFHE
FHEARTLHERZRFEARTLY
4334% MR - RIFE AR A 2R E
BEERBEIRAR ZHEEANT AR
FEKARF —HHERS -

HRZER S < BHRER B DL RIER5%
% & AR E 453,000,000/ 7T+ 1RIE LT
MAIE14A 331K - ZFEXZEH 2 LT A
2R FEEZ RERBUBRRIEZ
FE °

E A
AEBERRPEEWEMOT :

Attributable Expected

interest of the Stage of completion Gross floor

Location Group completion date Expected use area
g |

1t B JE 1 E 25 THER  FESERAH A7 EEEE
Section G 100% Construction 2020 Residential/ 31,000 sg. m.
1 Xi Da Jie stage commercial
Kaifeng City complex
Henan Province
PRC
ERE I ) 100% MR “ToTF RET/BEEEE 31,000FFK
FRE 5% HE
G2

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report




Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
The properties held for sale of the Group are as follows: REESEMENT :
Attributable

interest of the Gross floor

Location Group Tenure Current use area
r&EE
1th 26 FE 15 2 F 1 B Al A& BEEE
Phase | to IV of 100% The properties are held Residential/ 87,647 sq. m.
Asian Villas City Square for a term of 70 years, commercial
Southern Area commencing on 13 May complex
Jinpen Industrial 1998 and expiring on
Development Zone 12 May 2068
Haikou
Hainan Province
PRC
] 100% ZEMEFHR ET/EER 87,647F 7 %
BEA —“AANFEA+Z=RZE AEAR
/sOm ZERNERATZAL
ERIXHER RET0%
DM ES
F—EMH
Sections B to F 100% The properties are held Residential/ 136,591 sg. m.
1 Xi Da lJie for a term of 70 years, commercial
Kaifeng City commencing on 15 June complex
Henan Province 2005 and expiring on 15
PRC June 2075
& 100% ZEMEFHR ET/EER 136,591 77 K
A ZZETREXRATHAE &1
P —ERFRATRAL
fipNERb RET05F
BEFER
BEEREBEHRARAR T _TFFR
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Attributable
interest of the Gross floor
Location Group Tenure Current use area
FEE
1t B FE 1k RE FH ERIE BEEE
Residential Zone 1-3 100% The properties are held Commercial 75,184 sq. m.
Commercial Zone A, B, for a term of 40 years,
Cand D commencing on 3 June
Core Lot No. 2012-1 2013 and expiring on
Zheng Kai Avenue 13 May 2053
Kaifeng City
Henan Province
PRC
o 100% ZEMEFHH [EES 75,184 7K
RS —Z-ZHXH=ZAZE
ME™ “ERA=FRA+=HI"
HHRAE REI40F

2012-15 R 1-3F £ @

A B ChDEZR
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
The investment properties of the Group are as follows: REEREMENT -
Attributable
interest of the Gross floor
Location Group Tenure Lease term  Current use area
r5E
1t B FE 16 B 22 FH HH B Al A% BEEE
12 Haixiu Avenue 100% The properties are held Long Commercial 22,803 sg. m.
Meilan District for a term of 70 years,
Haikou commencing on
Hainan Province 15 September 2006
PRC and expiring on
14 September 2076
 Ef 100% ZENEFHH =8 mE 22803 FAHK
FEL ZEERFNATRAE
/om “EERFAATEB L
Wz RHE70E
B2
Section A 100% The properties are held Long Commercial 53,624 sg. m.
1 Xi Da lie for a term of 70 years,
Kaifeng City commencing on
Henan Province 15 June 2005 and
PRC expiring on
15 June 2075
 Ef 100% ZENEFHH = H¥E  53,624FHK
RS ZEEREARATHRAZE
EENi) —ErRFERATRABL
7oK 155 REIT0F
Al
Phase | to IV of 100% The properties are held Long Commercial 29,325 sq. m.
Asian Villas City Square for a term of 70 years,
Southern Area commencing on
Jinpen Industrial 13 May 1998 and
Development Zone expiring on
Haikou 12 May 2068
Hainan Province
PRC
] 100% ZEMEFHH = BmE  29325FFHK
BEA —“ANNERA+=RZE
Bam ZERANFRATZHL:
ERIXHER REIT0F
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F—EMH
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 Outbreak

The COVID-19 Outbreak since early 2020 has continued in China
and countries across the world. The Group will monitor the
developments of the COVID-19 Outbreak closely and will assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. Up to the date of this Annual
Report, the assessment was still in progress. Given the dynamic
nature of these circumstances, the related impact on the Group’s
consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition could not be reasonably estimated at this stage and will
be disclosed in the Group’s 2020/21 interim and annual financial
statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
accordance with the requirements of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020, and adequacy
of resources and qualifications of the Company’s accounting staff.
The audit committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Dr. Ho Chung
Tai, Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau. Mr. Siu Kam
Chau is the Chairman of the committee.

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee members who
have provided advice and comments thereon.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. There has been no change in the Company’s auditor in any
of the preceding three years.

Tjia Boen Sien
Managing Director and Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2020
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

LU Quanzhang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 64, is an executive Director of
the Company since 9 November 2011. He is also the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Lu has over 24 years of experience in legal
practice in the PRC. Mr. Lu is a registered lawyer in the PRC and
holds a master post graduate certificate of law from China
University of Political Science and Law (Practicing). Mr. Lu was a
founding partner of Jun Yan Law Firm in Guangdong where he
has practiced since 2003. He worked at Jun Yan Law Firm until
2015. Currently, Mr. Lu is the senior partner of S D & Partners, a
private leading law firm in Shenzhen and South China. He is an
arbitrator of the China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission, Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration and Shanghai International Arbitration Centre.

TJIA Boen Sien (“Mr. Tjia”), aged 76, is one of the co-founders
of the Group. He is the Managing Director and Deputy Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Tjia is the member of remuneration
committee and the member of nomination committee of the
Board. Mr. Tjia is well respected and has established connections
in the PRC construction industry through his extensive experience.
He has over 37 years’ experience in the construction industry in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Tjia is responsible for the overall
corporate strategy and the daily operations of the Group,
including business development and overall management.

He graduated from chemistry studies at the Huagiao University
(ZFEBKE) in the PRC in July 1966. He was admitted as member
of The Chartered Institute of Building in November 1996 and is a
professional member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors since October 2002. Mr. Tjia previously served as the
vice chairman and honourable member of Zhan Tian You Civil
Engineering Science and Technology Development Fund
Management Committee (XA T AT RERIERMBERASER
ZE®)

In the past three years, Mr. Tjia was the chairman and non-
executive director of DCIHL (stock code: 8268), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, for a period from 16
December 2014 to 29 July 2019.
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WANG Jing Ning (“Mr. Wang”), aged 64, is an executive
Director of the Company and was appointed as a director of the
Company in September 1993. He is also a director of various
main operating subsidiaries of the Group, among others, Deson
Ventures (HK) Limited, Winsome Properties Limited and Honour
Advance Limited. Mr. Wang has over 40 years’ experience in
hotel management and construction engineering in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. He is responsible for managing the
Group's projects in Mainland China.

TJIA Wai Yip, William (“Mr. William Tjia”), aged 44, is an
executive Director of the Company since January 2015. Mr.
William Tjia joined the Group in February 2000. He is a director
of Deson Innovative Limited since July 2005, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for intelligent
building and security systems business of the Group. His major
duty now is responsible for the Group’s development including
business development and overall management. He graduated
from the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts
with Honours Degree in Information Systems in 1998. He is the
son of Mr. Tjia, the Managing Director and Deputy Chairman of
the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Raymond Ho Chung-Tai (“Dr. Ho"), SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J.,
JP, aged 81, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company and was appointed as a director of the Company in
September 1993.

Dr. Ho has 57 years' experience in the fields of civil, structural,
energy, environmental and geotechnical engineering and direct
project management of many mega size engineering projects
including 47 years in Hong Kong and 10 years in the United
Kingdom. He has direct management responsibility in the HK$3.0
billion (cost at the time) project of Electrification and
Modernisation of Kowloon-Canton Railway (now called “The East
Rail”) from the mid-70’s till early 80’s; and all the government-
funded infrastructure works for Shatin New Town and Tseung
Kwan O New Town from early 80's till the end of 1993,
experience including construction of tunnels, bridges, flyovers,
roads, dockyards, jetties, hospitals, hotels, incinerators, high-rise
commercial/residential buildings, slopes, reclamation, chimneys,
Ocean Park environmental studies and environmental protection
projects.
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Dr. Ho holds a doctorate degree in civil engineering from the City
University of London, United Kingdom; Honourary Doctor of
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong;
Honourary Doctor of Laws from University of Manchester, United
Kingdom; a postgraduate diploma in geotechnical engineering
from Manchester University, United Kingdom; and a bachelor
degree in civil engineering from the University of Hong Kong; and
was awarded Honourary University Fellow of The University of
Hong Kong and Honourary University Fellow of The University of
Central Lancashire, United Kingdom.

Dr. Ho was formerly a partner and senior director of Maunsell
Consultants Asia Limited from January 1976 to August 1993. Dr.
Ho was formerly Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th terms of
National People’s Congress of the PRC, member of the 1st, 2nd,
3rd & 4th terms of Legislative Council (Engineering Functional
Constituency) (1998-2012), member of the Provisional Legislative
Council (1996-1998), President of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (1987/1988), Member of the Former Basic Law
Consultation Committee, Founding Council Chairman of the City
University of Hong Kong, Council Chairman of the former City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong, Chairman of Hong Kong Technology
Committee of the Industry & Technology Development Council
(ITDC) and member of ITDC, Chairman of the Transport Advisory
Committee, Hong Kong Affairs Adviser, Chairman of the
Infrastructure Development Services Advisory Committee of the
HKTDC, board member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority,
member of the Court of the City University of Hong Kong,
member of the Chinese Medicine Consultative Committee of the
School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University,
member of Consultative Committee on the New Airport and
Related Projects, and member of the Gas Safety Advisory
Committee. Currently, Dr. Ho is Honourary Chairman and Past
Chairman of Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant, LingAo Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee and Professional Advisor
(Architecture, Engineering and Surveying) to the
Ombudsman,Hong Kong.

Dr. Ho currently is also a director of the following companies
which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

An independent non-executive director of:

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800)
ChinLink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997)
AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code: 1496)

Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 2263)
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Dr. Ho was an independent non-executive director of China State
Construction International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3311)
for a period from June 2005 to 3 June 2019, and was the
chairman and non-executive director of SCUD Group Limited
(stock code: 1399) for a period from 27 September 2018 to 16
June 2020, both are companies listed on the Stock Exchange in
the past three years.

Ir SIU Man-po (“Ir Siu”), is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2001. Ir Siu is a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, and the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Board.

Ir Siu was awarded the MEDAL OF HONOUR (MH) by the Chief
Executive of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (HKSAR) in July 2004 for his dedication and
meritorious services to the development of engineering profession
in Hong Kong.

Ir Siu, aged 82, obtained his Master of Science in Civil
Engineering in 1963 from Auburn University in Auburn, Alabama,
U.S.A.

Ir Siu has extensive experience in construction field including the
construction of Tsing Yi Power Station in 1966-1977, MTR
stations in 1977-1987, and Hong Kong Baptist University campus
development in 1989-1999. Ir Siu was the Managing Director of
Ho Wang Siu Mak Management Ltd. (an engineering consultancy
company) from 2008 to 2019.

Ir Siu is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and the American Society of Civil Engineers.

SIU Kam Chau (“Mr. Siu”), aged 55, joined the Company in
March 2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Siu is
the chairman of the audit committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr. Siu graduated from the City
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in
Accountancy. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a Certified Public Accountant
(practising) in Hong Kong. Mr. Siu has over 30 years of working
experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial and
corporate finance. Mr. Siu is currently an executive director of
Power Financial Group Limited (stock code: 397) and an
independent non-executive director of Wang On Group Limited
(stock code: 1222), which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAM Wing Wai, Angus (“Mr. Lam”), aged 44, joined the Group
in September 2005. He is the Company Secretary and the
Financial Controller of the Group. He is responsible for
monitoring all the Group’s accounting, finance, listing compliance
and company secretarial functions. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Before joining the
Group, he has several years’ experience with an international
accounting firm.

In the past three years, Mr Lam was the company secretary and
financial controller of DCIHL (stock code: 8268), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, for the period from 8
January 2015 to 29 July 2019.

TSE Hoi Ying, Irene (“Ms. Tse"), aged 48, joined the Group in
August 1999. She is the director of the Group’s subsidiaries,
Medical Technologies Limited and Allied Health Elements
Company Limited in September 2002 and September 2019
respectively. Ms. Tse is responsible for trading of medical
equipment, health products and related consulting business of the
Group, and has over 18 years of experience in rehabilitation and
medical equipment. Ms. Tse has been invited to join as
professional consultant for different esteemed medical groups. She
graduated from the University of British Columbia (Canada) with
a Bachelor of Arts (Psychology) in May 1995. She is the daughter
of Mr. Tjia, the Managing Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Group.

KWOK Chun Fai (“Mr. Kwok"”), aged 76, joined the Group in
February 1991. He is the project manager of the Group and is
responsible for the Group’s construction projects in Mainland
China. He has over 46 years’ experience in the industry. He
graduated from Fujian Overseas Chinese University in Mainland
China in Civil Industrial and Civil Building. He obtained the
International Engineering and Professional Manager Qualification
Certificate and is a Member of Architectural Society of Chinese.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERBRE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in enhancing the
confidence of shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and
business partners and also the growth of its business. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The
Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 save for the deviation
from the Code Provision A.4.1, details of which are explained
below. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders
and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Summary of deviation of the CG Code:

Code Provision A.4.1

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific term. However, all independent non-executive directors
are subject to the retirement and rotation once every three years
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are comparable
with those in the CG Code.

THE KEY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
AND PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board of
Directors (“Board”) in providing effective leadership and direction
of the Company towards its objectives and ensuring transparency
and accountability of all operations. The key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the Board
and delegated to the management. The Board provides leadership
and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to enhance
shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Company are delegated to the management with proper
supervision from the Board. The Board reserves for its decisions
on all major matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, corporate
governance, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirement;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board after being reported on by
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant decisions being made or significant transactions
or commitments being entered into by the abovementioned
officers, who cannot exceed any authority given to them by
resolutions of the Board or the Company.

The Board has the full support of the Managing Director and the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the Board and to indemnify its
directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, consisting of four executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company had adopted a Board diversity policy aims to set
out the approach to achieve the diversity of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Board has in its composition a balance of skills, expertise,
qualifications, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary
for independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
made upon possible contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors as
at 31 March 2020:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Quanzhang (Chairman)

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien (Managing Director and Deputy Chairman)
(Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Wang Jing Ning (Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Ir Siu Man Po (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Chairman of
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (Chairman of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and member of
Nomination Committee)

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman of
the Company and the other Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 43 to 47 of this annual report. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Save for Mr. Tjia Boen Sien and Mr. Tjia Wai Yip,
William, who are father and son, none of the members of the
Board are related to one another or have any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships with each other.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board at all times
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors brings independent
judgement on issues of strategies direction, policies, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board Meetings.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors will scrutinise the
performance of the Company in achieving corporate goals and
objectives and monitor performance reporting. By doing so, they
are able to contribute positively to the Company’s strategy and

policies through independent, constructive and informed
comments at Board and committee meetings.
The Board values the contribution of the independent

non-executive Directors, and strives to ensure constructive
relations between them and the executive Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to contribute their views during Board meetings.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors. Directors to be appointed will receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment. Any Board member is entitled to recommend
suitable candidate that meet the requirements of the Listing Rules
for consideration by the Board.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. In
accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Although the independent non-executive Directors do not have a
specific term of appointment, all Directors of the Company retire
by rotation once every three years. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are comparable with
those in the CG Code.
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Training for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
induction to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the business and his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors are regularly
updated and appraised with any new regulations and guideline,
as well as any amendments thereto issued by the Stock
Exchange, particularly the effects of such new or amended
regulations and guidelines on directors specifically. On an ongoing
basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all matters
relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.

The Company is aware of the requirement to regularly review and
agrees with each Director their training needs. The continuing
professional training program of the Company for Directors will
be reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Nomination Committee.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, all Directors have
individually attended seminars and training courses conducted by
qualified professions on accounting, taxation and Listing Rules.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever
necessary.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
Secretary of the Company has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

Board Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that the Company should hold at
least four regular Board meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
Directors, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication.

Regular Board meetings were held during the year for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.
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During the year under review, seven Board meetings were held.
Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Quanzhang (Chairman)
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien
(Managing Director and Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jing Ning
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Ir Siu Man Po
Mr. Siu Kam Chau

REBEER  ARABRRTLAEZTLEH

BEENREFBOT
Directors’
Attendance
HITES BEEHERH
EEBELE(EE) 6/7
ISR
(BEFHETEFETE) 7/7
TRERA 7/7
MRS E 717
BYFHTES
fAEREL 717
BRSO T 2R 717
B L 717

o

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting so as to ensure that
there is timely access to relevant information. All Directors can
give notice to the Chairman of the Board or the Company
Secretary if they intend to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. The Board and the senior management are also
obligated to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary in a timely manner.

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision in advance of each Board meeting.
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The Company Secretary, who is an employee of the Company, is
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, which record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. At
Board meetings, all Directors have ample opportunities to express
their respective views, voice any concerns and discuss the matters
under consideration, and the results of voting at Board meetings
fairly reflects the consensus of the Board. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection. Directors are entitled to have access to
board papers and queries will be responded fully. According to
current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. Such Director must abstain from voting
and will not be counted as quorum.

Directors’ commitments

Each Director has confirmed that he can give sufficient time and
attention to the Group’s affairs, and has regularly provided
information on the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments,
including the identity of such companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company held the annual general meeting (“2019 AGM") on
20 August 2019. Mr. Lu Quanzhang was unable to attend the
2019 AGM of the Company due to business engagements.
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William, the executive Director, was elected as
the chairman of 2019 AGM to ensure effective communication
with shareholders of the Company at the meeting.

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company held the special general meeting in relation to the
disposal of 31.18% shareholding in Deson Construction
International Holdings Limited on 11 June 2019. Mr. Tjia Wai Yip,
William, the executive Director, was elected as the chairman of
the special general meeting to ensure effective communication
with shareholders of the Company at the meeting.

Details of which please refer to the Company’s announcements
and notice published on 24 May 2019 and 11 June 2019, as well
as the circular dated 24 May 2019.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director, who
performs similar role as Chief Executive Officer, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The respective responsibilities of
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly defined and
set out in writing. The Chairman provides leadership for the
Board and is responsible for the effective functioning of the
Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for ensuring good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established. He
encourages all Directors to make full and active contribution to
the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in the
best interests of the Company. He ensures that appropriate steps
are taken to provide effective communication with shareholders
and their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. With
the support of the management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate information
(whether from senior management or otherwise) in a timely
manner, which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings as well as
to ensure constructive relations between the executive and
non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He
is in charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and
operations. The Managing Director is also responsible for
developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board’s approval, as well as developing policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The position of the Chairman is held by
Mr. Lu Quanzhang while the position of the Managing Director is
held by Mr. Tjia Boen Sien.

The Chairman has held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Group's
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees have complied with the Code Provisions
and are available on the Stock Exchange website
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website www.deson.com
and are available to shareholders upon request. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses. These Board committees will report back
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, Mr. Wang Jing Ning, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are the members
of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Siu Kam Chau is the
chairman of the committee. The primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations on
and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the
executives after consultation with the Chairman/Managing
Director and accessed to professional advice, at the Group’s
expense, when necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Group as
well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration
Committee normally meets towards the end of each year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and senior management and
other related matters. The Group’s remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive remuneration packages based on
business needs and market practice. Factors such as market rate,
an individual’'s qualification, experience, performance and time
commitment are taken into account during the remuneration
package determination process. The Remuneration Committee
met once during the year ended 31 March 2020 and reviewed
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors, independent
non-executive Directors and senior management for the year
under review. Recommendations have been made to the Board.
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Details of the attendance record of members of the ¥MEE&kEHFIHEFBEOT
Remuneration Committee are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
Name of Members REHSE REHERE
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien HISCRRE 11
Mr. Wang Jing Ning TRELE 1/1
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond g FR1E L+ 1/1
Ir Siu Man Po B SOE TAZAM 11
Mr. Siu Kam Chau EIRR L 1/1

Nomination Committee

Mr. Tjia Boen Sien, Mr. Wang Jing Ning, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond, Ir Siu Man Po and Mr. Siu Kam Chau are the members
of the Nomination Committee and Ir Siu Man Po is the chairman
of the committee. The primary objectives of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition and
identifying and nominating candidates for appointment to the
Board such that it has the relevant blend of skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural, educational background, professional
experience and diversity of perspectives. The Nomination
Committee also assesses the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment and reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. Candidates for appointment as
Directors may be sourced internally or externally through various
channels such as using the services of specialist executive search
firms. The aim is to appoint individuals of the highest caliber in
their area of expertise and experience. The Nomination
Committee met once during the year ended 31 March 2020 and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board for the
year under review.

Details of the attendance record of members of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

REZEES

WNBREE IREBEELE FEREL &
SORTIZEI RS EERIERZEGHKE -
MBEXKTIRMAZE IR -REEEE
MEIBEEDRITESTSNAR A REE
RRBEEANE UNRGESFSMTNIEH
o~ A ERI - FEe - XE - #BEESR
BEXEREZTBMN - RAZEGTNE
BYFRITEENBIMIREEREHNE
TEEREFUCHEINESTSRUER
EZNENAHAFREARESRITHAER
HIEERLRER  AEEESHEBEMHM
BMEEROBRASEN REBEE-_T_ZTF
ZR=1T-BHLFE RRZEEHTT —
RegF IREBEFERIESTSZ2RE -
ABR AR -

REZEEKEHRFETHABNT

Members’

Attendance

Name of Members REHR REHERE
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien FR S E 11
Mr. Wang Jing Ning TRESE 11
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fEEIE L 11
Ir Siu Man Po BRSO T2 AM 11
Mr. Siu Kam Chau EIRR L 1/1
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The following policy has been adopted by the nomination
committee to assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities as
provided in its terms of reference. The policy may be amended
from time to time by the committee as provided therein.

Recommended candidates
The committee shall consider any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any director or
shareholder; provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such recommendations comply with all
applicable notice requirements set forth in the Company's
Bye-laws, the procedures for a shareholder’s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting, and the Listing Rules.
The committee may also consider, in its sole discretion, any and
all candidates recommended as nominees for directors to it by
any source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high
integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, to provide the commitment to enhancing shareholder
value, practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates will
also be assessed in the context of the then-current composition
of the board, the operating requirements of the Company and
the long-term interests of all shareholders. In conducting this
assessment, the committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider diversity
(including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience and
skills) and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the
then-current and anticipated future needs of the board and the
Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the board. The committee
may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The above
diversity perspectives, taking into account the Company’s business
model and needs, are set out in a board diversity policy which
has been established by the Company to see that diversity on the
board can be achieved.
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Independence

The committee shall ensure that at least one-third of the board
members (or such other number of the members of the board as
prescribed by the Listing Rules from time to time) meet the
definition of independent non-executive director. The committee
shall annually assess each nominee for independent non-executive
director by reviewing any potential conflicts of interest that he or
she and their immediate family members (as defined in the Listing
Rules) may have, based on the criteria for independence set forth
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. A retiring independent
non-executive director who has served the board for a period of
nine consecutive years or more is eligible for nomination by the
board to stand for re-election at a general meeting provided that
he or she is still considered independent by the board.

The following information has been set out in the Company’s
circular to shareholders for the proposed resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director at the AGM:

1. the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why the Board considers the individual to be
independent;

2. if the proposed independent non-executive director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

3. the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

4. how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.
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Nominee evaluation process

The committee will consider as a candidate any director who has
indicated his or her willingness to stand for re-election and any
other person who is recommended by any shareholder. The
committee may also undertake its own search process for
candidates and may retain the services of professional firms or
other third parties to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
The committee may use any process it deems
appropriate for the purpose of evaluating candidates which is
consistent with those set forth in its terms of reference, the
Company’s Bye-laws, the corporate governance policy and the
policy described herein; provided that the process used for
evaluating a nominee for each election or appointment of director
shall be substantially similar and under no circumstances shall the
committee evaluate nominees recommended by a shareholder
pursuant to a process that is substantially different than that used
for other nominees for the same election or appointment of
director.

nominees.

Nomination procedures

1. The secretary of the committee shall call a meeting of the
committee, and invite nominations of candidates from board
members, if any, for consideration by the committee prior
to its meeting. The committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by board members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the committee shall make
recommendations for the board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at
a general meeting, the committee shall make nominations
to the board for its consideration and recommendation.

3. Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by
the board to stand for election at the general meeting.

4. In order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the board to stand for election at a general meeting, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set out
the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), and any other information, as required
pursuant to applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates.
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5. A shareholder can serve a notice to the board of directors
or the company secretary within the lodgement period of its
intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain person
as a director in accordance with the relevant procedures
posted on the Company’s website. The particulars of the
candidates so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular.

6. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his or her candidature
at any time before the general meeting by serving a notice
in writing to the board of directors or the company
secretary.

7. The board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

8. Shareholder proposed resolutions shall take the same form
as the resolutions proposed for the candidates
recommended by the board.

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the board
composition and independence of independent non-executive
directors, and considered the suitability of those retiring directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting as
well as the need for a director succession plan. The committee
also reviewed the nomination policy and the board diversity policy
and discussed the objectives set for implementing the latter, and
noted that those objectives had been achieved. The committee
concluded that the board composition should continue
unchanged.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors (including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Siu Kam Chau
is the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:
(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified

accountant, compliance officer (if any) or external auditor
before submission to the Board;
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(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees,
terms of engagement and independence, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management system,
internal control system and associated procedures; and

(d) to review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting staff, their training programs, and budget.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2020 to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, and discussed
matters concerning the effectiveness of internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditor. Minutes of Audit
Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft and final version of the minutes of meetings are
sent to all committee members for comments within a reasonable
time after the meeting. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Sufficient
resources are provided by the Company for the Audit Committee
to perform its duties.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

Details of the attendance record of members of the Audit
Committee are set out below:
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Name of Members REMHA REEHERE

Mr. Siu Kam Chau mIRFN A& 2/2

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond A5 F1E L+ 2/2
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Please refer to section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on page 47 of the Annual
Report for biographical details of the Company Secretary.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior management are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (“ESG REPORT")

The Company will issue a separate ESG Report no later than
three months after the publication date of this Annual Report in
compliance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy on 1 January 2019.
The Company’s dividend policy allows the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy, in
addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare interim
dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

(i) the Group’s general financial condition;

(i) the Group’s working capital and debt level;

(iii)  the Group's liquidity position;

(iv)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(v)  future cash
operations,
needs;

requirements and availability for business
business strategies and future development

(vi) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;
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(vii) the general market conditions;

(viii) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda, the
memorandum of association and Bye-Laws of the Company and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time
by the Board and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had engaged the
Group’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, to provide the following
services and their respective fees charged are set out below:

Fees charged for the year ended 31 March 2020:
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The board is responsible for ensuring the Group’s compliance
with its disclosure obligations regarding inside information, and
has appointed a disclosure group with specific designated duties
to assist it in, among other things, overseeing and co-ordinating
the disclosure of inside information. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
are given in the policy (the “PSI Policy”) adopted by the
Company to ensure that it is able to meet relevant obligations
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the “SFO"). The PSI Policy applies to the directors, officers
and employees of the Group. Under the PSI Policy, the Company
must disclose inside information to the public by way of an
announcement as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours described under
the SFO. Any director, officer or employee who becomes aware
of a matter, development or event that he or she considers to be,
or potentially to be, inside information shall report it promptly to
the disclosure group. Before the relevant information is fully
disclosed to the public, the disclosure group should take
reasonable precautions to ensure that the information is kept
strictly confidential. Where it is believed that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the information should be disclosed
immediately to the public. If the disclosure group needs time to
clarify the details of, and the impact arising from, an event or a
set of circumstances before it is in a position to issue a full
announcement to properly inform the public, the disclosure group
should consider issuing a “holding announcement” which details
as much ascertainable information of the subject matter as
possible and sets out the reasons why a fuller announcement
cannot be made. Following a holding announcement, the
disclosure group should ensure that a full announcement is made
as soon as reasonably practicable. In the event that confidentiality
has not been maintained and it is not able to make a full
announcement or a holding announcement, the disclosure group
should consider applying for a suspension of trading in the
Company’s securities, subject to approval of the board, until
disclosure can be made. All inside information related
announcements must be properly approved by the board before
publication, and all unpublished inside information must be kept
in strict confidence until a formal announcement is made. The
disclosure group must further ensure that access to unpublished
inside information is given only to employees on a
“need-to-know” basis for discharging their duties. Apart from
reporting to the disclosure group, every director, officer or
employee who possesses or has been given access to unpublished
inside information must not disclose, discuss or share such
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information to or with any other parties within or outside the
Group. The PSI Policy also sets out the criteria for advance
disclosure of inside information to certain categories of people as
may be necessary in the circumstances. In this case, the disclosure
group should monitor the situation so that disclosure may be
made as soon as reasonably practicable if there is any leakage of
information. Directors, officers and employees must refrain from
dealing in the shares of the Company at any time when they are
in possession of unpublished inside information. Securities
dealings are governed by the securities codes applicable to
directors and relevant employees (within the meaning of the CG
Code), as described in the section below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2020. The Company has adopted the same
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of
the Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the
Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high
standard of probity, openness, and accountability. A
Whistleblowing Policy is in place to create a system for the
employees and other stakeholders of the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties. The identity
of each whistleblower and all information provided in connection
with a whistleblowing report will be treated with the strictest
confidence.
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Continuous Disclosure Policy

A Continuous Disclosure Policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information as defined in the SFO is identified and
confidentiality of such information is maintained until timely and
appropriate disclosure is made in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The policy regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information, which includes:

o Roles and responsibilities of the divisions/departments of the
Company in identifying and escalating any potential inside
information within the Company; and

o Procedures for determining the necessity, means and/or
extent of disclosure of such information.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial
period with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the financial year. Management of the
Company has provided such explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval. The Group’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Group has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates.

The Directors endeavour to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s position and
prospect in the annual reports, interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020. The statement of the external auditor of the Group about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 74 to 83.
Management of the Group is obligated to provide sufficient
explanation and information to the Board so that it can make
informed assessment of relevant matters.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING
Risk Management and Internal Control

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of
such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the
risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

impact of risks and

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted
significant risk was identified.

in 2019/20, no

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the
Group;

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed;
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Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out;

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

. The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2019/20, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as
Certified Public Accountant). The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s reviews,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (ii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its review and the reviews made by IA
function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that
the resources, staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff
were adequate and the training programs and budget provided
were sufficient.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining an open and effective
investor relations policy and to updating investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings with institutional
investors and analysts are conducted from time to time. The
Company also replied to any enquiries from shareholders in a
timely manner. The Directors host the annual general meeting
each year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The corporate website of the Company at www.deson.com
provides a communication platform via which the public and
investor community can access up-to-date information regarding
the Group.
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The Company’s 2019 AGM was held on 20 August 2019. The
notice of the 2019 AGM, the annual report and the circular
containing relevant information of the proposed resolutions were
sent to shareholders more than 20 clear business days before the
2019 AGM. All Board members, except Mr. Lu Quanzhang
together with the key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2019 AGM. The executive Director explained the
poll voting procedures at the 2019 AGM. Separate resolutions for
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of
individual Directors, were proposed at the 2019 AGM. All the
resolutions at the 2019 AGM were dealt with by poll. The poll
results of the 2019 AGM are available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Shareholders may also send any enquiries, suggestions or
concerns to the Board at any time through the Company
Secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Address The Company Secretary
Deson Development International
Holdings Limited
11th Floor, Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email deson@deson.com
Telephone no. (852) 2570 1118
Fax no. (852) 3184 3402

The Company Secretary will forward such communications to the
Board, the relevant Board committees and/or the Chief Executive
Officer, as appropriate.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of the
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual
general meeting. Voting at the forthcoming annual general
meeting will be by way of a poll. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be provided to shareholders
at the commencement of the annual general meeting to ensure
that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.
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Poll results will be counted by Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited and will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange on the day the annual
general meeting held. The general meetings of the Company
provide an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well
as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions
at the annual general meetings. The Company will also arrange
for the external auditor to attend the annual general meetings to
answer relevant questions if necessary.

Separate resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

In addition to regular Board meetings, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, may convene a
special general meeting to address specific issues of the Company
within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice to the
Company Secretary, at the Company’s head office at 11th Floor,
Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionist(s). Shareholders may also
use this same method to put forward proposals for the next
general meeting.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow the
shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.
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EY:

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Deson Development International
Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 222, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BEETEE

BRFTEEA)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEESTRNAEHD

Valuation of investment properties

REMHEME

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value amounted to
HK$947,100,000 with an aggregate loss arising from
the changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss of HK$22,758,000 for the year then
ended. The valuation process is inherently subjective,
and dependent on a number of estimates. To support
management’s determination of the fair value, the
Group has engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to perform the valuation of investment
properties.

RZEZZTF=A=+—H ' BEEEMFENERED
R AFEFE/A947,100,0008 T HEZHIEFE
REREANBRBATEEMEENEEER
22,758,000 7T « (HERFAE LB - REUARE
Tihst- AHBEREEEATE  BE5EDZESE
VAW RHEEERNEEMEREMEETRE-

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements.

HEERBEHNMERERMEIR14 -

Our audit procedures included the evaluation of the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuer,
and assessment of their valuation methodology. We
examined the data used as inputs for the valuation,
which included making reference to the market unit
selling price of comparable properties nearby used in the
valuation and performing market value benchmarking
against comparable properties. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
key assumptions and methodologies for the valuation of
the investment properties held by the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEESER
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FARETSEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEESTRNAEHD

Net realisable value assessment on properties held for sale under development and properties held for

sale

BRRVPSEVERGEVR TR R FENG

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's properties held for
sale under development and properties held for sale
amounted to HK$145,038,000 and HK$493,153,000,
respectively. Properties held for sale under
development and properties held for sale were stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net
realisable value of these properties was assessed by
management and was heavily influenced by
developments in the housing market in Mainland
China and economic considerations. To assist
management’s determination of the net realisable
value, the Group has engaged an independent
professionally qualified valuer to perform the valuation
of certain of these properties.
RZEZZTF=A=+T—H ' BE5EMFHENEET
TEMERGFEMWE D R K145,038,000% 7T &
493,153,000 7T ° ERPFEME LFEYEZAAK
HA R FECHANREERY - ZEWERNF] FIH
FEREBRENTEL RIS E A EERE TS REE
BANERTE SR EREEENZRFE &
SECEZRBUNHEXEERNGEMYE TZEY
FETHE-

Our audit procedures included the understanding and
reviewing of management’s assessment process and
assumptions adopted; referring to externally available
industry and market data; and considering actual sales
transactions of the Group’s properties during the year
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

B EAEFERERERENEEENTHBRE LA
RMRR - 2R EENTERTSHRE  LEE
FARBERRRE BEXREVENBERHEERS -

R

e

HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFF

77



78

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB, E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEESEE

BRFTSEEA)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEESTROAEHD

Net realisable value assessment on properties held for sale under development and properties held for

sale (Continued)

BREPGENERSTEWE TR R FETME (H)

The assessment was significant to our audit,
considering the complexity of the estimation process
where construction budgeting is involved; the
estimation of sales proceeds and the assumptions used
in the estimates; and the degree of judgement
involved.

ERE P MEERE - AETHEMBRERETA
MR ARHEORE - SIREFHEFEE - AR
FEMNFEHRMNEAFFTEER

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 18 to
the financial statements.

MHERES N BRI EIRI8 -

When external valuation was performed by the valuer
and considered by management to assist their net
realisable value assessment, we evaluated the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the valuer, and performed
assessment on their valuation methodology. We
discussed with and understood from management for
how they would apply the valuation in their net
realisable value assessment and the rationale. We
examined the data used as inputs for the valuation,
which included making reference to the market unit
selling price of comparable properties nearby used in the
valuation and performing market value benchmarking
against comparable properties. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
key assumptions and methodologies for the valuation of
the properties subject to such valuation.
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Key audit matter
B EBE
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FARETSEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEER TR A

Valuation of unlisted equity investments

HELTRERENMGE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s unlisted equity
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to HK$124,931,000, which were
measured at fair value and categorised as Level 3
within the fair value hierarchy with significant
unobservable inputs. The Group has engaged an
independent professionally qualified valuer to perform
the valuation of these investments. The external valuer
has applied valuation techniques to determine the fair
value of these unlisted investments that were not
quoted in active markets. These valuation techniques,
in particular those including significant unobservable
inputs, involved subjective judgements and
assumptions. Changes in the key inputs and
assumptions on which the fair value of these unlisted
equity investments is based could have a material
impact on the valuation of these unlisted investments
as at the end of the reporting period and could
significantly affect the change in fair value being
recognised for the reporting period.
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 16 and

36 to the financial statements.

AR BN S RAMES - 16236 °

Our audit procedures included the evaluation of the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuer,
and assessment of their valuation methodology. We
reviewed and tested the inputs and assumptions used for
the valuation of the unlisted equity investments. We also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the key assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the unlisted equity investments of the
Group, such as market comparables, discount rates,
volatility through comparison with the valuation
methodologies that are commonly used in the market
and checking various inputs used against available
market information.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

omissions,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB, E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

resulting

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

26 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— A = N Z
1%5': (=] jﬁ m '13-%
Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-_T-_TF=RA=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E_ZHF —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE FET FET
REVENUE A 5 351,614 259,417
Cost of sales $HE P AR (267,766) (168,056)
Gross profit EH 83,848 91,361
Other income and gains H U A R = 5 9,393 11,694
Fair value gain/(loss) BEMEZ NFEKE
on investment properties (EB#8) (22,758) 66,456
Administrative expenses THEFEX (73,498) (72,349)
Other operating expenses, net Hib &Y - 558 (20,664) (54,502)
Finance costs BIEER 7 (9,544) (1,566)
Share of profits and losses of associates JE(RERZ N alHFI KM Es1E (1,790) (4,527)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB AT R (E518) 6 (35,013) 36,567
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 10 (2,523) (13,165)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR NEFHF(EE) (37.536) 23,402
Attributable to: AT pEAG -
Owners of the Company KABEB A (35,296) 27,486
Non-controlling interests FEVERRE (2,240) (4,084)
(37,536) 23,402
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ARl EBRAEEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY EhERETR, (EE)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted HAREE (3.61) 2.81
12 cents Bl cents &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

medEWaEE
Year ended 31 March 2020
BHE-Z-_ZTF=A=1+—HLEFE

2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-hEF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEF N, (BE) (37,536) 23,402
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS) Hfh & E Wz (E518)
Other comprehensive loss that may be — A& B ATREEFT H 48
reclassified to profit or loss in EERCHEMEE
subsequent periods: EiE
Exchange differences: ME 5 Z 58
Exchange differences on translation of — BEBINERFTEE 2
foreign operations fE N =% (82,060) (83,352)
Share of other comprehensive loss of JEIREE AR E M EmE
associates 518 (2,763) (1,608)
Reclassification adjustment of exchange AFEHERZ RG] 2
differences of associates disposed of N EREEMDEARE
during the year (726) —
Reclassification adjustment of exchange  ANFEER A2 — K B
differences of a subsidiary dissolved NAElZERZFEEN
during the year DI (1,184) —
Net other comprehensive loss that may 7 A 18 HARS 45 °] £ & #r
be reclassified to profit or loss in NEEEmcEMERE
subsequent periods B8 F 58 (86,733) (84,960)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ RIABEIM B & EH
will not be reclassified to profit or loss  HDfEEEZz EME2H
in subsequent periods: W, (E18) :
Equity investment designated at fair value 3§E &R A FEAEAM
through other comprehensive income: EEEIRERE
Changes in fair value N EEEH 7,550 (8,400)
Income tax effect stz & 27 (537) 622
Leasehold land and buildings: et RiEF
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation SsEAHS(EH) 13 (7,218) 14,422
Income tax effect Frigfis e 27 1,446 (2,663)
Share of other comprehensive income FE(G B & A R Hth 2
of associates Wz — 715
Net other comprehensive income that will RIABHIRE K A& EH
not be reclassified to profit or loss in NDEEEEHMEE
subsequent periods et F 58 1,241 4,696
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE N4/ H Al 2 EE1E -
YEAR, NET OF TAX BRA 1R (85,492) (80,264)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE A E 2 HEE B2
YEAR (123,028) (56,862)
Attributable to: LA (G -
Owners of the Company KAREE A (120,788) (52,790)
Non-controlling interests FEIE I e 2 (2,240) (4,072)
(123,028) (56,862)

HERREBREEGRAAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B AR R &

31 March 2020
R-EZZZEF=A=+—H

86

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB k& 13 352,089 228,562
Investment properties KEME 14 947,100 1,031,589
Investments in associates REENR K& 15 22,476 27,109
Equity investment designated at fair value TR A FEF AEM
through other comprehensive income FEWE RIEERE 16 — 9,400
Equity investments at fair value through ZAFEFABZEZ
profit or loss I ¥ & 16 124,931 105,380
Total non-current assets ERBEERLE 1,446,596 1,402,040
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from associates FE U B 8 A B 5RIR 15 5,242 4,515
Due from related companies FE W BEE A R FKIA 17 1,291 4,237
Properties held for sale under BRPSEVERSE
development and properties held LES
for sale 18 638,191 973,913
Inventories e 19 12,729 11,505
Accounts receivable W BRIE 20 34,442 20,655
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE - e R EHM
receivables JiE W R IE 21 43,030 46,789
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 5 18 22,108 27,234
Pledged deposits [z iRER N 22 3,500 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEER 22 20,099 29,487
780,632 1,121,335
Non-current asset classified DEARBIELE ZIERE
as held for sale BiE 23 — 68,589
Total current assets MENE E S 780,632 1,189,924
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e RN XK
31 March 2020
R-E-ZEF=F=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FET FAT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts payable JEfHBRIE 24 8,160 6,655
Other payables and accruals HAth e 5B R BT & 25 71,260 299,480
Due to associates JE A< B 2 R B FOE 15 8,280 5,177
Tax payable FET R IE 19,715 22,499
Interest-bearing bank and other STERITREMEE
borrowings 26 191,423 226,632
Total current liabilities MEEERT 298,838 560,443
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENE EFE 481,794 629,481
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHABERRBAERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,928,390 2,031,521
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE
Interest-bearing bank and other AFERITREMEER
borrowings 26 231,550 192,642
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEEE 27 181,164 191,538
Total non-current liabilities ERB B ERRE 412,714 384,180
Net assets BEFAE 1,515,676 1,647,341
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the A TFEE AEGES
Company
Issued capital BT 28 97,788 97,788
Reserves & 30 1,422,917 1,553,485
1,520,705 1,651,273
Non-controlling interests IR ER (5,029) (3,932)
Total equity DB 1,515,676 1,647,341

Tjia Boen Sien
& 3 B
Director

EF

Wang Jing Ning
IRE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERERBER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-Z-ZSF=-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREAES
Share Property Capital Share  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  Contributed Other  revaluation  Fair value Capital ~ redemption option fluctuation ~ Reserve  Retained controling Total
capital  account  suplus  reseve  reseve  resenve  reserve  reserve reseieresenve funds profits Total  interests equity
BEfT [l nEER  ATE EREE  BRE EXR® FER

fr EEE  EEER  EMEE B BE  ArRE Ei B BE  EEER  REEA & L
Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS00D ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKFOOO  HKSO0D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Wi TAT TAn TEr TR TEr TEr TEn TR TR TEr  TEx  TEn TR TEn TEn

At 1 April 2018 RZF-\EMA-A 97,788 243,040 15,262 23,061 129,250 559 (9,240) 14,451 2398 85,383 91 1,100998 1,708,952 (609) 1,708,343
Profit for the year REZER - - - - - - - - - - - UM% 486 (4088 23402
Other comprehensive income/ ~ AFFEf2EkE/

(loss) for the year: (58):
Surplus on revaluation BREELIREFL

of leasehold land and B HREE

buildings, net of tax — — - — 11,759 — — — - — — — 1,759 — 11,759
Share of other comprehensiie  EUEBELTEMEE

income/(loss) of associates Wi/ (B18) - - - - 715 - - - — (1608 - - (893) - (893)

Changes in fair value of equiy ~ BAFEHAZHZE
investment at fair value i hRERE

through other ATEEY Hik

comprehensive income, #8

et of tax - - - - -0 - - - - - - -
Exchange differences on BEENRHRELL

tranlation of foreign EXER

operations — — - — — — — — - (83,364) — = (83304) 12 (83352)

Total comprehensive loss TEEREEEEE

for the year - - - - 12474 (1,778) - - - (84,972) - 21,486 (52,790) (4072)  (56,862)
Release of revaluation reserve  EfEEE 7 B - - - - 5 - - - - - - 5,004 - - -
Expiry of share options BREER 29 - - - — - - - - (23%) — - 23% - -
Final 2018 dividend paid BRZZ-N\EXH
R& - - - - - - - - - - - (4,889) (4,889) - (4,889)
Contrioutions from REFARERNTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - L 9
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=A
=t-8 97,788 243,040 15262 23,061* 136,720 (2,184 (9240 14457* —* 41* 91* 1,130997* 1,651,273 (393) 1,647,341
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREEgBR

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE_Z_ZF=-A=+—-HBIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARAAEL
Share Property Capital ~ Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Contributed Other revaluation Fair value Capital redemption fluctuation ~ Reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  account surplus— reserve reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve funds profits Total  interests equity
BEf k NEEE  AVE ErBE  EXRD FER
B BEE REER ABEE % fE  AARHE % B fEEe  REEd @it 3 4:51 ]
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
LiF:3 Tén  TEn Tén  TEn Tén  TEx  TEn Tén Thz  TEz  TEn  TEx  TEx  TEn
At 1 April 2019 RZF-NEWA-A 97788 243,040 15,262 23,061 136,720 (2,184) (9,240) 14,457 m 91 1130997 1,651,273 (3,932) 1,647,341
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - —  (3520) (3529  (2240) (37536
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for ~ AFE M2 AN/
the year: (Bi)
Deficit on revaluation of leasehold land ~ EfEHETHRETF
and buidings, net of tax B RKEE - - - - (5772 - - - - - (5m) - 5m)
Share of other comprehensive loss of Sﬁé‘”?%%@
associates 3 - - - - - - - (2763) - - (2763) - (2763)
Changes in fair value of equity HERA
investment designated at fair value BRI
through other comprehensive RELATHEED
income, net of tax HE3E — — — — — 7013 - - — — 7013 - 7013
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEFHERFMEL L
foreign operations EREE -~ - -~ - -~ - - (82,060) -~ —  (82,060) —  (82,060)
Reclassfication adjustment of exchange ~ AFEHEBALEZ
differences of associates disposed of ER2BENSE
during the year FEd -~ - -~ - -~ - - (726) -~ -~ (126) - (726)
Reclassfication adjustment of exchange ~ AFEEEZ—TNE
differences of a subsidiary dissolved RAZERER
during the year EfipERE - - - - - - - (1,184) - = (1189 = (118
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEEREERAE — — — — (5,772) 7013 — (86,733) —  (35296) (120,788) (2,240)  (123,028)
Release of revaluation reserve EfffE2RR - - - - (5,405) - - - - 5,405 - - -
Release of reserve funds of a subsidiary ~ AEREH 2 —FNE
dissolved during the year RAREESEZ
BE - - - - - - - - (961) 91 - - -
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the  HERERATEA
disposal of an equity investment Et2ERES
designated at fair value through TR EREE
other comprehensive income DTERE - - - - - (4,829 - - - 4,829 - - -
Final 2019 dividend paid ERZE-NEXE
(&S il - - - - - - - - - (4,890) (4,890) - (4,890)
Special 2019 dividend paid ENZE-NERD
Ra 1 - - - - - - - - - (4,890) (4,890) - (4,890)
Contributions from non-controlling REFEREENTE
inferests - - - - - - - - - - - 1143 1,143
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-%E=3
=t-f 97,788 243,040* 15.262* 23,061* 125,543+ —* (9,240 14,457 (86,322)% —* 1,097,116* 1,520,705 (5,029) 1,515,676

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,422,917,000 (2019: HK$1,553,485,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess of the
nominal value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof, pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on 21 May
1997.

The reserve funds of the Group include statutory reserves
required to be appropriated from the profits after tax of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China under the laws and
regulations of the People's Republic of China (“PRC”). The
amount of the appropriation is at the discretion of these
subsidiaries’ boards of directors.

* RERHBERBIERE
1,422,917,0008 T (= &
BIL) ©

TR MBIMRNERNZERE
—JL% 1 1,553,485,000
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE-_Z-_ZF=F=+—HALFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % FTET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBHESRTRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREL AR A, (ER) - (35,013) 36,567
Adjustments for: B THIEB EH T
Finance costs % E R 7 9,544 1,566
Share of profits and losses of JE AR B A B s A 2
associates E18 1,790 4,527
Interest income F B U A 5 (130) (1,084)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment ?ﬁﬁ%%Z@?@Eﬁ
properties B (W= 6 22,758 (66,456)
Dividend income from equity EAYE Jr)\?ﬁ 2AR.Z
investments at fair value through IR iR & 2 REHA
profit or loss 5 (1,900) (722)
Dividend income from a financial asset R AFEFF ABZEY
at fair value through profit or loss TREEREBA 5 — (48)
Fair value gain on financial assets at BATESABREY
fair value through profit or loss CRVEEAFEYE 5 — (118)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BEKEE
plant and equipment T B &8 6 131 96
Loss on disposal of associates HER &R E L EE 6 493 —
Depreciation e 6 8,931 8,435
Provision/(reversal of provision) for net FEME 2 JEIRFE
realisable value of properties held for e (BERE)
sale 6 4,430 (12,870)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for FERE(BERER)
inventories 6 (360) 836
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) o JE Y BR B R B,
accounts receivable CRER ) 6 (81) 728
Impairment of other receivables H h fE WK IBR(E 6 142 1,902
Fair value loss on equity investments at R AFEFABZREY
fair value through profit or loss RiERE 2 A TFE
718 6 14,806 35,984
Impairment of investments in REEE R RIRE
associates /JEH 6 — 27,190
25,541 36,533
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from J&ULE4:E N &) 5018
related companies WA (38 ) 2,946 (758)
Decrease in properties held for sale BRPGEMERSE
under development and properties held #7128 2>
for sale 154,271 135,410
Increase in inventories FE N (904) (4,146)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts JRE Wit B TEUR (38 n)
receivable (14,279) 11,744
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR - e REM
deposits and other receivables PRI R A (35 0) 1,629 (19,270)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable — FE{BRIEIZ A0, (Rl 2) 1,733 (5,018)
Decrease in other payables and accruals — Hth 1+ F0 18 K2 g 51 2
VR (215,167) (377)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #X& %518, (BT )
b= (44,230) 154,118
Interest paid EATFIE (27,963) (32,750)
Overseas taxes paid B INETE (5.633) (35,835)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating #R& %£%E,(FiA)
activities RERE ?%ﬁ (77,826) 85,533
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=

RELRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BT -_FTF=A=1+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHxT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEXBHFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2T B 130 1,084
Dividend received from equity TE’&?TEH‘)\TE BEZHX
investments at fair value through profit — #£1%%& 8 U &
or loss 1,900 722
Dividend received from a financial asset & A FEFFABL @Ezﬁﬁ
at fair value through profit or loss BEEE WS — 48
Purchases of equity investments at fair B EZEAFE staE
value through profit or loss RS E (34,357) (66,364)
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEAWE - BE KRR E
equipment BH 13 (1,356) (44)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - KERZHEE
property, plant and equipment ERECS /e 4 61
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&IZAFE ABw
at fair value through profit or loss 2 EEEEMSRIE — 4,628
Proceeds from disposal of an equity HEETIRAFESTA
investment designated at fair value Hih2E a2 R
through other comprehensive income A RS EE 16,950 —
Proceeds from disposal of associates, net i &E#: =X a5 RUIA -
of directly attributable transaction costs ?D%E%J‘Efﬁ’ SRR 66,837 —
Repayment from/(advances to) associates, & A A]{EES[FFHIE
net L UNCIE SN A
) - R 2,376 (4,020)
Capital contributions to associates QL EWNCIbEE- — (15,460)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2 EIAEFUR L, (3& 1) (500) 115,000
Net cash flows from investing activities R EEKHBRERE
SEER 51,984 35,655
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXBHERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings LR T &ﬁm{ﬁ% 134,849 164,966
Repayment of bank and other Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ{
borrowings (125,751) (320,839)
Contributions to subsidiaries from non- ?fﬁ e EaEli =N
controlling interests EE 1,143 749
Dividends paid EH % B (9,780) (4,889)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BEE %S, (FFMA)
activities HeneE 5 461 (160,013)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReMBHEEFEEBRD
EQUIVALENTS FER (25,381) (38,825)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENZEENMRELEE
of year BH 28,130 68,259
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXREH) 2 52 - B4
net (562) (1,304)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEEMNAZEFE
AT END OF YEAR BH 2,187 28,130
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND R & RIR&EEIEH &
CASH EQUIVALENTS Z M
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHE 22 20,099 29,487
Bank overdrafts RITEX 26 (17,912) (1,357)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RIS REXRMIIZRE
the statement of cash flows FIRE&EEIER 2,187 28,130
HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFFRH
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
Deson Development International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 11th Floor, Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o property development and investment; and

o trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of the

AAREEER

HEERERSEARA

A ([A28])

E-RARBREEMXNIZERETR
Al e RARZ TBEERMEREBILE
BRIBEEST B FRES 1118

FRAEEZEBHRENT

s DEREBEREEE R

° =

LEm°

FHEHBRRANESR

EEEERBEIERZLAED

RBERRARREEMBRRNFIT

end of the reporting period are as follows: e
Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered Class of attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
EMRL BRTLE/ ARAEGES
28 EEE Sk HMBAE FER G ER BAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Advancost Assets Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
("BVI"/Hong Kong) 1ET TRk REER
REBRTES
((£RRLEE]),/ B
Allied Health Elements Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary — 90  Selling of wellness and
ERBERRERAR % 10,0007 L@k pandemic
prevention
products
HERRRMRER
Blocks Success International Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
RERRES/FH 1E2T BBk REER
Century Logistics Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
ERELES /B 1=r EEk REER
Deson Commercial City Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
BEAZRBRAT BB 10,0007 EBK REER
Deson Development Holdings Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$200 Ordinary 100 — Investment holding
ERRREBBRAF ERELES /B 200%7 EBR REER

Deson Development International Holdings Limited

2020 Annual Report




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—E-RF=A=+—H
1. ARAREEEHR (&)
ERNBLATINESR (&)

Issued ordinary/
registered Class of

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
MR BRITEE/ ARREGES
28 EPEE SR HMBRE ARG ER BAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Deson Dynasty Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
BERARE (FH)ERAA BE BT EBRR REER
Deson Innovative Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
BERENBRBERERAA B BT LAk REER
Deson Innovative Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary - 100  Selling, distribution
BEEEEARERAR B 1,000,000 7T L@k and marketing of
home security and
automation
products
HE DHRERE
FERZRED
Em
Deson Medical Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
ERRLEE/BE [EV-3 1 REEK
Deson (Ningbo) Ventures Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$100  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
HE(ER)REBRAR EBRIES/BA 10027 EREK REER
Deson Property Development (Kaifeng) Co., Ltd. (a)* PRC/Mainland China HK$311,880,000 N/A — 100  Property development
HMEEERE (FH) ERARE* HE/HERL 311,880,000% 7 @A NEER
Deson Ventures (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
BEEX(FE)BRAR BE BT EBRR REER
Deson Ventures Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1  Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
BEREBRAF ERRLEE/BE [EV-3 1 REER
Gosford Technology Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary - 100  Investment holding
RERRES/FE 1ET BBk REER
Grand On Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary — 100  Property holding
BREEERAF B BT LAk nEER
Medical Technologies Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100  Trading of medical
HERREEESERAA B 10,0008 7T LiER equipment
BEFRERXEFRAT -—T-TEER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

Issued ordinary/

RAREEESR (&)

FRANRBAIANER (F)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered Class of attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital shares held Company Principal activities
EMRL BRTLE/ ARAEGES
A8 EBEE Sk SMBA FER G ER BAL TEXH
Direct Indirect
¢ [k
MTL Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary - 100  Installation and
HERBERTIRERAAF &k 28T LER maintenance of
medical equipment
and health care
products
TERBEBRESR
RREER
New Perfect Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
ERELEE/BH 1%T EBR REER
Often Reach Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
EBRLRS /B 12T BBk REER
Super Sight Investments Inc.* BVI/Mainland China US$1  Ordinary — 100  Property development
RERTES/RERM 1%7T EBR NEER
Universal Focus Developments Limited* BVI/Hong Kong HK$390,000 Ordinary — 80 Investment holding
RRARES/FH 390,000 L@k REER
Win Glory Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100 Human resources
RIUBEERARA &k 10,0007 EHBK ANER
Wonderful Hope Limited* BVI/Mainland China US$1 Ordinary — 100  Property development
RERAES/TEND %0 BEk NERR
Woodmont Profits Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
ERELES/BH 1%7T EBR REER
Yan Man Developments Limited* BVI/Hong Kong US$1 Ordinary — 100  Investment holding
EBRLRS /B 1E27T BBk REER
BEGREXBRARF (@ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 N/A — 100  Property investment
HE/RE R, AR¥E TER NERE
10,000,0007T
(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. (a) RERBERFMAIEBERE -
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * REBBLRKGTMEEI AR KE

of the Ernst & Young global network.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for leasehold land and buildings
classified as property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

2.1
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment

HKAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs, are described below:

(a)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. HKFRS 16 did not have any
significant impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 April 2019. Under this method, the
comparative information for 2019 was not restated
and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be
applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 April 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS
16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
properties. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases
of low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 April 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were quantified and
assessed by management based on the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 April 2019.

All the right-of-use assets were assessed for any
impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to present the right-of-use assets in the
balance of property, plant and equipment in the
statement of financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation)
previously included in investment properties and
measured at fair value, the Group has continued to
include them as investment properties at 1 April
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value
applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application;

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease; and

J Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
when measuring the lease liabilities at 1 April
2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 by the
Group did not give rise to any additional lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019, as the Group considered
that the financial impact of the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 to be immaterial to the Group on 1 April
2019. Moreover, the Group’s leasehold land previously
included in property, plant and equipment of
HK$135,456,000 was reclassified to right-of-use assets
included in property, plant and equipment upon initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019. There were
no changes to different line item of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The adoption has had no impact on the
Group's equity as at 1 April 2019.

There is no significant difference between the amount
of operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019
disclosed applying the previous standards (see note
32(b)), discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 April 2019 and the amount of lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019 as quantified and assessed
by management.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity
applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is
then applied to the net investment, which includes
the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and
impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group assessed its business model
for its long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures upon adoption of the amendments on 1
April 2019 and concluded that the long-term interests
in associates and joint ventures continued to be
measured at amortised cost in accordance with HKFRS
9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about
the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The Group considered that the interpretation did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business'
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Definition of Material’

HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on
the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

24 FTEEHHRRBE

RBERANRE
BERREAKRERER —RTPR20%
B EEENRDED YA HEER
BEAFENNER - EAFENESHE
WIRE T WM ERREOESN - BIF
PR R R ) % F B o

AEERBZRRNREAERGFE
BRAEBERIEEEFEREMRERSE
RER A M BIRRRIIE - @5 EBRIA
ERAMFEHARE . B

AEBE RS N R RBR G R
2HEREDFINGEEBRRREEHMD
EHERERRIIE Lo - HERREE
NEMEGER -RES  IAKES
BIFBEARGE RSB REREGIE
Mg AEEEEBENRRFESE
B R 5 30 Wi i K% B 1R T R AN 5% 1B P A B
BRRMREL DI - A ERRE
RABRBREHNEREE LR
BERIRRSN - B2 R BIFTELNHE
FRAREEEBERRWRE -

HEBERRNRERBY —REED
ENREIERBERLER - BIFEE
et ERTED  MeR@ERERER
BB - EFIAEMBERT - HXRE
HBENRNERFENIYUEELE
R EES  AEEGRENFENE
LEREREFRE - REHBE QT
B R E N HFEGIR 2 R FH
FHERRFREQATERLERER
BZENEZENBHERER




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash- generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its leasehold land and buildings
classified as property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and equity investments designated at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, leasehold lands and buildings classified as
property, plant and equipment, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)
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the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a party, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Land and buildings, classified as right-of-use assets and
owned assets, are measured at fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of
property, plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the property revaluation reserve. If the total of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer
from the property revaluation reserve to retained profits is
made for the difference between the depreciation based on
the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the property
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis to write off the cost or valuation
amount of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining lease terms

Leasehold Over the remaining lease terms
improvements

Furniture and 15% on the reducing balance basis
fixtures

Office equipment 15% on the reducing balance basis

Tools and 15% on the reducing balance basis
equipment

Motor vehicles 15% on the reducing balance basis

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation amount of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2019: leasehold property under an operating lease)
which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the assets or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and
its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair value less costs to sell.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, except for land which is
measured at fair value, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease

terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)  Right-of-use assets (Continued)
When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land held as inventories, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with the Group's policy
for “inventories”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in
investment properties. The corresponding right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group's policy for “investment properties”.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

TESTHHEBE (8)

HE(BZZ-NFHA-HEE

) (&)

FEEDBABEA (E

@ RABEE (&)
EEAREERFEFENHEE
TR AR - ARIRAKE
776 | BUK - PARK 7N 82 7] 8 38 )%
EMEFREETE - EEME
BENAREMENERR Al
FRAREMES - HEEREE
ENFZEAANTE  HRBEAX
SEREDFE | BRE R FER

=
= °

(b) HEEIE
HMERBERNHEHERKBY  &#
REHAFELNBEEN KR ER
R HEMNRBEEEHKEA (B
BHE FEE IR B R
&= MAZEBEEFREBEINEBOR
R—IEEHNLEX  RAAY
REFGEEERETXNNE
B HEFEANBRAEBRTEA
SEETITENBEERITEE
AR BT LR
I BHER FTEEMSI R - W IE
HURN — BRI R EHE
IR - RE B A F A SRR
BHANHARERRAX -

R EREFRRER  AKE
EREEMK A HANIEEEER
o RAZEERNSHOMERILIF
AR EE - KM A MK M
ERESBEERRFNSEME
LI ENFOR D - s
i HIRAEET - HEIEE - HER
REB (Plants Bkt R B EHEH
ARHEFRES)) KBERBE
EEEENFGEHRES HE
BENKREESRENTE -

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH

e

117



118

Notes to Financial Statements
R

31 March 2020
—E-_TF=R=+—H

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
and rewards incidental to of ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the statement of profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit
or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months (a 12 month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

next

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk

has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at

the reporting date (but that are not

purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 1

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables, certain accruals, amounts due to associates
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the
higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance
with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale under development and
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended for sale
are included in properties held for sale under development
and properties held for sale and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, which is estimated by the
directors based on the prevailing market conditions. Costs
include all costs directly incurred in the properties under
development, including development expenditure, borrowing
costs and other direct costs.

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all development
expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices on
an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and a joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one vyear, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(a) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when the purchasers obtained the
physical possession of the completed property, and
the Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

(b) Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at

the point in time when control of the assets is

transferred to customers, generally on delivery of

products.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfer control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
trinomial model, further details of which are given in note
29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However,
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

if a new award is

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
(loss) per share.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who were eligible to participate. The ORSO
Scheme operated in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee left the ORSO Scheme
before his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group were reduced by the relevant amount
of the forfeited contributions. With effect from 1 December
2000, the Group has operated both schemes and those
employees who are not eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate of 7.3% (2019: 7.4%) has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum of association and
Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

24 FESHHRREE (F)

I
WEMBERRTIARNRB 2 e EHE
TEHIER - REBANESEERIYBITRE
HEEY  MEEER Y BHRER
BEZHBARAZNERERAE - K
SEETERMLHRIINEEER S &
AR ZE R ZIe EHE Rk o A
SINERTEZEREENBBERBERNR
ZUMEEEBERME - ERIERHE X
BMEELAZZHRNERRER -

PASNES R St (R AT 2 FFEHIR B &
N ZERZEXRBE - LINERTFE
AEZERHAREEAFEERLZ
ExBE - MERATEFEZIER
HEMEL 2 WS E IR RERZIER
R EEB 2 BEZEE AR (]
REMEEEENXBRTHRIAXTER
BRBZBMEER  ToRREME
Y sk B i)

RETERERBEEE ZEX - BUH
ERBRREEAIEEEEENRIER
BEZAXIWAR - NHX5 B8R
AEBVIRERTARREMELIFES
BESIFEBAEER - WEZHEAN
FOAKFBWFR - AAREETE &IAA
WHRENKIWRZXZH B -




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of contracts
related to sale of properties

The Group determined that the sales contract with
customers requires the Group to complete the development
of property before transferring the legal title of the relevant
property to customers. The Group also determined that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment from
customers for performance completed to date before the
transfer of legal title of the relevant property to customers.
Consequently, the Group concluded that the timing of
transfer of properties is at the point in time when the
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property.

3.

TESTHE R MG

EEEREANRE B HmKRE - AIE
B R RERR  MAFHE - S
AthBREmEHRz s X BE
REBEZE2H - REBEMRENL LA
BEREEELATE - HRNABRRM
ERTFETEERE - Hib A e 8A
RERUZZEZEES BB ZIREE
EHERAE -

¥
FRREE T GHRER - BRI
E5h - EEBEL TOIH SRR DR
REEHEBEA 2 W

BEREELEYFEEHSH 2
=)
AEEBEREFPRIZHERNLA
FHEEYMERERTEA AIEEBY
EZBEMBEETRERP - A%ETN
MEBABNEZLEMAREBETE
Pl AEBELERE S TKELE
IR R R BTSN 2 R » At -
AEERRMEERZRREMDERE
ERMBERIMEZELEREEILTE
FrA R 2B




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value does not exist; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections, including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards of
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out on and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(¢) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March
2020 was HK$947,100,000 (2019: HK$1,031,589,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Estimation of net realisable value of properties

held for sale under development and properties
held for sale

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including recent prices of similar properties in the same
location and condition, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the dates of
transactions that occurred at those prices. Particulars of the
properties held for sale under development and properties
held for sale of the Group are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on land appreciation tax
("LAT") implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties in
Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994 are
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures,
including the amortisation of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to LAT,
which have been included in income tax. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various
Mainland China cities and the Group has not finalised its
LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. When the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the
income tax and provisions for LAT in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimates regarding the realisability of deferred
tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 36
to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note
16 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the property development and investment business
segment is engaged in property development of
residential and commercial properties and the holding
of investment properties; and

(b) the "others” segment comprises, principally, the
trading of medical equipment and home security and
automation products.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of profit/loss before
tax. The profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/loss before tax that interest and dividend
income, fair value changes on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss, unallocated expenses, finance
costs, share of profits and losses of associates, impairment
of investments in associates, loss on disposal of associates
as well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, non-
current asset classified as held for sale and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

3.
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(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment liabilities exclude other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Year ended 31 March 2020

“ETéJ‘ pal ﬁﬂ(nﬁ)

DERETEEREMARD AN AT
BE AZFRENZEEERER -

ENREZHERERIZERAE=T
HEMRAZEE HERMEETR
5 o

BE—E-fF=-A=1+—HLHE

E
Property
development
and
investment
business Others Total
MEBRK
REEHK Hith wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT
Segment revenue (note 5) DEBA (HES)
Sales to external customers HE TINBEP 302,170 49,444 351,614
Other income and gains I R PN € 6,474 889 7,363
308,644 50,333 358,977
Segment results DEEE
Operating profit =il 5,069 723 5,792
Reconciliation: Bk -
Bank interest income |ITH B HA 130
Dividend income from equity BATFEFABRE
investments at fair value < IRERE R EBA
through profit or loss 1,900
Fair value loss on equity investments 2 A F{E:T A
at fair value through profit or loss < IRERE 2 N TE
R (14,806)
Unallocated expenses R B (16,202)
Finance costs MHER (9,544)
Share of profits and losses of JE (R B & A B m A
associates K E51E (1,790)
Loss on disposal of associates HEBE NRER (493)
Loss before tax BrELRTE B (35,013)
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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2N
IS
5
m\)i
i

Property
development
and
investment
business Others Total
NEBRRER
REEK Hith Y
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET TR
Segment assets PHEE 1,844,120 149,708 1,993,828
Reconciliation: E) 3
Investments in associates RERE RN R ZIRE 22,476
Corporate and other unallocated assets A& & E b AR AL EE 210,924
Total assets AERE 2,227,228
Segment liabilities PEAE 403,456 12,122 415,578
Reconciliation: E0: 3
Corporate and other unallocated NAREMRSEAE
liabilities 295,974
Total liabilities BEBRE 711,552
Other segment information: Htt o EER
Fair value loss on investment BEMENTEERE
properties, net SRR 22,758 — 22,758
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE « FHEL&KE
plant and equipment 5B &8 131 — 131
Reversal of impairment of accounts FEW AR IE R E B B
receivable (81) — (81)
Impairment of other receivables b fE BGRIRRVE — 142 142
Reversal of provision for inventories GFERERR — (360) (360)
Provision for net realisable value of BEHEYMHEZ AT EIR
properties held for sale FEREE 4,430 — 4,430
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -« BEMEETE
equipment 8,665 266 8,931
Capital expenditure* NG 6 1,350 1,356

* Capital expenditure represents additions
equipment.

of property, plant and

MERREBREEAERAT —T-TFF

* EARZIEREME  BEREHE -
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Al

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESFER (E)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-E—-—hh&E=H=1+—HLEF

Kt

Property
development
and
investment
business Others Total
MEBR KR
BEEB Hitb @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

Segment revenue (note 5) DEBA (KES)
Sales to external customers HE TN E P 217,365 42,052 259,417
Other income and gains N NS & 9,334 388 9,722
226,699 42,440 269,139
Segment results DEEE
Operating profit ikl 104,084 8,289 112,373
Reconciliation: E0 3
Bank interest income ]RITH B HA 1,084
Dividend income from equity BT EFABRE
investments at fair value through 2 AR B R B
profit or loss 722
Dividend income from a financial asset %A F{ET AEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZEBEERBRA 48
Fair value gain on financial assets at R A F{EFF ABZE
fair value through profit or loss ZEREEZNTE
Wezs 118
Fair value loss on equity investments at & A F(EF ABZHE
fair value through profit or loss ZBRERE 2 ATE
18 (35,984)
Unallocated expenses ROmHAXL (8,511)
Finance costs M%ER (1,566)
Share of profits and losses of JE 15 Bt 2 X B s )
associates X EE (4,527)
Impairment of investments in REEE QB IRERE
associates (27,190)
Profit before tax W 351 Al A 36,567
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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BE—_E-hE=A=+—8L#E

Property
development
and
investment
business Others Total
YEEER
WA Hh @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FHET FHET FET
Segment assets PEEE 2,248,101 29,672 2,277,773
Reconciliation: HER -
Investments in associates REtERNa 28 E 27,109
Non-current asset classified SERFIEHEZ
as held for sale IERBEE 68,589
Corporate and other unallocated assets A& M E AR DEEE 218,493
Total assets BEME 2,591,964
Segment liabilities PEERE 657,771 13,832 671,603
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and other unallocated NRAREMARSEEAE
liabilities 273,020
Total liabilities BfEERE 944,623
Other segment information: HittpEER
Fair value gain on investment BEMEAFERE
properties (66,456) — (66,456)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - FE K& &E
plant and equipment JHH B8 16 80 96
Impairment of accounts receivable JE W BR IR R B — 728 728
Impairment of other receivables H b & Uy R IB RE 1,902 — 1,902
Provision for inventories FEEE — 836 836
Reversal of provision for net realisable 3 {EH &Y% 2 Al &R
value of properties held for sale SFEBERE (12,870) — (12,870)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BENREETE
equipment 8,330 105 8,435
Capital expenditure* NG 9 35 44
* Capital expenditure represents additions of property, plant and * BERAXIEREYE  BEMREE -

equipment.

MERREBREEAERLAT —T-oTFF
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESFER(E
(Continued)
Geographical information it & & #
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HIHIEFZUA
Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
5B B A it =e
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

TEDRE ZTNF SBSRE T NF ZB-RF T NF
HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FET THT FTET TAET FET THT

Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers $HE TN P 30,428 20,949 321,186 238,468 351,614 259,417
The revenue information above is based on locations Lt AE R T E R E IR AL
of the operations. BEfEH -
(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥ nEBEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Hong Kong BB 139,342 149,737
Mainland China AR Ay 1,159,847 1,110,414
1,299,189 1,260,151
The non-current assets information above is based on THIERBEEEMTIEREE
the locations of the assets and excludes investments FIEMNE  TERERBE R
in associates, equity investments at fair value through BE BRAFEFABREREZR
profit or loss and equity investment designated at fair B ERIETERA AT AELM
value through other comprehensive income. PHEHK G2 RIERE -
Information about a major customer EHEETEEFMNEHR
During the year, revenue of approximately HK$170,667,000 REAN - MEERRIEEEBHERE
was derived from sales by the property development and —BPIHEWR AL R170,667,000%8
investment business segment to a single customer. There TeBEZT-—NF=A=1+—HILHF
was no single external customer with revenue greater than B BiEE IR PR ABBARE
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year ended B A10% A L -

31 March 2019.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

5. WA Hiblr AR Wz

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADTET -
2020 2019
—RCERF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue from contracts with EFAHWA :
customers:
Income from property development #%¥ 2R &% E ZE K 2 A
and investment business 282,301 195,605
Income from trading of medical BEEERIBRRERER
equipment and home security BEifbERZIBA
and automation products 49,444 42,052
Revenue from other sources: H AU A SRR -
Gross rental income FEE RS N 19,869 21,760
351,614 259,417

Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended 31 March 2020

(i) 2HFWAEHR
BE_F-_FF=-F=1+—H

LEFE
Property
development
and
investment
business Others Total
MEBRR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FHET FHET
Geographical markets: hEMEG
Hong Kong BE — 30,428 30,428
Mainland China A A A 282,301 19,016 301,317
Total revenue from contracts A% —BF 24
with customers recognised  HMRZEEF
at a point in time SR AEEE 282,301 49,444 331,745
MEEREREEARAA Z_TEFER 149
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA --EHEMWARKE ()

(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Property
development
and investment

ZHRBAER (&)

BE_F-NF=ZA=1+—H
IEFE

business Others Total
MEERK
WEXE® Efh L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
Geographical markets: WETE :
Hong Kong A — 20,949 20,949
Mainland China B A i 195,605 21,103 216,708
Total revenue from contracts % — 5 & 25
with customers recognised R ZEHEF
at a point in time XN 195,605 42,052 237,657
(ii) Performance obligations (i) BREME

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property is obtained by the purchaser.

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
90 days from delivery.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements because all
the remaining performance obligations in relation to
the income from property development and
investment business are a part of contracts that have
an original expected duration of one year or less.

AEBNBOEEERAMT :

BHEETIRERRECERTY
ENBRBEERICEEMEER
SR e

£/ (4 I
HEER

BHREERERINERE R
X R FUR R AR R AR 90K
REFENE

fERTARES A PRENS
BHEE CRERKBH RER)
B3 5 ER TR R WA
T AARYEEERLA
I A G BT I B
ETEAESBER A —FRAT
B K — 5 o
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

WA~ EBA R WK (&)

HWARK@m DT

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hnF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other income and gains H il A & Wz
Bank interest income H|ITH S WA 130 1,084
Dividend income from equity BAFEF ABREEZIRE
investments at fair value through 1% & B UL A
profit or loss 1,900 722
Dividend income from a financial & A FEFTAB&HEZ SR
asset at fair value through profit & ERK B UL A
or loss — 48
Fair value gain on financial assets at Z A FEzFABHEZ S/
fair value through profit or loss BAEz A FENKE — 118
Gross rental income @B WA 6,184 9,137
Others H A 1,179 585
9,393 11,694
HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFFRH
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EVaN Y

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBANGZF(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBRBADGEF(EER) DEme,”
charging/(crediting): (Gt A) FHI&IE :
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT T
Cost of properties sold EEMEKAR 233,881 136,497
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAR 33,885 31,559
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, TF&#{E, (BRI E) -
included in cost of inventories sold above FSFAR EBEEFEKRA (360) 836
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELRD BN 1,650 2,150
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #13 « &= & R BT E 13 8,931 8,435
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and @qﬁﬁﬂﬁ/fZ&é%%FE
maintenance) rising on rental-earning CEEEERX
investment properties (BEREERRE) 2,563 3,341
Minimum lease payments under operating leases T NIEFIRELEHE
on land and buildings 2 EERS MR — 910
Lease payments not included in the FrEEEEERTERA
measurement of lease liabilities ZHERIEA 497 —
Rental income on investment properties less ?xﬁﬂi%%zfﬂiﬂﬁlkﬁi
direct operating expenses of HK$2,563,000 HEEERY
(2019: HK$3,341,000) 2,563,000 7T
(ZZ—NEF:
3,341,00077T) (17,306) (18,419)
Rental income on other properties less direct HimERS WA REE
operating expenses of HK$569,000 (2019: & 181 569,000/ 7T
HK$1,176,000) —E-NF:
1,176,000 7.) (5.615) (7,961)
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ {EEREFIFHX (BIEES
and chief executive’s remuneration (note 8)): REFETBAEME
(H5E8)) -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances IE& - %o B4
R AL 29,501 23,809
Pension schemes contributions* RIKE T B R 524 472
Less: Amount capitalised B B A RIE (1,646) (2,176)
28,379 22,105
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties, & W NFEERE
net (W zs) - F58 14 22,758 (66,456)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and HE¥E - BE &R E
equipmentA I8 B HYES1EA 131 96
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of accounts &Y% BR B L E, G (E
receivable” @) A 20 (81) 728
Impairment of other receivables® H A e W SR IE R E A 21 142 1,902
Impairment of investments in associates” REFE N ELZ IR E R EN 15 — 27,190
Fair value loss on equity investments at fair BAFEFTABRER K
value through profit or loss” ERENTEEEAN 14,806 35,984
Provision/(reversal of provision) for net realisable %%%%Tﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
value of properties held for sale” Bl (B R E) A 4,430 (12,870)
Loss on disposal of associates” HEB e QR BiEA 493 —
Foreign exchange differences, netA PEH Z%8 - F8A 743 1,472
* At 31 March 2020, there were no forfeited contributions available to * RIBE-_TF=ZA=+—H AEETE
the Group to reduce contributions to the pension schemes in future PR R AT R R B R D R R @ &
years (2019: Nil). BIHAR(ZF—NF 8-
A These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the A WEFREIALEBERAZ [ HALER

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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FINANCE COSTS 7. HMBEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB ERNLT :
2020 2019
. —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Interest on bank loans and other $BITERRHMMEE 2 F 5
borrowings 27,963 32,750
Less: Interest capitalised W BEEREZ A (18,419) (31,184)
9,544 1,566
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTETHAEME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (¢) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

RiE AR B M BB 2~ BRI 3£ 383(1)
@ () QMOBEARAF (REES
MmER) ROIF28 EFRETETH

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about AEFAFTMEELT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

- —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fees we 600 560
Other emoluments: HE &

Salaries, bonuses and allowances  ¥& - fE4L & 28 8,104 6,634

Pension schemes contributions BIRS B 77 59

8,181 6,693

8,781 7,253
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for that year was
included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

EERTETHRAEMS (B)

RBEFE - REARFERER S -
ETEFREAASERENRBER
B E—PHBERRUBERRME
29 - HEAREEN A FEEREBHN
FERBRARER - Mt A FEDRED
BEERE Mt ARFMHRERANE
BN LM EENR T RITHABH PR
BEA-

(a) BAUFHTES

Fees
we
HK$000
FET

2020 —E-EF
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond f4EZRIE L 240
Ir Siu Man Po BRSO T 2R 240
Mr. Siu Kam Chau RIS E 120
600

2019 —E-NEF
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond g FR1E L+ 220
Ir Siu Man Po B SOk TA2AD 220
Mr. Siu Kam Chau B E 120
560

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2019: Nil).
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors and chief executive

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

8. EERFETHAEME (A)

(b) BTESERITHAR

Salaries, Pension
bonuses and schemes Total
allowances contributions remuneration
¥4 BRKE
KRR B RN MEBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
2020 —EZEHF
Mr. Lu Quanzhang ErELAE 300 — 300
Mr. Tjia Boen Sien W&

("Mr. Tjia")* ([~ 3,420 — 3,420
Mr. Wang Jing Ning FTRERE 2,920 18 2,938
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William Bl 1,464 59 1,523

8,104 77 8,181
2019 —E-hEF
Mr. Lu Quanzhang ERELE 300 — 300
Mr. Tjia* H g 3,190 — 3,190
Mr. Wang Jing Ning FRELEE 2,020 18 2,038
Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William FiFcES e 1,124 41 1,165
6,634 59 6,693

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2019: Nil).

* Mr. Tjia is also the chief executive of the Group as defined in

the Listing Rules.

AFEEABESESIHRKRAEN
ZEMAME 2 LB (=T —NF:
&) -

* WERENMBAEBOTERAR E
HEREWRA -

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2019: three) directors including the chief executive,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
two (2019: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

IEBREHEERSREEAER

rEEzhEBEaHEERRE=R(Z
T-NF:ZR)EFR(BREBTERA
8) AAEME zHBEH N LXMW
He - FAAFEHSBRMA(ZZE—N
FMB)RIFEETIEARBEELT
BABZ B&mFHEEZMEFBEHSI
T~

2020 2019

—E_EF —E—NE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances  ¥& - fE4L & 28k 2,071 1,880
Pension schemes contributions RIS FHEIE R 36 46
2,107 1,926

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HOET OSBRI ERTIEEELT
BABZ&E=HEEABNT

Number of employees

BEAH

2020 2019

—z-%f —E-nEF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000/ 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7T

%1,500,000/% 7T 2 1

2 2
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR 9. HTEEREHFESRSREERAES
MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#&)
Other than the directors’ remuneration and five highest paid BRTUNEBRE ESMERAUESTH
employees disclosed above, the amounts paid to senior EEI ZIRNTIEERSREEAES
management as disclosed in the “Biographical details of BE|—SEE S REEAE
directors and senior management” section are as ST
follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥4 + JE4L )2 AL 407 1,083
Pension schemes contributions RIKEFHEIME K 19 35
426 1,118
INCOME TAX 10. FRBH™

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, unless the Group’s
subsidiaries did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year or the Group’s subsidiaries had
available tax losses brought forward from previous years to
offset the assessable profits generated during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

RAFE  BANNGHRIEREBEL
AR ERBURF) - B E16.5% (=
T—NF:165%)F1E  BRIFFAX
SEZMBARMEETEELEME
RN AR HE ARG EE
EBEFE 2 BHBRERUEINFER
A2 FERBUm M AR SN - Hhilem 2
ERFENHACRAREEBHAELZ
AAKER 2 RITERMERAE -

R

e
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10.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

INCOME TAX (Continued)

LAT in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditure, including the amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

10. FRi&%i (&)

P B R - 2 E R R L EE IR
Z30%E60% 2 3 B R - 1 iy iE

ERBI L &YX

TR B 1R L E

FtE#E EERAMAENRERS

HZ AT MBRFEX -

2020 2019
—E-EE —ET—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current — Elsewhere AFEE — HEMtpE
Charge for the year REEZH 2,712 9,554
LAT in Mainland China AR B A 2+ IR (E T 4,499 (14,040)
Deferred (note 27) EIE (FF7E27) (4,688) 17,651
Total tax charge for the year RNEERIBEX HEE 2,523 13,165




10.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to

profit/(loss)

before tax at the statutory rates for the

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective

tax rate is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

Frig® (&)

BRANERARRE RE KM E DA

FriEalriEm 2 AT R E 2 BRBA
wAL(B8R) 2 RIERS (He) fi
ERBEFECHBRIEENOT -

2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE AR A () (35,013) 36,567
Tax at the applicable statutory BEREERENE 2R
tax rates (4,905) 16,106
Profits and losses attributable to B4 A &) {5 0 K| 2 E5 18
associates 295 747
Income not subject to tax T BH 2 WA (4,316) (6,994)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR IE 2 3,238 10,901
Effect of withholding tax at 10%  ANEERHE 2K B A F
or 5% on the distributable 2 AR R U 10%
profits of the Group’s PRC 5% FEM 2 &
subsidiaries 1,434 2,674
Tax losses utilised from previous — EHFABAHIME 2 B EE
periods (1,004) (154)
Tax losses and temporary RERIMBEEREFER
differences not recognised 2,530 3,649
LAT T i I ERL 4,499 (14,040)
Others H A, 752 276
Tax charge at the Group’s effective EANEBERERE-7.2%
rate of —7.2% (2019: 36.0%) ZZE—NF :36.0%)
STHEZHIARX 2,523 13,165

The share of tax charge attributable to associates
amounting to HK$159,000 (2019: HK$1,383,000) is
included in “Share of profits and losses of associates” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFF

BN B B B{IB RIS 159,000 7T (=
T — F4E 1 1,383,000 ) I AEE 18
HRZERB2ARER KEIE R -

& 159

e
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. BE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Special — HKO0.5 cent per ordinary 5] — &% @A0.5/810
share (2019: Nil) (ZZE-NF: 8) 4,890 —
Proposed final — Nil (2019: HK0.5 E#EAH — & (ZT—N&F:
cent per ordinary share) B EBEAR0.5HE) — 4,890
4,890 4,890

During the year, the special dividend of HKO0.5 cent per
ordinary share was approved at a special general meeting
on 11 June 2019.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approved at the annual general meeting on 20
August 2019.

FA-FHREEREBERKRSEIE
R-F-NFRNA+—BETHRERS
RIRKE L RSHE -

HE-Z-hE=A=1+—BItEEZ
ERREREER-_ZE-AENA-T
AR RBAF KRS EESHE -
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12.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
977,880,400 (2019: 977,880,400) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 March 2020. In the prior
year, no adjustment was made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 March
2019 as the impact of share options had no dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share amount on 31 March
2019.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

ARAEBRAFEARGEER
&R, (F8)

BREARF(BEB)IREAR
AEBEBRABTEABGEERNEF,
(BE)RFAEBET 2T BRME
F15#977,880,400/% (— T — L4 -
977,880,400/%) 5T & o

HE"Z-_TF="A=+—HILFE"
AEEMECRTEERIEBM - £
F o UWERBE_T-NF=ZA=+—
BIEFE2NZB8RERBNSREIEY
AR RATERENTZE HRN-F
—NE=ZA=1T—HHNERELBNE
BYEBELE -

2020 2019
—BCERF ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Earnings/(loss) BF,(&8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary SAERR#ERF,(EE)
equity holders of the Company, SAEMAEAZ ARRIE R
used in the basic and diluted AEFEANEERR(BE)
earnings/(loss) per share
calculation (35,296) 27,486

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥%  BERRE

Right-of-
use assets Owned assets
EREEE BEEE
Leasehold
land and Furniture Office and
hold buildings/ L hold and other Tools and Motor
land Buildings improvements fixtures equipment equipment  vehicles Total Total
HELHER BAER
et HFHEF HEXE KAREE HtRHF IARRE RE “E “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
31 March 2020 Z2C2E=A=1-A
At 1 April 2019 (as originally presented): R=ZT—AFEMA—H
(REZ7) :
Cost or valuation A EE — 226,905 6,357 957 1,984 40 1,939 238,182 238,182
Accumulated depreciation ZitE — - (5,780) (834) (1,686) (26) (1,294) (9,620) (9,620)
Net carrying amount REFE - 226,905 577 123 298 14 645 228,562 228,562
Effect of adoption of RNEBMEREER
HKFRS 16 (note) E16H 2T E
[Gik:3) 135,456 (135,456) - - - - —  (135,456) -
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFNA-H
(as restated) (Es75)) 135,456 91,449 577 123 298 14 645 93,106 228,562
At 1 April 2019, net of accumulated RZT-NFRA-H-
depreciation R 2T E 135,456 91,449 577 123 298 14 645 93,106 228,562
Additions 5 - - 178 69 1,022 87 — 1,356 1,356
Disposals HE - - - (43) (64) - (28) (135) (135)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation SHAR/ (B (7,858) 640 — — — — — 640 (7,218)
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHRNE (4,644) (3,791) (181) (15) (210) (12) (78) (4,287) (8,931)
Transfers from properties held for sale B ¥ERFEMEBRE
under development 17,920 124,127 - - - - - 124,127 142,047
Exchange realignment EXAE (1,520) (1,999) (34) (6) (24) (U] (8) (2,072) (3,592)
At 31 March 2020
139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 88 531 212,735 352,089
At 31 March 2020:
Cost or valuation 139,354 210,426 6,151 564 2,454 123 1,591 221,309 360,663
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE — — (5,611) (436) (1,432) (35) (1,060) (8,574) (8,574)
Net carrying amount REFE 139,354 210,426 540 128 1,022 88 531 212,735 352,089
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

which are measured at fair value. The leasehold land, together with
the owned buildings, are held for own use. The land leases are
expiring between 2047 to 2053.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
individually at the end of the reporting period by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at an aggregate open market value of
HK$349,780,000 (2019: HK$226,905,000) based on their
existing use.

A revaluation deficit of HK$7,218,000 (2019: surplus of
HK$14,422,000) resulting from the revaluation has been
charged (2019: credited) to other comprehensive income.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would
have been approximately HK$198,218,000 (2019:
HK$61,020,000).

HERREBREEGRAAF

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% BEKRRZHE (&)
(Continued)
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Furniture Office  Tools and Motor
buildings  improvements and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HE+R
BF AEEE KRAREE PAZRE TARREHE A wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHT FHET FHET FHET
31 March 2019 —Z-hE=A=+-A
At 1 April 2018: RZZ—\FWA—A:
Cost or valuation KA E 224,450 7,540 1,164 2,732 1,305 2,023 239214
Accumulated depreciation RitE — (6,760) (936) (2,370) (1,134)  (1,278)  (12,478)
Net carrying amount BREFE 224,450 780 228 362 171 745 226,736
At 1 April 2018, net of accumulated depreciaton ~ RZ=Z—\FMA—H -
MR RENE 224,450 780 228 362 171 745 226,736
Additions R — — — 44 — — 44
Disposals HE — — (7) (13) (137) — (157)
Surplus on revaluation BEHAK 14,422 — — — — — 14,422
Depreciation provided during the year FRFRITE (8,015) (153) (84) (80) (11) (92) (8,435)
Exchange realignment [z (3,952) (50) (14) (15) 9) 8) (4,048)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-NE=A
=t+—8 226,905 577 123 298 14 645 228,562
At 31 March 2019: RZZE-NF=A
=t-8:
Cost or valuation RA A E 226,905 6,357 957 1,984 40 1,939 238,182
Accumulated depreciation Rt E — (5,780) (834) (1,686) (26)  (1,294)  (9,620)
Net carrying amount REFE 226,905 577 123 298 14 645 228,562
Note: The Group's right-of-use assets represent prepaid land lease payments e AEEZEREEERRATEFEZTE

NHEBERE - HELHERAEEF
DEFEER - LHAEBR TN FE
—ER=F2MEEMm -

AREBZHETHREFRRELSEK
HBYEXAERGEMSETEE
BRARIRIRFAGEREMRN B AHM
8 /349,780,000 T (Z & — L% :
226,905,000 7T) °

BEHELZEHEHT7,218,0008 T (=
T — AF  BER14,422,0008 7T) B R
HEt2mbasingg (ZZE—NF5HA) ©

2% i M FIRE L AR R T
E7ER  HEMERK X A198,218,000
BT (ZZE— 4 61,020,000/ 7T) °

NH
*JH

TEFR

e
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, certain leasehold land and buildings
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$281,800,000 (2019: HK$208,419,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
26).

The Group appointed an external valuer to be responsible
for the valuation of the Group’s properties held for own
use and had discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s properties held for own use:

13. W% BERRKE (&)

RZE-_ZTF=ZA=+—H KAERK
281,800,000 T (=& — L& :
208,419,000 70) v AEEETHE L
HREFHE TR (EATEEER
HTRITEE ZER (KH5E26) °

AEBEZEIMEREEME EEREERF
EERZYERETHE  YRAFEY
BHREETHER - BAEMRGEER

R EAERETHW

DNFEER
TREAAEEFEERYEQFER
EFR

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2020 using
R-B-EBE=-A=+t-HAVHETE £A

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RERMSZ EATEE EBEATHUHEE
#E WABE wWAgE wEt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(&7 —) (&AB=) (A=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TH TH THT
Recurring fair value AT IR B AT
measurement for: ZREMNTFE
i
Hotel property* B G EE* — — 143,000 143,000
Commercial properties BEMER
and car park spaces**  {EEf** — — 206,780 206,780
Properties held for own  #5{EE A%
use — — 349,780 349,780
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ BERSE(E)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEER(A)

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2019 using
R-Z-NE=A=+—AATEFE A

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
WERTIS 2 BEAUEE BEANTAEER
wE B AR o A EUIR @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(8 B1—) (&A1) (&BBI=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET T FATT
Recurring fair value FMATIERETZ
measurement for: "EMANTE
iHE
Commercial properties — FEEWMEREEL
and car park spaces — — 226,905 226,905
* Included leasehold land in right-of-use assets of HK$18,040,000 (2019: * i FA & & £ 157 & 1-31018,040,000/% 7T
Nil) (ZF—NF : 8|&) -
o Included leasehold land in right-of-use assets of HK$121,314,000 * FREEERIERET1121,314,0008 T
(2019: Nil) ZE-NFE) -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - Al —BERR — 2 EIL /AT
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BRf2cER  MEERZSEEAR
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil). B=(ZF—NF: 8-

R 165
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

DNFEER(E)

Y5k - BB K &E (E)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within DERRNTFESHAR =R AT EE
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: 2R
2020 2019
—BCBF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Carrying amount at beginning of year RFE#ZEREE 226,905 224,450
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation REMEEKEAERZ
recognised in other comprehensive EHAH (B
income (7,218) 14,422
Depreciation e (8,435) (8,015)
Transfers from properties held for sale [ %% /& f {3 & 1) 2 88 ¢
under development 142,047 —
Exchange realignment PE i, K (3,519) (3,952)
Carrying amount at end of year RERZEEE 349,780 226,905
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

13.
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

Y3 - BERRE (E)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEER(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and BIFERAMEGEMAZHERGRE
the key inputs to the valuation of properties held for own T ABEBESRRET
use:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
fhERKI EXTAEERAHE E
2020 2019
—E-BE  —TAF
Properties held for own use:
HIEERME
Hotel property Investment method Estimated rental value RMB50 —
B JE 3 wEE (per square metre AR#507T
and per month)
mEtieEE
(BFHAREA)
Term yield 3.75% —
FHI =R
Reversionary yield 5.75% —
BBk aE
Commercial properties Direct comparison Market unit selling HK$1,408 to HK$1,625 to
[EEXZES approach price (per square HK$6,560 HK$7,050
BEREBOX foot) 1,408 B TE 1,625 LE
mIZEUER 6,56078 7T 7,050/ 7T
(BFHAR)
Car park spaces Direct comparison Market unit selling RMB300,000 RMB300,000
FEAL approach price AR AR
BRIEBOX mISEMLER 300,000T 300,0007T

i

EZERBEBEEHARAR —ZT_TFFR

e
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13.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is estimated on the
basis of capitalisation of existing rent receivable from the
existing tenancies and the potential reversionary market rent
of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
properties held for own use, which included the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the estimated rental value
and reversionary vyield, while it takes into account the rental
value generated from the existing lease term to arrive at the
term vyield.

The key inputs were the estimated rental value, term yield
and reversionary yield, which a significant increase/
(decrease) in these inputs would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the properties held
for own use.

The direct comparison approach

Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is
estimated by the direct comparison method on the
assumption of the sale of the property interest with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
properties held for own use, which included the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the market price per square
foot.

The key input was the market price per square foot, which
a significant increase/(decrease) in the market price would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of
the properties held for own use.

13. W% BERRKE (&)

AFEER (E)

& A

REREEL RFEDNBZEDWESR
EHEZEUBEEHENEEEEMS
HeEFUERZ EEMGET -

ETHERSEBEERIEEAMELZ
TE G RRUE  mE R 58
BE ZEREOLEMEZR  AGHHE
AESEEREREGE  REEEE
REHERELCHEEE  WELFH

Yas = -

IEBHABBELGHESEE  FHK
X MERREE  ZEFEABEARE
LR (R B @EBRHEE R
RTFERE LA () -

BEEREF

RBEEELEE  AFEDUERELER
o BRRYVERSE IR T HETLELE
BEMSAES I EREERSHME
fist o

ETHERSEBEERIEEAMELZ
R BIRUE  BEE - PR S8
BE BEREFOHREMER  USHE
FHRTGER -

TEHABEBERTVFIRMEGER ™
BERKELT (T B SEEE
B AWERTFEKRE LA/ (TK) -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Carrying amount at beginning of year EAi?ﬂZEE@TE 1,031,589 1,031,125

Net gain/(loss) from fair value NFEERE 2 W

adjustment (note 6) (E518) 758 (MisE6) (22,758) 66,456
Exchange realignment PE % (61,731) (65,992)
Carrying amount at end of year RERZERHEE 947,100 1,031,589

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2020 based on a valuation performed by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$947,100,000 (2019: HK$1,031,589,000).

As at 31 March 2020, certain investment properties of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$539,000,000 (2019: HK$579,150,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
26).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 32(a) to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties are hotel properties, commercial
properties and car park spaces, based on the nature,
characteristics and risk of the properties. Each year, the
Group appoints an external valuer to be responsible for the
valuation of the Group’s properties and has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included
on page 41.

HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFF

R_E-_ZF=ZA=+—08 £&£H
ZEREVERLABYEELSERMGE
BT AR A RIZAMAITHES
& /947,100,000 0 (=T — N5 :
1,031,589,0003% 7T) °

RZEZEF=A=+—0 A5£EE
T 42 {8 /539,000,000 T (=& — 1
F 1 579,150,000/ 70) K& TIREME
W EAAEBERETRITEER
RIPEIR (F95E26) ©

BESLHEBEREDELRTFE=
7 BEEE—SBEH N EHRERN
5F32(a) °

REMENEE - FRRER - KNAF
EECHEREMERBENE B
MERIEEN - NAEEBFREIEBA
BB EHAKEYRETHE AN
SEE M B mEETEHER - sEER
RREEARE[EMETH® -

AEBEENMEZHBERFL4 A

R

e
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REW= (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement THREMKAERKREMELTEFES
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: &

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2020 using
R-BE-ZEE=-A=1+-HLAVEHNE FH

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
REBRMSZ EATEE EBEAFTIUHE
HE WABE BAE #et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(& B—) (A=) (A=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FHET
Recurring fair value FATIEB#ETZ
measurement for: mEENTE
e
Hotel properties BIEE — — 167,640 167,640
Commercial properties — EEWEREHE
and car park spaces — — 779,460 779,460
— — 947,100 947,100
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

14. REY X (E)
ARSEE$4¢ )

value measurement as at
31 March 2019 using

RZB-NF=A=+—BRVEHE &

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RIERTIS 2 BERAHE BEATAHR
wE WA BE B ABUE fmEt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(& 51—) (&A1) (HBA=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT TAETT TAETT
Recurring fair value MATIEE#ETZ
measurement for: REHENFE
e
Hotel properties B IE % — — 203,229 203,229
Commercial properties — FEEWMEREEL
and car park spaces — — 828,360 828,360
— — 1,031,589 1,031,589
MEEREREEARAT —T_ZFFR
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1

and Level

2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REWE (F)

DN EERA)

RER - FRl—BEH — 2 I EAF
EFfFEZEE  TESREZxEEAR
A=(ZF—hF: |-

DR/ R TFEFRAR =AZ A FEE
EZHEK:

Commercial
Hotel properties and
properties car park spaces
BEMER
EIEY % FEN
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\EFMNA—H
ZERHEE 193,375 837,750
Net gain from a fair value adjustment K B8 2R A FEFHE
recognised U 25558 22,230 44,226
Exchange realignment [ER IS (12,376) (53,616)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=H
and 1 April 2019 =t+t—HAERZZE—NF
MA—RZEEE 203,229 828,360
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value KB RN FEFE
adjustment recognised Wik, (E518) F58 (23,430) 672
Exchange realignment PE 3 P& (12,159) (49,572)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZTE_ZTF=H
=+—HZREE 167,640 779,460
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

rREW= (&)
RFEEFELR (H)
BREMEBEMAZEERTTRERE
ABUERE RN -

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs Range

HERIG EXTAEERAHE E
2020 2019
—B-%F T AE
Hotel properties and Investment method Estimated rental value RMB37 to RMB27 to
commercial WEE (per square metre RMB64 RMB130
properties and per month) AR¥3ITTZE AR¥27LTZE
BIEMERBEDE HEtEeEE ARMB6aT AR®1307T

(BFHAREA)

Term vyield 2.00% to 2.00% to
FHU R 6.25% 6.25%
2.00% = 2.00% %
6.25% 6.25%
Reversionary yield 5.50% to 5.50% to
B = 7.25% 7.25%
5.50% & 5.50% &
7.25% 7.25%
Car park spaces Direct comparison Market unit selling RMB160,000 RMB160,000
{FE L approach price AR ARKE
HELBOR M5B EE 160,000 T 160,0007T

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is estimated on the
basis of capitalisation of existing rent receivable from the
existing tenancies and the potential reversionary market rent
of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which included the location, size,
shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the estimated rental value
and reversionary yield, while it takes into account the rental
value generated from the existing lease term to arrive at the
term vyield.

The key inputs were the estimated rental value, term yield
and reversionary yield, which a significant increase/
(decrease) in these inputs would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

HERREBREEGRAAF

rREZX

RBREE  RHEDBZENEER
EHEZRYCRAHEE RNEBERERMS
HETUREMeZ BEMMAE -

ETHERSREEEREMEZLR
RoBHUE mE BN REEZ
CERRENREMAR ARG
HEBERERKEE AHEEER
EHMEL 2 HEEE  UWBHFHK
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TEHABBAGAESEER  FHK
DX RERREE  ZFRABBEAR
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The direct comparison approach

Under the direct comparison approach, fair value is
estimated by the direct comparison method on the
assumption of the sale of the property interest with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which included the location, size,
shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively, to arrive at the market price per square
metre.

The key input was the market price per square metre,
which a significant increase/(decrease) in the market price
would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair
value of the investment properties.

14. REY X (&)

ANFEEEL (8)

EELEZE
RBERLEE  AFEDAEERLER
o BROERRAIRGTHELLS2E

BTSSR E X S T
fst -

ETHERSRBERREMEZR
BHoOBRREULE mE AR BB B
B EREOHLEMEZR  AEHEF
TATHER -

IE@EJ)\%&?E#$H%W%FW B
TISERARE LA (FE) B 285K
WEMERNFEKNE LA (T -
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
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15. REFERTZ2RE

2020 2019

= —NF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FE T FAETT

Share of net assets B & E S5 8,254 12,887
Loan to an associate H—BERARIELRN

=& 14,222 14,222

22,476 27,109

Amounts due from associates JE g B 2 N B FRIE 5,242 4,515

Amounts due to associates JE A~ Bt 2 A B FR0E (8,280) (5,177)

The loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, this
loan is considered as part of the Group’s net investments in
associates.

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

In the prior year, the Group made capital contributions of
HK$15,210,000 to an existing associate which carrying out
property investment business in Mainland China, and the
Group also invested in trading business through the
subscription of new shares of a new associate of
HK$250,000.

B — S R RHEH A E SRR E R
RRNEARERER - EERR ZE
TR BSARERERERARFEN—

#B
M ENR 2 BB AEER  RE KA
WMBRERE -

E=F AEER-ERPERLILEED
EREEBNEBABERR A
15,210,000 7T * NEB TN E BRE —
81 #7 Bt 42 /2 3] 250,000 7T 5 A 17 M 4%
BREBEDER -

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH

e
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

T B

15. REBEERRI2RE ()

ERBZFBWT

Percentage of
ownership attributable

Name capital business to the Group Principal activities
o EMAY SRR }
=% BRTEE FMRE SEBH $$EEH%E&EQ&:E¥¥%
2019
E_F 5¥ — N5
Achieve Plus Investment Limited HK$1 Hong Kong — 31.18 Pro‘ierty investment
RN EBR AR 1787 BB MmERE
Asia Construction Holdings Limited HK$980,000 Hong Kong 49 49 Investment holding
SMREEERRAF 980,000/ 7T B RAER
Axxonsoft Hong Kong Limited* HK$500,000 Hong Kong 50 50 Investment holding and
500,000/ 7T aBE software I|cen5|n9
BB R R R
Beijing Chang-de Architectural & = RMB16,000,000 PRC/Mainland China — 18.71 Decoration engineering
Decoration Co., Ltd. (a)(ii)* AR #16,000,0007T REL B A HETE
IRRBEZEREMIEERAA
(@ii*
Deson Construction International HK$25,000,000 The Cayman Islands/ — 31.18 Investment holding
Holdings lelted DCIHL”) 25,000,0007% 7T Hong Koa’q REEN
Egux BREBABRR ReHs &4
BERREE)
Deson Development Limited HK$20,000,100 Hong Kong — 31.18 Construction
EHERAERAR (Class A) (i) G contracting and
20,000,100/ 7T investment hoIdIng
(AJED (i) AR RIREER
HK$20,000,000
(Class B) (i)
20,000,000/ 7T
(B48) (i)
Deson Engineering Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong - 31.18 Decoration engineering
BMETIRBRAR 10,0007 7T =i KT
Deson Industries Limited* Uss$1 @yl/Hong Kong — 31.18 Investment holding
HEEEAERARY 1£7T UBEZEEBE RE R
Deson Metals Company Limited*  HK$2,000,000 Hong Kong/MamIand 40 40 Trading of construction
HMERSEMARAR* 2,000,000 7T materials
E%/*lmm BREMBES
Golden Kindex Limited* HK$1 Hong Kong — 31.18 Prc%erty investment
SEARDA* BT =B MERE
Hua Sheng International Real US$12,900,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 30 Property investment
Estate Development (Shanghai)  12,900,000% 7T A LIESCE
d. (b)*
iﬁ%lﬁ"(%%&ﬁﬁ(bﬁ)ﬁl‘ﬁ
Kenworth Englneermg Limited HK$54,374,140 Hong Kong — 31.18 Provision of electrical
BEIEBREAD (Ordinary) BB and mechanical
HK$20,000,000 engineering services
(Preference) (ii) and investment in
54,374,140 7T securities
(B@m) REEE TR R
20,000,000 7T ERRA
(852 (i)
New Leaves Limited* Us$100 BYI/Hong Kong 30 30 Investment holding
1003 T REBRLBEE/EBE wEER
Rosy Beauty Investments Limited*  US$1 IQ/I/Hog Kong — 31.18  Investment holding
17T HBRZES/BE REZER
Yew Siang Limited US$11,700,000 BVI/Ho g Kong 30 30 Investment holding
(“Yew Siang”)* 11,700,000 7T EBELREBH 5 & PR
BEAEERIERAR DA (b)*  US$900,000 PRC/Mainland China — 31.18 Decoration engineering
900,000 7T L E A RKiEgTi2
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * REEBLXSTMEERE R EME

of the Ernst & Young global network.

KB E T2

HRAER BB
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Registered as a Sino-foreign investment enterprise under PRC law.

(b) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

(i) The holders of class A shares have voting rights and are entitled to
dividend distributions. Upon the winding up of this company, the
class A shareholders are entitled to return of assets. The holders of
non-voting class B shares are not entitled to dividend distributions.
Moreover, upon the winding-up of this company, the class B
shareholders are not entitled to any return of assets if the assets of
this company are less than HK$100 trillion.

(ii) The holders of the preference shares have a cumulative preferential

right to this company’s profits at 10% of its share capital, but are
not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any meeting of
members or any meeting of directors.

(iii) The Group had significant influence in this company through an
associate and this company was accounted for as an associate in the
prior year.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held
through subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of certain associates because it exceeded the Group's
interests in these associates and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The Group’s aggregate
unrecognised share of losses for the current year and share
of accumulated losses of these associates amounted to
HK$82,000 (2019: HK$49,000) and HK$1,535,000 (2019:
HK$1,453,000), respectively.

15.
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RBERATZRE (&)
B & -

(a) RIFFEDER
o,

ZERIMATIEED

()  REFEDEE  ZEREE
o,

A AIEEE R

(i) ABBM B AEANEARERTARES
BB DK R RBFERE  ABERN
BREBEREEE ST ERFHES
BENZHAEANBREZREDIR - It
G MR RBERE - WMARZEEIR
100,000,000,000,0005% 7t + BAE A% 17 A% &
TEREREFEMEE -

(i) BEBRBSAEAEEDETXATEN 2R
BN - ) iﬁxﬂiﬁfﬁm% @ﬁﬁé
WERERBRRGELEFTSHBA - T8
*Eu“jf%iﬁ‘\t&m o

(i)  AEEFEB-MBEAREZAANEEE

REENRRATNEFABIBBERT -
LERMINEREERBEHAEEANTF

EEEBRIBZEIBRASEEE
FEBEERNZARRBERR - ESF
R EMEE AR ZFEIIL - &
NS BN N =

AEBRBE AR ZIE BB AR
WERREHE -

REEBRIEEREBEISDEE QR
ZEE THAREBRAEBRNZEH
BARZEREAREEY ESTARES
ZIGE NEERAEE B AERZIE
EERREREEZERE AT RaT
BB Bl 582,000/ T (ZF— N4 :
49,0008 7t) M 1,535,0008 T (- &
— fLEE : 1,453,000/87T) °

A
A

FER

e

177



Notes to Financial Statements
R

31 March 2020
—E-_TF=R=+—H

15.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
During the year, the Group completed the disposal of its
interests in DCIHL for the consideration of HK$66,837,000,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. In the prior
year, the Group, as one of the sellers, entered into a
memorandum of understanding with an independent third
party to dispose of the Group’s entire equity interest in
DCIHL. In view of the aforementioned plan to dispose of
this equity interest in DCIHL, the Group had classified its
interests in the DCIHL Group as an non-current asset held
for sale as at 31 March 2019 (note 23). In the prior year,
the Group recognised an impairment of investments in
associates of HK$27,190,000 (note 6) with reference to the
consideration for the proposed disposal transaction. DCIHL
was a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Islands and was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
DCIHL and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “DCIHL Group”)
were considered material associates of the Group, and were
engaged in the construction business, as a main contractor
and fitting-out works, as well as the provision of electrical
and mechanical engineering services and other construction
related business, investment in securities and property
investment, and were accounted for using the equity
method.

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated
financial information in respect of the DCIHL Group
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:

15.

REERNTRIZRE (&)

FR - AEEEREEERBEEREH
BrkERS - (B /A66,837,00087C © IF
BHBREEBRGERINA - £F A&
E(EREAZ ) H—RBBYE=HF]
VBT WHEAEERBERERE
BB o R AR E AR
EENBEERLEERRE R=ZZF—A
FZAZ+—H AEEDHERNBER
REBREE S EARBIELEIER
BAE (M5E23) - £F @ K2EEZ

ERXRFHRER  AEEDERREZ
N BRI ER{E 27,190,000 7T (B 3£
6) HMEERERA—HRAHAERET
MRz BRETAR  ERMHRER
FTGEM £ - iR B R EMT B A
B(HEAIBEERBEERER]) HRA
REFNEABE RG] JHAREER
GONEEEAEBREBEIRER  URIER
MME TR MM ELMEER -
BERERMERE  WIRAERSEA
EE °

TRYR i E R B EE R a B
BEHHME  EestlEnEaEEE
A% - WS BRENREES
B

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHE T

Current assets MEEE — 373,005
Non-current assets ERBEE — 42,113
Current liabilities REBAERE — (314,008)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE — (1,397)
Net assets EEFHE — 99,713




15.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. REBEE QT 2RE (&)

2020 2019
—EF-FF —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in E2ZNEE B 7448 BB 2 28 B R
the DCIHL Group: SEMERYK -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership BB LA — 31.18%
The Group's share of net assets of the ZANEEE 5 (ki B &2 ZEIFE
DCIHL Group SEEEFE — 31,090
Goodwill on acquisition IWEEREE 28 — 37,499
Carrying amount of the investment & EHEE — 68,589
Revenue WA — 645,835
Loss for the year FANEE — (19,722)
Other comprehensive income HEfh2milias — 1,745
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ F AR HEEEEE — (17,977)
Fair value of the Group's investment REEKE 2 NTFE — 56,124
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEE 2B A A2 I 3EE R
information of the Group’s associates that are not BEZEHUMBER
individually material:
2020 2019
ZEZEF —ZT-hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for — FE{hEf 2N R F REF],~
the year (E%TE) (1,790) 1,621
Share of the associates’ other JEEEE AR M2
comprehensive loss 18 (2,763) (1,437)
Share of the associates’ total B E AR 2E RS
comprehensive income/(loss) (E18) %5 (4,553) 184
Dividend received 2R B (80) —
Aggregate carrying amount of the AN LN N NI ERI RS
Group’s investments in the associates BEAZEEZE@EE
that are not individually material Bra 22,476 27,109

HERREBREEGRAAF
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16. EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR 16.

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BEERBRAFEFARMBEZENR
HHRERERRAFEHFAR
mARERE

2020 2019
—EC-EE —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Equity investment designated at EERRAFETAEM
fair value through other EHBENRERE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JE_bMARAERE -
/NS =
Fortune Taker Limited Fortune Taker Limited — 9,400
Equity investments at fair value BRAFETTABEHRE
through profit or loss BE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3F MR #EIRE -
/NS
Century Rosy Limited Century Rosy Limited 11,359 11,686
Deson Development International HEERBEREERE

Holdings Investment Limited B AR]

("DDIHIL") ([DDIHIL]) 54,039 58,092
Excel Castle International Limited HEEBEARA A 50,407 30,198
Pamfleet Shanghai Real Estate Fund I, Pamfleet Shanghai Real

L.P. Estate Fund II, L.P. 3,992 —
Sky Fox Limited Sky Fox Limited 5,134 5,404

124,931 105,380

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received
dividends in the amounts of HK$1,900,000 (2019:
HK$722,000) from DDIHIL.

RRARER R LR E BT
B MZEFRECTAIRETIEE /R
NFHEFAREMEERASG AR °

REE-_Z_TF=-A=+—HLF
B AKE B ADDIHILW B & &
1,900,000/ 7T (= Z — AL4F : 722,000
BIT) °




17. DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 17.

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,

18.

interest-free and repayable on demand.

The particulars of amounts due from related companies are

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3k MY &

31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

FE B8 E 1~ TR IA
FEU BE R

RERERE -

R BE R B RIBHFHITAT ¢

AIFAREEE - 2B RA

as follows:
Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding 31 March outstanding
31 March  during the 2019 and 1 during the 1 April
2020 year  April 2019 year 2018
N
—E-NF
=A
—E-EF =+t—BXK
=B FN&E —T-hF FARE —TN\F
=+-B XReE MWA-B KKEE MWA-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T T T
Excel Win Limited Excel Win Limited 1,128 6,369 4,013 4,013 3,288
Fitness Concept Limited ~ BUFAIZBR A A
("FCL") ([BE=AIZE]D 1 70 51 59 6
EBEEEYEAERRER ERERYBHERRE
A A R A 162 173 173 185 185
1,291 4,237 3,479

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE UNDER

DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR

18. ZERTEHFENRRTFEWE

SALE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Completed properties held for sale EEKEFEEME 493,153 771,902
Properties held for sale under ERPHGEME
development 145,038 202,011
638,191 973,913
Properties held for sale under ERPHGEME
development
— expected to be recovered: — FEEART A LA AR
e -
Within one year —F A 145,038 202,011

HEFREREEARLAR Z—T_TFF

R

e
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19.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE UNDER
DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, certain completed properties held for
sale under development and properties held for sale of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$151,470,000 (2019: HK$339,332,000) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
26).

Particulars of the Group’s properties held for sale under
development and properties held for sale are included on
pages 38 to 40.

18. REPEHENMERFEWE A)

R-E-EF=A=+—8 FELE
£151,470,0008 0 (= — "L &F ¢
339,332,000 70) w AEBE TEEK
BRTPAEVERSEMEDIER  E
ABAEEERETRITEEEE ZER
(PfizE26) °

AEBEERRTFHEVERGENEZF
BN E3BE40E ©

INVENTORIES 19. &8

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TF7B7T
Trading goods RS Em 12,729 11,505

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FE W BR 18
2020 2019
—EEHF —ET—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F7B7T
Accounts receivable JiE Lg BR T8 36,134 22,470
Impairment B (1,692) (1,815)
34,442 20,655
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEURARIE (48)
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on REBFZENUREFAEERPFIE
credit. The credit period is generally 90 days for the sale of SEF - XHEMPEEEHR—MKRR0
trading goods and up to 180 days for the sale of A MEEKEEMEIHEENEE R
completed properties held for sale. Each customer has a 180H - BEREFPHUREHEREER
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict B o $E@ﬁ‘%jiﬂﬂi/ﬁi%2)§4&ﬂ§1§§ﬁ
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances HEREE afEEEecHEda
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of BRR U AE A TE S » BB DA B Pt R AR &
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts EREWRREAHERZ 2 EZTILEFPE
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, BB EEREREERR - A&
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The I 3 fe 3 L PR U AR TR AR FE IS B A (] 4K
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit mH MR EERE - BKREAR
enhancements over its accounts receivable balances. Boe
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.
An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end R EBRER - REZARRINKRERE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net BEEFTE CERWRIE KRBT
of loss allowance, is as follows: ™
2020 2019
—E-EF T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 90 days 90HIW 24,594 14,336
91 to 180 days 91HZE=180H 4,202 1,846
181 to 360 days 181HZE360H 3,444 12
Over 360 days #1360 H 2,202 4,461
34,442 20,655
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FEUWEBRIE R EEEREZ ST
accounts receivable are as follows:
2020 2019
—B-FF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
At beginning of year REH] 1,815 1,087
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) MEEECREEE
losses, net (note 6) #m) - FEE (MEe) (81) 728
Exchange realignment ME W A (42) —
At end of year RER 1,692 1,815
HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFFRH
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWER™E (&)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date REHRE AR AREBREETRE
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. DT AT ETEEMEERX - BHEXT)
The provision rates are based on days past due for AREREEEOUEERRN (ANigin g
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss B REREL) NEZERTP 5 HET
patterns (i.e., by geographical region and product type). The SR A ER B EETE o ZArE kR
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the FARENMELER  BEBRHERNRER
time value of money and reasonable and supportable HARI IS B BT EIE - B RAR
information that is available at the reporting date about REEMRATERM SR RAISEER - —
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future BmE - WEHEE —F R A58
economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are WIT/EE) - K AR R -
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.
An analysis of accounts receivable by operating segment is REBEDPRBREBESTAOT -
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EE —T—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FAT
Trading of medical equipment EZEEBERELRERE (i)
and home security and kE#tE®R
automation products 16,862 12,716
Property development and MEBERRIEEER (ii)
investment business 19,272 9,754
36,134 22,470

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report




Notes:

0]

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B R M A

31 March 2020

—E-RF=A=+—H

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWRRIE (&)
Mgk
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the (i) NTEHINBACHAREEENTRES X
accounts receivable related to the trading business using a provision BREKRENEERR
matrix:
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZHF=A=1+—-AH
Past due
B
Less than 3to6 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
DR =z +tZ +=@A
258 =@A AER +=M@A BLE B
Expected credit loss rate FEHfEEEAX 1.8% 9.6% 11.0% 12.5% 79.6% 10.0%
Gross carrying amount WRERHEE (FTET)
(HK$'000) 10,186 2,058 3,444 — 1,174 16,862
Expected credit losses TEEfEEEX
(HK$'000) (FET) 180 197 380 — 935 1,692
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-NFE=ZA=+—H
Past due
Less than 3t06 7 to 12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total
S == +& +=f@A
=5 =@ A ANEA +=M@A LA - B
Expected credit loss rate FEHfEEEAX 2.2% 15.1% 23.1% 50.0% 81.3% 14.3%
Gross carrying amount RERHEE (TAT)
(HK$'000) 10,639 139 13 12 1,913 12,716
Expected credit losses TEEfEEEX
(HK$'000) (FET) 230 21 3 6 1,555 1,815

(i)

There was no recent history of default on accounts receivable related
to the property development and investment business. As at 31
March 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be

minimal.

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable related to property
development and investment business that are neither individually nor

(ii) MEFRERTEEB AR ERIREL &
MHBORE RS -_TFR_T—Hh
FZA=+—H8  BEREWIERERM -

BRI RiRa s AR AL EBRRE I
EYERRIBEEB A B ERYFRAR

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: BT
2020 2019
—EC-FF —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FB T
Neither past due nor impaired R R R E 14,588 3,697
Less than 3 months past due wmELR=MEA 2,341 1,695
More than 6 months past due mEINE A A 2,343 4,362
19,272 9,754

HEERRERERARA

A T -_TFEFR
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

RANRE - ZE R EMERFIR

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT T

Prepayments TEfT IR 15,556 20,505
Deposits e 214 172
Other receivables H qth e U 5K I8 44,397 46,291
Impairment allowance BB (17,137) (20,179)
27,260 26,112

43,030 46,789

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied
to other receivables of HK$17,137,000 (20109:
HK$20,179,000) relating to debtors that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in payments as at 31 March
2020 was 100% (2019: 100%).

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
related to receivables for which there is no recent history of
default.

TEERESEREEL2EARAEENES
BRGEERBAREETHRED °
BARAReEHFAE  URBERERR
RRECEANRTER (WEE) - R=ZF=
ZHF=A=+—H " ¥17,137,000/ T
—ZT—A4F : 20,179,000 7T) 2 HAth
FEWERIBHRA ZBEEEXA100% (=
— L 1 100% ) + H 8 3R B 75 (R £ ok
NHREREHZEBAGE -

R AR BE Z 12 e At FE MR BR 308 I
AT HOIE S 1) FEURRROR
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. BEARE - RERHMERRIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (#&)
The movements in the provision for impairment of other H i EYRIB 2 REREZESHNOT -
receivables are as follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of year REH] 20,179 19,519
Impairment losses, net (note 6) MERX - FH (H5Ee) 142 1,902
Amount written off as uncollectible i 8 A ORI Bl 2 /I8 (1,984) —
Exchange realignment ME W SR (1,200) (1,242)
At end of year RER 17,137 20,179
Included in the above provision for impairment of other Ll E At R UGRIB 2 BB BB R IR E R
receivables is a provision for individual other receivables that B8 2 BRI E U RIE 2 B - B
defaulted in repayments and these receivables were not LR HRIATE BRI REU B o AN IR
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any HRFERFETAERRIEMEE
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. SRALIEHE o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22. RERFESEEHEBRCETF
PLEDGED DEPOSITS A
2020 2019
—2-FF —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Cash and bank balances R MIRITHES 20,099 18,987
Time deposits TEHATF K 3,500 13,500
23,599 32,487
Less: Pledged deposits for banking W RITEEZEERE
facilities (note 26) F(MI5E26) (3.500) (3,000)
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIReFEHEER 20,099 29,487

HEERERERERAAF

A
A

FEH

e
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23.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate cash and
bank balances and deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$10,706,000 (2019:
approximately HK$8,595,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

In the prior year, the Group, as one of the sellers, entered
into a memorandum of understanding dated 21 February
2019 with an independent third party to dispose of the
Group's entire equity interest in DCIHL, an associate of the
Group. In view of the aforementioned plan to dispose of
this equity interest in DCIHL, the Group classified its
interests in the DCIHL Group as a non-current asset held for
sale as at 31 March 2019.

An analysis of the non-current asset classified as held for
sale as at 31 March 2019 is as follows:

22. BERkBEEEEARCETRE
;X (#g)
RBRERR  REBUAARBAENZ
ReERBITEBRRTREFAN B
10,706,000 L (ZZE — L F :+ 4
8,595,000/87T) - ARMTA B R A%
BEMEE - AMBRESE A INEES
FHEG R 45 TE - SERNEEERTE
ANE B S B EEITINEET
ZIRITHBAREHBEEMEE -

RITRSBETHRTHEZINEILTS
MEEFE - EHERFR—R—BE=
BATE  BRFAREHNERESH
SKMGE - Wi B 7 HIE HF 500 = B
AR - SRITAERR N D IR RERR
AT HANE 5 A0SR 2 (BB RIFRUERTT ©

23. PEAFFELHEFRRBEE

RE—FE AEE(WERES2—)H
—EBUE=FFAVABR-_ZE-NF
“A- T ARREETE  KHER
SERARERER (RASE— M
BT ZEPE - EN LEEIHE
AEERN AR EREREE R=-F
—NE=ZA=+—R  rEEE# &
ERREREE RSO EARELE
FERBEE -

RZZBE-NEF=A=+—HBHBERFHE
HEFRBEESTAT

HK$'000
TAT

Investments in associates

REEE QNG 2 "E 68,589

Particulars and the summarised consolidated financial
information of the DCIHL Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

HERREREEEE_T-NF=A
S+ RLEFREZEAMBEMFER
B B I A MR M5




24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2020
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24. BERTE

R EHER - B RERERE A G

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BZRERDTWT :
follows:
2020 2019
. —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Within 90 days 90HW 3,679 2,997
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 624 —
181 to 360 days 181HZE360H 276 42
Over 360 days #360H 3,581 3,616
8,160 6,655
Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally EREBEA®RE  —RENIARNE
settled on 30-day terms. "o

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. HtiENRERESNER

2020 2019

—E_ZF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAETT

Deposits received B iR e 4,920 6,709

Other payables o FE T 5RIR 36,979 33,176

Contract liabilities (note a) AHaE (KHEa) 7,270 246,150

Accruals st EA 7,230 4,365
Due to non-controlling shareholders FEATIEVE R AR SR 5K IR

(note b) (B 5ED) 14,861 9,080

71,260 299,480
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 25.

HiENRERESER (&)

Notes: ff3E -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) BHBEFBHT :
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
—E-2F “E-NF —E-N\F
=A=+—H —A=+—8 mA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt FE T FE T
Short-term advances BEREFHEHEN
received from
customers
Sale of properties and HEMERER
goods 7,270 246,150 268,265
Contract liabilities included short-term advances received to transfer AHBBERERIINE BB R AEB Y E
property interests and to deliver trading goods to customers. The BHERINRGERERE - AFEEH
decrease in contract liabilities in the current year was mainly due to EBEASEIEHANEREENMENBEKRE
the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in PEEEZRR D -
relation to the sales of properties at the end of the year.
(b) The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, (b) JESEIERBRERBAEEE £ EKA

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFTERRITREMEER
BORROWINGS
2020 2019
—E-BF —T-AF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) per (%) per
annum Maturity HK$'000 annum Maturity HK$'000
EREFE BRFRE
(%) R FET (%) Bl FHB T
Current Bl 59
Bank loans BITER 3.6 to 7.5 2020 143,700 32310 7.6 2019 134,110
— secured — HiEM 3.6E75 C—ZT-EBF 323%76 —ZE—NE
Bank loans RITER 6.3 On demand 20,875 — — —
— secured — B RER
Bank loans BITERK — — — 4.5 2019 689
— unsecured — A —ET-NnEF
Other borrowings HifEE — — — 9.5 2019 85,410
— unsecured — I —T-NF
Bank overdrafts RITBEX Best On demand 17,912  Best Lending ~ On demand 1,357
Lending RER Rate — 1.5 RER
Rate - 0.5 or BEREE
Hong Kong FlE-15
Inter-bank
offered rate
+1.0
BEERFE
FIE-0.55%
BEBRTE
¥/ E+1.0
Trust receipt loans  {ZsEIEE 2.0 to 3.9 2020 8,936  Hong Kong 2019 5,066
20839 Z—ZT-THF Inter-bank  —ZT— N4
Offered Rate
+2.0
BEBRIT
A XK S
+2.0
191,423 226,632
Non-current JERNHA
Bank loans RITEK 6.4 2021 to 2026 151,250 6.37 to 7.6 2020 to 2026 192,465
— secured — HiEM —EB--FZF 637876 _—T_TFE
ZENRE —F R
Bank loans RITEK — — — 4.5 2020 177
— unsecured — I ZEZTF
Other borrowings HithfgE 9.5 2022 80,300 — — —
— unsecured — EEA —E=-=
231,550 192,642
422,973 419,274

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH 191
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

26. FTEBITRAEMEER (&

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Analysed into: DA

Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER
Within one year or on demand —FRARIZEKX 191,423 141,222
In the second year £ F 27,500 31,767
In the third to fifth years F=—FERF 82,500 87,750
Beyond five years AFUE 41,250 73,125
342,673 333,864

Other borrowings, repayable: [EEEHEMEE
Within one year or on demand —FRHIEEK — 85,410
In the second year FF — -
In the third to fifth years FE=FERF 80,300 —
80,300 85,410
422,973 419,274

Except for secured bank loans of HK$245,825,000 (2019:
HK$289,575,000) and unsecured other borrowings of
HK$80,300,000 (2019: HK$85,410,000) which are
denominated in RMB, and trust receipt loans of
HK$3,464,000 (2019: HK$5,066,000) and HK$1,252,000
(2019: Nil) which are denominated in United States dollars
and Euro, respectively, all remaining borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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BB IR 1T & 50245,825,00078 T (—
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26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by:

(i)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings situated in Hong Kong and the PRC of
HK$281,800,000 (2019: HK$208,419,000) (note 13);

(i)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s investment
properties situated in the PRC of HK$539,000,000
(2019: HK$579,150,000) (note 14);

(iii)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s properties held
for sale and properties held for sale under
development situated in the PRC of HK$151,470,000
(2019: HK$339,332,000) (note 18); and

(iv) the pledge of the Group’s time deposits of
HK$3,500,000 (2019: HK$3,000,000) (note 22).

In addition, certain banking facilities are secured by
corporate guarantees executed by the Company as at 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

26.
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SFRBRTREMEER (&

AEBZRITERETHTIISAER
Sl

)y BERXEBURESRFEHNE
FTHELHREREF A
281,800,000 T (ZF — L& ¢
208,419,000 7T) (F7¥13) :

(i) WIFEAEBECRFPENE TRE
¥ % B #539,000,000/% T (=
T — FL4F : 579,150,000 7T ) (P
$14)

(i) EHAEBURPENETEHE
MENERFTEDE BH
151,470,000 L (= — L& -
339,332,000 L) (FIzE18) + &

vy ERAEENTEHREFEZR B
3,500,000 T (Z& — N F :
3,000,000/& 7T) (M 7E22) °

ZH R ERFZA=t—HRZ
ZE-NE=A=+—BETRITEENU
RRRZER] 2 REERIEE o

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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27. DEFERRED TAX

27. EEBIE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FA-BREERBBEGEZEENOT -
as follows:
2020
ZECZEF
Revaluation of Withholding
properties taxes Total
EhYE SCEIE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At beginning of year REH 172,062 19,476 191,538
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the F AR BRI
statement of profit or loss during (Bt N) ZiRIER T8
the year (note 10) (MF5E10) (5.690) 1,002 (4,688)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the £ A 2 W zs &
statement of comprehensive mng (A 2
income during the year B IE (1,446) 537 (909)
Exchange realignment M H A (4,777) — (4,777)
At end of year RER 160,149 21,015 181,164
2019
—Z-NEF
Revaluation of Withholding
properties taxes Total
BEWE A “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T35 T T T FET
At beginning of year R EFA) 157,846 19,061 176,907
Deferred tax charged to the FRARERRINRKRZ
statement of profit or loss during RIEFITE (FFEE10)
the year (note 10) 16,614 1,037 17,651
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the 4 K & a5 &K
statement of comprehensive mg(GFA) 2
income during the year RIERIE 2,663 (622) 2,041
Exchange realignment B 5, 58 B (5,061) — (5,061)
At end of year S 172,062 19,476 191,538
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27.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$109,477,000 (2019: HK$115,267,000)
that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
approximately HK$34,571,000 (2019: HK$24,977,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profit. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors,
they have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future
operating profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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EEBIE (&)
REBRBFTREBEECHRBEBEENA
109,477,000 T (=& — L F
115,267,000 7T) A {50 A AT SH 2=
EEBZRRZ RRERTUEF o IR
AREBPRTEAMELAREEEROA
34,571,000 0 (=% — L &F :
24,977,000 L) RN —ERAF A E
W A SR R EBR TR A o ARRE
ERA MFEBETIIKRERRELEET
TEABAZ B AR M Az EE R
HRELEFHIBEE -

RBHBELEMEREL - RPBEAMAK
N ZINERELRRAINEREETIRK
BABBI0% BN - R ER—FTF
NF-—R—BRER  WEAR_-ZET
tFE+T A=+ —BERZAEFN - fWTE
M ESNRIRE E 2 ADERR AR AR
MRS B ERSENRNSE
Ko AKEME BAKRE /%K
10% ° Bt - AEEAEERNFER
WRIZZ ZEWMBRRN —TTN\F—
A — B E L B R TP 0 R 8 BB A
BHIB -

ARBENIE TR ARG FIENE
REE
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28.

29.
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SHARE CAPITAL 28. KA
2020 2019
- e —FTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T THETT
Authorised: EERA
1,500,000,000 (2019: 1,500,000,000) 1,500,000,000 %
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —E-NF
1,500,000,000% ) & i
H{E0.10/8 7T 2 i@k 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRBRERSE :
977,880,400 (2019: 977,880,400) 977,880,400 %
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (ZZE—N%F:
977,880,400%) &A%
H{E0.10/8 7T 2 E @A 97,788 97,788
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the RRGE 27 BRERT B RARBET BT
share options issued under the scheme are included in note BREF BN B HmRME29 -
29 to the financial statements.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. BRESE

On 13 August 2012, the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 14 August 2002 ceased to operate
and a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 15 August 2012 to comply with the
requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules regarding
share option schemes of a company. There was no
outstanding share option under the old scheme upon its
cessation.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, the
Company'’s shareholders and other employees of the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 15 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

RZZB—"F\A+=H  AQAKI
R-ZZEZ_F A+ HA KK EEE
HE WRZZE——F N \ATHEBEER®A
g8 ([51811) ATT & LR A
FITERBRRBRESEIZHAE - B
RN R IR BB ORI TR BB A -

ARBRABETE - BAZE R EEHA
KEZRNEEFLEM A ERSHE
EoREZEERSEEREANTE
= (BEBIFNTESR) ARABR
RAKREEMES - FHEIR_"F——%F
NA+THEBRER  BRIERINEHSE
Al RTBISHZAETFERAR -




29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Group at the adoption date of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An
option may be exercised under the Scheme at any time
during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date when
the option is granted and will expire on the last date of
such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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BRESE (&)
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29.

30.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BRESE (HE)
In the prior year, the following share options were RE—FE  ZFRNFTEIBETHNATE
outstanding under the Scheme during that year: S e 1R AR AT
2019
—ZE-NF
Weight average Number of
exercise price options
NI E AR A
HK$ ‘000
T F 15
At beginning of year NG 0.71 14,740
Expired during the year FAE B H 0.71 (14,740)
At end of year NG N — —
In the prior year, 14,740,000 share options expired and the W E—4E 14,740,000 EBRED &
corresponding share option reserve of HK$2,398,000 was K R E B A% B 1+ 1552,398,00078 T 2
released to retained profits. No share options were granted, BRERBEN RBE_ZT_TF=
exercised nor expired during the year ended 31 March A=+—HLLFE #HEBREER
2020. o fTE e R
At the end of the reporting period and at the date of REBERRER ST B REELEE
approval of these financial statements, the Company had no H - AR ARSI EARIT B E
share options outstanding under the Scheme (2019: Nil). —E-hF |
RESERVES 30. &M

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 88
and 89 of the financial statements.

RAFEMBEFE  AEEFEDER
REZEHFERANYHEHERFENEIA
ZIFEREEHRANZS -




31.

32.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
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31. REREREKRME
METHELENAEES

Interest-bearing
bank and other

borrowings

FFERTR

Hinfg &

HK$'000

T

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMHA—H 611,962

Changes from financing cash flows MERETREED (155,873)

Foreign exchange movement GNP 5 &) (38,172)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE—NF=A

=t+—HBRZZE-NF

mA—H 417,917

Changes from financing cash flows MERTREZD 9,098

Foreign exchange movement HNFE B (21,954)
At 31 March 2020 R-_Z_ZTF=A

=+—H 405,061

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) The Group as lessor
The Group leased certain of its properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to twenty years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

32. ENRH
(a) FHEEBEEHZHBAA
AEERBEEERNOLHEES
TR BEHOSH—F=2
ZHFERF I HABRRK—
REFBEPXMRESR  ARE
AREERTRAEMAZEES -

HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFFRH

e
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32. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)
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The Group as lessor (Continued)

32.

B =5 ()

(a)

AEBESHEA )

At 31 March 2020, the Group had total future RZE_EF=ZA=+—H 'K
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable SERIEEBA PRI AT ] BUEE
operating leases with its tenants falling due as KRN HRARKEHEEEK
follows: FIARIN T B EREIHER
2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Within one year —FR 24,440 28,002
In the second to fifth years, ZFEEERF
inclusive (BIEERMSF) 85,114 88,175
After five years hF & 115,667 140,915
225,221 257,092

No contingent rental receivable was recognised by the
Group during the year (2019: Nil).

The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to fifteen years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b)

REBRAFEEIW EERRARIE

WHe(ZE—NFE: |)-
REBEESABEA
ZS%@*EB?%«%%E%;&JHH%%
E?%“*%% ETEHEAAE
RZE—AFE=ZA=+—H &

SEREAREELEEOR M

TEHMEBZARBONKZ &
iR

2019
—NF
HK$'000
TAET

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

E_FEFDF

(BREREMF)

300

928

1,228
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. A&iE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the REBRBERREUNTERERE
end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
ZEZEF —ZT-hnF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: B ET 401 R B
Capital contributions payable to equity — EfHZRAF(E AlER
investments at fair value through Rz RERE 2 ER
profit or loss & 5,837 22,400
Leasehold improvements HEHRE 7,274 —
13,111 22,400
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAELRS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BZEUBHREREMMMFFLZ
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group RS REERIN - TIRFANRE
had the following material transactions with related BEEBABEATETZIERARS
parties during the year:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B % FET T
Management fee income RE—EEERRZ
from a related company ERBWA (i) 55 55
Management fee income KE—MEBERFZ
from an associate ERBRA (i) 474 —
Management fee to an m— R E QA
associate EEE (ii) 21 110
Rental income from a related RE—MEEE QAR Z
company Ha WA (iii) 306 306
Rental income from an RE—EBERARZ
associate Ha2 WA (iv) 543 1,716
HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFFRH 201
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

The

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) The management fee was charged by reference to actual costs
incurred for the services provided by the Group.

(ii) The management fee was charged by reference to actual costs
incurred for the services provided by an associate.

(iii) During the vyear, rental income was charged to FCL at
HK$26,000 (2019: HK$26,000) per month. Mr. Tjia is a
director of and has beneficial interests in the Company and
FCL, while Mr. Tjia Wai Yip, William is a director of the
Company and FCL.

(iv) In the prior year and up to the completion date of the disposal
of the DCIHL Group on 18 June 2019, rental income was
charged to a wholly-owned subsidiary of DCIHL at
HK$209,000 (2019: HK$143,000) per month as mutually
agreed between the parties.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with associates as at
the end of the reporting period are included in note
15 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s balances with related
companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 17 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s balances with non-controlling
shareholders as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 25 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors and chief executive of the Company. Details
of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the
financial statements.

related party transactions above also constituted

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Deson Development International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

34.

BAE

(a)

AER5F (&)
(#)

(i) EIRE Y2 RANEERHE 2 RIS PR
EEZEBERAMUE

(i) EREDN2R-—EHERRREZ
PR P 7E A 2 B R BAR 1 W ER o

@iy  AFEARBRBRELZES ARSI
A %26,0008 T (ZF—NF:
26,000 7T) c ML ERBE D AR
BRI EFT ATtz
MM E AR R REURAIE
ZESF o

vy RE-"FEREER-T—ILFX
A+N\BHEHaERSERER Y
TARBH - ETHESHE - M
EEREERE-B2EWEB QR
e U AFT A209,0008 L (==
— L5 143,000 7T) °

HEE AT HARBEZHERR
RERE R - NEE RS R E)

2 SR BRI M RAR M 15 -

RBEHR  AEEEFENF
ZERR BRI IR M7 -

REREHIR - A5 B B IR AR AR
R BEHF TN B RAM T
25°

AEBTEEBABZHBH
AEETEEERAEBRARAZ

EENRTETHAR -HEME
FHIEN I B MER M T8N BEE

EXHRZBBEBALRZEER TR
AFVUVAEREZHEBERS -




35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
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35. RERE D 2EMITA

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as N
follows:

2020 —EC-EH
Financial assets TREE

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss —

RBREHR SEeRITAEEEN

designated as Financial
such upon assets at
initial amortised
recognition cost Total
BRAFETTA
BENSE
EE — RIO% RE A
BRKEED FEZ
1t 48 Bl CRMEE HME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Equity investments at fair value IRAF(EFF AR
through profit or loss Z R E 124,931 — 124,931
Due from associates JE Yo Hsg 5 A =) — 5,242 5,242
Due from related companies kNG — 1,291 1,291
Accounts receivable FEUERIE — 34,442 34,442
Financial assets included in FFATEM A - e
prepayments, deposits and Ko E At & U TR Y
other receivables (note 21) EMEE
(MHEE21) — 27,474 27,474
Pledged deposits [RELECRES Y — 3,500 3,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEHEEAE — 20,099 20,099
124,931 92,048 216,979
HEFREREEAR DA T_TFFR 203
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. ERE S 2RI A (R)
(Continued)
2020 (Continued) —BRI2F (#)
Financial liabilities cRAasE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERETE
Zemes
HK$’000
FET
Accounts payable FERTERIA 8,160
Financial liabilities included in other payables FTAEL Ath & A SR8 K EET
and accruals ERMmeRBE 57,338
Due to associates JETHE & A A 8,280
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AERITREMBEER 422,973
496,751
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value  Financial asset
through at fair value
profit or loss = through other
designated as  comprehensive Financial
such upon initial income - equity assets at
recognition investment  amortised cost Total
BAFEFA BRAFEFA
BRNepEE Hth2EKER
— R ER CTREE REHARHE
K E B UL AR R — RERE LERMEAE 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Equity investment designated at 15 E Z A FEF A
fair value through other 2EWE 2 RERE
comprehensive income — 9,400 — 9,400
Equity investments at fair value A FEFABHEZ
through profit or loss IRERE 105,380 — — 105,380
Due from associates g AN — — 4,515 4,515
Due from related companies )N — — 4,237 4,237
Accounts receivable FEUER IR — — 20,655 20,655
Financial assets included in FPATERRIE  Re Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hith EU B R € Al
other receivables (note 21) A (fEE21) — — 26,284 26,284
Pledged deposits BERFTR — — 3,000 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEEE — — 29,487 29,487
105,380 9,400 88,178 202,958
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
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35. RERE D 2EMT A (&)

2019 (Continued) —E-NF(E)
Financial liabilities o =N
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REIE ARG E
ZemaR
HK$'000
T T
Accounts payable FERTERIE 6,655
Financial liabilities included in other payables ST A E A FE SR K EET
and accruals BRANESRERE 44,891
Due to associates FE A< B 5 ) 5,177
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREAMBEE 419,274
475,997

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

36. ERTACZAVFERRFERS

AEEZzeRTA(MEERERESRE
WERAFENERTE) WREER

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as NTFENT
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AFE
2020 2019 2020 2019
TECEF —_T-NFE ZEZBF —ZE-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR THET
Financial assets TRMEE
Equity investment EE AR AT ERA
designated at fair value — Ef2mEKE 2
through other iR &
comprehensive income — 9,400 — 9,400
Equity investments at fair 1ZAF(EFFABZEE
value through profit or  Z BHERE
loss 124,931 105,380 124,931 105,380
Financial liabilities cRBE
Interest-bearing bank and FFEIRITREMEE
other borrowings (with (B JEBVERER1S)
non-current portion) 259,050 237,791 259,050 237,791

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to
the directors of the Company. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the directors of the Company.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to
associates and related companies, and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings classified as current liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

36.

TMTAZAFERLFERT
(%)

B BAERENAREZ AR HHE
BaEETeMIANAFEFENK
REEF - AR BEFERRAARF
EEER - NEREAH 2AHKE
FoMmeR T ABENKBLEREHE
TAERBNEIEGABE - AEHAR
AESER LI -

EEECDHEREIAEEEFEERE B
HARFR - BUWERE - BAERE  FTA
BNFIA - B REMERR 2 &/
BE FIAHRMENFREBERENERZ
SHAE Bk ERNBE QR REE
NEFELG BRITREMEEL DM
RRBBREZATE AERSEEER
RHEMRS  FTRRA/ZFTAER
FEEIREIE -

SRAERERNATENREEES
EHRERNR ST AU ERT S (%
Bl LA RMERIN) B SEEA -
AT 5177k R RRE A TR
i




36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been
estimated using a market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. As at 31 March 2020, certain unlisted
equity investments carry out property redevelopment
projects and the fair values of the properties under these
projects are considered in the fair value assessment by the
directors; while an unlisted investment carries a listed equity
investment and its quoted market price is also considered in
the fair value assessment by the directors. Last year's
valuation also required the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate
price multiple, such as price-to-book (“P/B”) multiple and
price-to-earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple was calculated by dividing
the enterprise value of the comparable company by an
earnings measure. The trading multiple was then adjusted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-
specific facts and circumstances. A discount for lack of
marketability (“DLOM?") is applied in the fair value
assessment, representing the amounts of premium and
discounts determined by the Group that market participants
would take into account when pricing the investments. The
adjusted multiple was applied to the corresponding equity
and earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
techniques, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in
fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period. The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings repayable beyond one year after the end of the
reporting period as assessed on an individual borrowing
basis have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

36.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments, together with a
guantitative sensitivity analysis, as at 31 March 2020 and

2019:

Valuation
techniques

1 8 £ 1

Significant unobservable
inputs

EATAHERARE

(%)
PATS B

Range

18

TMTAZAFERLFERT

—E-TER-_T-NE=A

—= =

=t BHERMTAMEZERNTAE
R ABBEHMERERTEHMREDN

Sensitivity of fair value to the
input

DNFEHBHAREZ

BRE

Unlisted equity
investments

RETREERE
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Investment method

REER

Direct comparison
approach

BERLEE

Asset approach

AEX

Valuation multiples

[CXEREE

Estimated rental value (per
square metre and per
month) and reversionary
yield

EESEE (BT KRR
A REFWREE

Market unit selling price
T B EE

Market unit selling price
s B EE

Discount for lack of
marketability
BB Z T35 7 M 1 AT R

Average market
capitalisation/equity
multiple of peers (or
average P/B multiple of
peers)

RZFHTETAEEE (K

[ 519 7 AR £ 80

Average market
capitalisation/earnings
multiple of peers (or
average P/E multiple of
peers)

AT THE BT
fEE (RF%ETH
mREE)

RMB168 to RMB258
(2019: N/A) and
5.50% t0 5.75%
(2019: N/A)
AR¥1687LE
AR#2587C

(ZF & TEm)
%5.50%%5.75%
(ZF—n&F - TEm)

RMB105,700
(2019: RMB64,900)
AR #105,7007T
(ZZT—n%F:
AR #64,9007T)

HK$22,400

(2019: HK$24,200)

22,4007 ¢
—E-NE
24,2007 7T)

20.89% to 32.30%
(2019: 20.89%)
20.89%%E32.30%
(ZZT—n%F:
20.89%)

N/A
A F

(2019:

1.5 to 1.75)
(ZF—h%F:
1.5%1.75)

N/A

T

(2019: 9.08)
(ZZ— A% 9.08)

1% increase/decrease in estimated
rental value and multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$19,732,000 (2019:
N/A)

1% bt @ B E R B M %D
BB R T AL,
19,732,000 (= — N4 -
T#EA)

1% increase/decrease in market
unit selling price would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$4,872,000 (2019:
HK$4,696,000)

1% T35 B AL (B2 0, 15 B
DA, R 4,872,0008
TL(ZF— N5 : 4,696,000/ 7T)

1% increase/decrease in market
unit selling price would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$6,942,000 (2019:
HK$8,463,000)

1% 5 BALEEE ISR E R
AR5 6,942,0005%
T (ZZ— 1% : 8,463,000 7T)

1% increase/decease in multiple
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$19,930,000
(2019: HK$3,030,000)

1% (EEEE I, B B E BN T Eg
7/ 4>19,930,0007% 7T

—ZT—A%F + 3,030,000 7T)

N/A

i A

(2019: 1% increase/decrease in
multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$44,000,000)

ZTNEF 1% BN R
IS ECESUNSTER Y V
44,000,0007% 7T.)

N/A

i

(2019: 1% increase/decrease in
multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$40,000,000)

(ZZ—NF - 1% EEE MR
IS ECESUNSTER Y V
40,000,0007% 7T.)




36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2020

Notes to Financial Statements
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36. £EMTAZAFERAFERF
(%)
AFERE
TRIRAEESBMTANATEE
S

BAFEHBHEE

—g-¥F=A=1-8

Fair value measurement using

DFEFEEANER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBMHEz EAXTBER EATTEE
8E WAHE WAHE
(& 5B1—) (& 5B1=) (A=) &t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investments at fair A FEFABZREZ
value through profit or g &
loss — — 124,931 124,931

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. ¢RI EZAFEEAFELR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AR EHR (&)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) BRAFETEWEE (B
As at 31 March 2019 RZE—-AF=ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RNTHEFEEANER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERTSE  EAUEE EATHUEER
HfE BAHE BAHE

(#A—) (& H1=) (#&B1=) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Equity investment EEREAFERA
designated at fair value Hin 2=
through other g 5g
comprehensive income — — 9,400 9,400
Equity investments at fair  RAFEFABZRZ
value through profit or i1 &
loss — — 105,380 105,380
— — 114,780 114,780
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FABMN=AFEFEZEHOT :
during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
ZEZEF —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Equity investments — unlisted: B E — FLm:
At beginning of year R ) 114,780 92,800
Purchases A 34,357 66,364
Disposals s (16,950) —
Total losses recognised in the statement Bz & AR E R
of profit or loss 4858 (14,806) (35,984)
Total gain/(losses) recognised in other — R E 2 W HHERH
comprehensive income Wz, (E518) 48 %8 7,550 (8,400)
At end of year RER 124,931 114,780
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36.

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s financial liabilities not
measured at fair value but for which fair values were
disclosed included those interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings with non-current portion of HK$259,050,000
(2019: HK$237,791,000). The fair values of these financial
liabilities disclosed were measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are unobservable (Level 3).

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, equity
investments, balances with associates and related

companies, cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable, accounts payable, deposits and other receivables,
and other payables and certain accruals, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

36.

37.
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EMIBEZATFERAFERA
(#&)

AFEHRG (E)
BRAFETEHWEE & (&)
R-TE-TZFE=ZA=+—H AEHZ
WELNAFEAEERHFEEAFEZ
cRABEREXSENRI M ERT
N EAth &5 259,050,000 T (—F—Hh
F :237,791,000087C) - ZELmEE
T 2 A E T ERGE R maT
2 MZAEERNFZEAERATFEE
EBRFE BB ASIRS TR
(BAI=) °

RAFE SREERTBREBEZHRR
—HEH —ZHEYERAFEFELE
B TEEREFIERENN=(ZF
—NEFE) o

MHEEREEEERBEE

AEETZCRTABEABRITRA
ffEE  BERE - Ei 2R E M
REAZEH RELBEFERE KD
BHER ZFERTAZIZRNER
RAREXGERES - AKEERS
BEMREXGERELCHMESRE
ENBE BOREIRIE  EBAKRE -
12 No EL A SRR TR % L A A SRR
AT REFER -

AEBeRIAZTEZRR AN EE
@ SNERER  EERRMRSESE
2 BFEERILBEERSHERRZ
HR - RxERBHALLT

R

e

HEFREREEARAR Z—T_TFF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. B ERERE B ERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk F 2= [ B
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market AEBEZTSNEEYRERETEEARE
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt BREAERPEZEFEEHER -
obligations with floating interest rates in Hong Kong and
the PRC.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest- FTERITREMEE 2 FIEREEEK
bearing bank and other borrowings are disclosed in note 26 R EREM 26 AEE - AEBZHE
to the financial statements. Other financial assets and theEmEERBERE AN ERR © 5
liabilities of the Group do not have material interest rate BRITEFRER - Hivst S &R - B
risk. Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts, other & RESEEIEL REBTFRIERKA
interest-bearing loans, cash and cash equivalents, and short BY AT EEHETEM  FEHBARK
term deposits are stated at cost and are not revalued on a AXRELRBGEBRERNE -
periodic basis. Floating-rate interest income and expense are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
incurred.
The nominal interest rates of the financial instruments ‘:Emﬁllﬁz%%f%ﬂ EBZEBER
approximate to their respective effective interest rates. EIE
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TERERANEMBERFIENER
reasonably possible change in the Hong Kong dollar interest T AEEBRBANEF,(B18) kiEx
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's (BRZEF|RERTE) EBEITLFER]
profit/(loss) before tax and equity (through the impact on BRI AR 2 BURE o
floating rate borrowings).
Decrease/
Increase/  (increase) in Increase/
(decrease) in loss before (decrease) in
basis points tax equity*
2B EH MR Bt AT 18 g m
(Tr) W2 /(Em) (R ) *
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2020 —E-EF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (3,817) —
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 3,817 —
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BiEEMEEEZREEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) = @ b (48)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease) in
basis points tax equity*
B VA B 7 B & A TSI,
(RF&)  #hn CRd) CRLA) *
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TFATT
2019 —E-NF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (4,447) —
Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 4,441 —
* Excluding retained profits * B 5 R B s A

Foreign currency risk

The monetary assets and transactions of several subsidiaries
of the Group are principally denominated in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The Group currently has no particular hedging vehicles to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk. It is the
Group's policy to monitor foreign exchange exposure and to
make use of appropriate hedging measures when required.

S L B
AEBETHBRRAZEBREERRS
FEPINERER - AMEAREEEER
SN R o AN [B B BT R Bl B T
BLASRSNERR - NEBZ R RE
ZIMNERR MEFREREREE 2
=R

R

e
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. i EAKRETEEERKRE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) P B (4E)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TRERRREHREMEHRSFTE
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in MERT » AEBEBRTINEF, (BE)
the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held RArGEERm(REBEERABZA
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and the FELREE) WARBEXRAELE
Group's equity (due to changes in the fair value of SRR 2 BRE -

monetary assets and liabilities).

Decrease/
Increase/  (increase) in Increase/
(decrease) in loss before (decrease) in
exchange rate tax equity*
ExLEH A MREBIATE 1B R
(TH) R, /(Em) (R ) *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FHET
2020 —E-EF
If Hong Kong dollar EBETHARBESS
weakens against RMB 5 (14,991) —
If Hong Kong dollar EETHAREER
strengthens against RMB (5) 14,991 —
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease) in
exchange rate tax equity*
[EX FF B 52 A1 ) Rz mS
(RFg) &/ CRd) OB ) *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% T FHET
2019 —ZT-hF
If Hong Kong dollar AEBTHARBESS
weakens against RMB 5 (17,309) —
If Hong Kong dollar ERATHARBER
strengthens against RMB (5) 17,309 —
* Excluding retained profits * TBERE T
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2020 and
2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

As at 31 March 2020

37.
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31 March 2020
—ET-TF=R=+—H

HHEEREERERBEE)

EERE

AEEERER REBAENE=T
HEITR S - RBAKENBER - AR
REBGRETRZINES - HAKS
EERERFR  HAEE W K
SESRHBEERBRAHRNER  MA
SENERERIL NEX -

REE R TEFEER

TERETERAEBEEERRNEREEZ
=heaEERR (E2RaBBEERS
i BRIEEAM RIS ERET N EEEINK
AREZBH) UWER - E_ZTFL-F
—hWEZRA=Z+—BNFEERENE -
2y meEALREEMBETE -

R-E-ZBHF=ZHA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=EAE
HMEgEX >HEREEEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Tota
F-RER FEoBER E=RBR  fEihE FoE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET FHET THET
Accounts receivable* FE Y BR 1R — — — 36,134 36,134
Financial assets included &M ATEMFRIE « &e &
in prepayments, EfbEBGRIERN @5
deposits and other EE
receivables
— Normal** — IEE** 27,474 — — — 27,474
— Doubtful** — RER** — — 17,137 — 17,137
Due from associates** € /NI 5,242 — — — 5,242
Due from related PR REE N A x*
companies** 1,291 — — — 1,291
Pledged deposits 2HEBER
— Not yet past due — K@ H 3,500 — — — 3,500
Cash and cash RekR&FEIER
equivalents
— Not yet past due — K@ E 20,099 — — — 20,099
57,606 — 17,137 36,134 110,877

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. M EKREEEEREE (F)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) FERB (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERERIEFEER (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 March 2019 R_ZE-NEF=ZA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+Z@AE
HEEEX S HEHREEEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Tota
E—MEBR FoBR E=PEER A% 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET T
Accounts receivable* JE UK BR 18 * — — — 22,470 22,470
Financial assets included  FtATERRIE - B& K
in prepayments, E b EWGRIER & /b
deposits and other BE
receivables
— Normal** — IEE** 26,284 — — — 26,284
— Doubtful** — RER** — — 20,179 — 20,179
Due from associates** FEUHE & N F) 4,515 — — — 4,515
Due from related FEUREEE N E) x>
companies** 4,237 — — — 4,237
Pledged deposits EHEBER
— Not yet past due — R H 3,000 — — — 3,000
Cash and cash RekBEEFEER
equivalents
— Not yet past due — K@ 29,487 — — — 29,487
67,523 — 20,179 22,470 110,172
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified * MAREEARETCENERERTE -

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from associates and
related companies are considered as “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets are
considered as “doubtful”.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, bank loans and other interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group's policy is to ensure the matching
of maturity of its financial liabilities against that of its
financial assets, and the maintenance of a current ratio,
which is defined as current assets over current liabilities, at
above one so as to enhance stable liquidity.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.
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HHEEREERERBEE)

AEERAEEERDESHRE TALE
2ECHEROAR - ZTAZEESR
EMTARERMEE (MEKRER) 25
HERARBEEXH BH2ERS

=
JILEE °

AEBZBRIREBNBRITES
RITERLEMF REEUAREREZ
FEMMEIE M Z i o AEEZBE
ERRESHAEERSREE YA
MBI MRERRBL R (RER/RD
BERMURDABZHER)BR—MUE
ZIKE - UIMNBREZARBES °

RBEYR - AEEZERABGERES
FIMMERBIR AR Z BB R T

2020
—EEF
On demand or
less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
RERR
PR+=@A —ZHE #aEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET FET
Accounts payable JE T BRI 8,160 — 8,160
Financial liabilities included & A fb &S 518 & FE AT
in other payables and BERzERMAE
accruals 57,338 — 57,338
Due to associates JE 1~ Bt & 2 A 8,280 — 8,280
Interest-bearing bank and I ERITREMEE
other borrowings 213,708 270,455 484,163
287,486 270,455 557,941
HEFREREEARADA T_TFFR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

REE = E bk (F)

37. MBEAREEEEREEE)
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2019
—E-NF
On demand or
less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
&Kk
LR+ =R —ZERF HBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Accounts payable FETBRIE 6,655 — 6,655
Financial liabilities included — &F A E b fE{ 5038 & BT
in other payables and BERzE2MBRE
accruals 44,891 — 44,891
Due to associates JFE 1<) B & A A 5,177 — 5,177
Interest-bearing bank and  FtERITREMEE
other borrowings 248,375 231,632 480,007
305,098 231,632 536,730
Capital management BEXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,

AEBEAERZEZRE  DRER
SEREMEBIRSERERELE K
MERBRBZEALLE  UXHEBE
- FRMBEAZRREE -

AEBERARKEEAZEE  BEEE
AEBILIEHAE - REFAFRER
RERE - ARE AR B R RR K3 2 MY
8 ARRIKEEARKFEITHEND - &

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No EZTEEEF=A=F+—ARKRZE—N
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes FZA=T—HILFEAN IEAEER
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March EREMEXHBR BERNET

2020 and 31 March 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes accounts payable, other payables and accruals,
amounts due to associates and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, less pledged deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

AEENBAEAABLL X (EREFERK
NBEEARANMBEEFR)EREERNZIE
e BIRFRBIEEMRIE - EibEN
RENEHER - BAEEQBA
PARGGT BERIT R EMEER D ERFR
ERERR[REEFEEE - EAEART
BB ARG -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. i EAKRETEEERERE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) EXREE (&)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods R|ERR  ERBELERAT -

were as follows:

2020 2019

—E-FF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Accounts payable e ARTE 8,160 6,655

Other payables and accruals H 5/ R ERT B A 71,260 299,480

Due to associates ANE NG 8,280 5,177
Interest-bearing bank and other STRERITREMEE

borrowings 422,973 419,274

Less: Pledge deposits o B IRFER (3,500) (3,000)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR E RIS EHEER (20,099) (29,487)

Net debt B FE 487,074 698,099

Total capital RN 1,520,705 1,651,273

Total capital and net debt BERKLEIRFHE 2,007,779 2,349,372

Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 24% 30%

HEFREREEARLAR Z—T_TFF
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. XA T ZHEMRRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BERRERRAR R ZHHBARREXZ
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BAERWT
2020 2019
. —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&E 569,053 591,850
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Due from a related company JE U — Al B s A 42 42
Prepayments TET5IR 1 191
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EBEIEE 792 690
Total current assets RBEERE 835 923
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEN B &
Accruals JEET & A 1,337 1,355
Due to subsidiaries JERTHI B A A 62,744 62,771
Due to a related company B —FERIE AN A — 2,249
Total current liabilities MEBERRE 64,081 66,375
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEFE (63,246) (65,452)
Net assets AEFE 505,807 526,398
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT 97,788 97,788
Reserves (note) b1 (I 3E) 408,019 428,610
Total equity e G 505,807 526,398
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
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38. ANQF zMBMRREE)

Note: B3 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRFEBEREZLOT -
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
EARE
R 4 5 8 B BRRR e BRERE REEF #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT FiET FET FiET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—H 243,040 155,531 14,457 2,398 862 416,288
Profit for the year and total ~ AFEEF RAFELE
comprehensive income for W e
the year — — — — 17,211 17,211
Expiry of share options B — — — (2,398) 2,398 -
Final 2018 dividend paid BN \FERBEE — — — — (4,889) (4,889)
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NE=A
1 April 2019 =+—BRZT-NF
MA—B 243,040 155,531 14,457 — 15,582 428,610
Loss for the year and total ~ AFEFHERAFERE
comprehensive loss for the — E184A%
year — — — (10,811) (10,811)
Final 2019 dividend paid BENZE-AFRBERE — — — (4,890) (4,890)
Special 2019 dividend paid BN =T AFEHFFIBE — — — (4,890) (4,890)
At 31 March 2020 R_ZTE-_ZTF=A
=t+—A 243,040 155,531 14,457 — (5,009) 408,019

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on 21 May 1997
over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a distribution may be made out of
the contributed surplus, provided that the Company will be
able to pay its liabilities as they fall due and subsequent to
the distribution, the aggregate amount of its total liabilities,
issued share capital and share premium is less than the
realisable value of its assets

ARBAZEHBBRERER - NANEF
FAZ+—RAKEEAEMBANER
AR 2 A FESHBEITABRBZEFR
MZARBIBRMEEZ Z5 - REBEAR
E-NN\—FREDE(RER) ERA
BAMED IR - R AR RABEAENE
MEIHEMEE  BERDIRE - HA
B ERITRARBMEE AR
BBEARINEEEZAIZIREE-
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38.

39.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2020.

38.

39.

KRBz MBARR T &)

BREREERARREREEINRTT
FEEOBRENAFE  MEHRRHE
2AFTBARBARD AERZNROE
AARRBAEEAENRRE - BRAME
RIARB I T T R R R = R i B
B SRR B RE AR JE O SO B 8
BERB A -

#E B ®R =R
AR BEHRRCHEFTER T _TFX
A=+ /N Bt RFERT -




Summary of Financial Information

MBERBME

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities ANEBRBERMAHBFED TR ZEER
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five E&E -  BERIFZERESIBE 0T -
financial years is set out below.

RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EDIEF —T-NEF ZTE-N\EF ZT—tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT FHET FAT FATT

REVENUE WA
Continuing operations FEREED 351,614 259,417 190,783 199,683 91,467
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM MR BERBLEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER  FEFr5% A,/

FINANCE COSTS (B518) (33,223) 41,094 54,562 36,575 206,413
Share of profits and losses of  JE{GEEE A F)i& Fl &

associates BE (1,790) (4,527) 8,671 1,616 483
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB RDE R (B1B) (35,013) 36,567 63,233 38,191 206,896
Income tax expense FTEMmAY (2,523) (13,165) (16,198) (35,069) (73,171)

PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AFEEFELLEK
FROM CONTINUING w A, (EE)
OPERATIONS (37,536) 23,402 47,035 3,122 133,725

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BRIEEE X
Profit/(loss) for the year from REEDBRISEER
discontinued operations EF(EE) — — — 174,863 14,061

(37,536) 23,402 47,035 177,985 147,786

Attributable to: AR AT
Owners of the Company RAREE A (35,296) 27,486 47,776 144,934 140,998
Non-controlling interests IR R (2,240) (4,084) (741) 33,051 6,788

(37,536) 23,402 47,035 177,985 147,786

HMERREBEEAERAT —T-TFFH
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

EE -RERFERES

INTERESTS

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZ2F —T-NEF ZE-)\F ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHETT FAETT FAETT FHETT
Total assets BEE 2,227,228 2,591,964 2,804,205 2,783,058 3,302,666
Total liabilities BEE (711,552)  (944,623) (1,154,401) (1,326,345) (1,921,417)
Non-controlling interests R 5,029 3,932 609 (120) (20,983)
1,520,705 1,651,273 1,650,413 1,456,593 1,360,266
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Trading of Medical Equipment and Home Security and Automation
Products

HEBERBRXERZRBEHLER

Medical Technologies Limited #E B B2 EEHFR A T

Supply and Installation of the First Freestanding Underwater
Treadmill and Modernised Hydrotherapy Pool Equipment in
Hong Kong.
RERTZE2EBEEB LA KFBESEMNIRRACKERE -

Robotic Rehabilitating System and Air Purifying Project —
Synergic Pro Medical Centre (Tsim Sha Tsui).
BWMFEREZGRERFHNEE — LLTERERH L (KPH) -

Deson Innovative Limited HE S ERGEHE L T

The surveillance projects involved the planning, technical consulting and equipment supply of closed-circuit
television — video management system for Pacific Place, Admiralty and Get Nice Centre, Hung Hom

BREAE  RHEAMEHRABERRENEZRARSBEAT RS RAWE P ONEBEERR

Get Nice Centre, Hung Hom
AW - B

Pacific Place, Admiralty

i - KAHES
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